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NOTICE OF THE 32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting (‘AGM / the meeting’) of the 

Members of Suditi Industries Limited (‘the Company’) is scheduled to be held on Friday, 

September 29, 2023 at 03:00 P.M. through Video conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual 

Means (‘OAVM’), to transact the following businesses: 

 
Ordinary Business: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt:  

 
a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 together with Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor thereon; and 

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023 together with Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pawan Agarwal (DIN: 00808731), Director, who 

retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
3. To regularize the appointment of Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala, (DIN 07040989) from Additional 

Director to a Director of the Company 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory 

modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and based on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board, 

Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN 07040989), who was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. November 1, 2022 in accordance the 

provisions of Section 161 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing 

from a member as required under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature for the 

office of Director of the Company, and who has submitted the declaration that she meets 

the criteria for independence as provided under the Act and the Listing Regulations, be and 

is hereby appointed as an Non–Executive Independent Director of the Company for a period 

of 5 (Five) years with effect from November 1, 2022 till October 30, 2027.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director of the Company or Company Secretary 
of the Company be and are hereby jointly and/or severally authorized to do all such other 
acts as may be necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
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4.    To approve the Related Party transactions. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT in supersession to the earlier resolution(s) passed and pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 and Regulation 
23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ( including any amendment, modification, variation or re-
enactment to any of the foregoing) and subject to such other approvals, consents, 
permissions and sanctions of other authorities as may be necessary, the members of the 
Company hereby accord their approval to all the contracts/agreements/arrangements, 
whether existing or to be entered in the future, during the financial year and onwards in 
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis with the following related parties  
and for the details mentioned herein below 
 
Name of the 
related party 

Nature of 
relationship 

Particulars of contract Amount of 
transactio
n 

Intime Knits 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Company in 
which 
Director is 
Interested 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 30 Cr 

Black Gold 
Leasing Pvt. Ltd.  

Promoter 
Group Entity 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 60 Cr 

R.Piyarellal Pvt. 

Ltd. 
Promoter 
Group Entity 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 10 Cr 

B.L.R. Knits Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Promoter 
Group Entity 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 15 Cr 

Suditi Design 
Studio Limited  

Subsidiary Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 50 Cr 

Suditi Sports 
Apparel Limited  

Subsidiary Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 75 Cr 

SAA & Suditi 
Retail Pvt. Ltd.  

Joint 
Venture 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 50 Cr 

Chendur Dress 
Manufacturers 
Pvt. Ltd.  

Company in 
which 
Director is 
Interested 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 10 Cr 

Chendur 

Enterprises 

 

Entity in 
which a 
Director is 
interested 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 10 Cr 
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Chendur Inc.  Entity in 
which a 
Director is 
interested 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 10 Cr 

Velaxmi Exim 

LLP  

Entity in 
which a 
Director is 
interested 

Sale/Purchase of Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including related & other 
Job work services 

Rs. 10 Cr 

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 
Director be and is hereby authorized to agree, make, accept and finalize all such terms, 
conditions, modifications and alterations as it may deem fit within the aforesaid limits and 
to do all acts, deeds and things in this connection and incidental as the Board in its absolute 
discretion to enable this resolution, and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may 
arise in this regard.” 

 
5. To authorize board of directors under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

borrowings upto the revised limit of Rs. 50 crores:   
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board 

and its Powers) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof, for the time being in force, and the Articles of Association of the Company, consent 

of the Members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 

Committee of the Board), to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time, by way of 

loans, credit facilities, debt instruments or in any other forms, any such sum or sums of 

money (either Indian or foreign currency) from Banks, Financial Institutions, Bodies 

Corporate, Companies, firms or any one or more persons on such terms and conditions and 

with or without security as the Board may think fit, notwithstanding that monies to be 

borrowed together with monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary 

loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed 

the aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the 

Company, provided that the total amount so borrowed (other than temporary loans from the 

Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) and outstanding at any point of time 

shall not exceed a sum of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only); 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the director be and is hereby authorised to take from time 

to time all decisions and steps necessary, expedient or proper, to execute such documents 

and to perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, 

desirable or expedient for giving effect to this Resolution.”  
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6. To authorize the board of directors under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 

for creation of charge upto the revised limit of Rs. 50 crores: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (a) and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in 

accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any Committee 

constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board) to create such charges, 

mortgages and hypothecations in addition to the existing charges, mortgages and 

hypothecations created by the Company, on such movable and immovable properties, both 

present and future, for the purpose of due payment of the principal and/or together with 

interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the Company in respect of 

such borrowings and in such form, manner and with such ranking and on such terms & 

conditions, as the Board may deem fit, in favour of the Lenders / Security Trustee, provided 

that the aggregate indebtedness secured by the assets/properties of the Company shall not 

at any time exceed the aggregate limit of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only);  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do and perform all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things, execute such documents as may be considered necessary, 

desirable or expedient for giving effect to this Resolution.” 

 
         By Order of the Board of Directors of 
                 Suditi Industries Limited 
   
            Sd/- 
 

Date: August 14, 2023          Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj  
Place: Navi Mumbai          Whole time Director & CEO 

              DIN: 00158832 
 

 
Notes: 

1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(‘MCA’), Government of India has permitted to conduct Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) 
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and dispensed 
physical presence of the members at the meeting vide its Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th 
April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th 
May, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated 
8th December, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021, Circular No. 
2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022, and Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 
prescribed the specified procedures to be followed for conducting the AGM through 
VC/OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the 
AGM. 
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2. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) 
and MCA and SEBI circulars, the 32nd AGM of the members will be held through video 
conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and 
participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. The detailed procedure for participating 
in the meeting through VC/OAVM is annexed herewith and the same will also be available 
at the website of the Company at https://suditi.in 
 

3. Members holding shares in Electronic (Demat) form are advised to inform the particulars 
of their bank account, change of postal address and email ids to their respective 
Depository Participants only. The Company or its RTA cannot act on any request received 
directly from the members holding shares in demat mode for changes in any bank 
mandates or other particulars. 
 

4. Members holding shares in physical form are advised to inform the particulars of their 
bank account, change of postal address and email ids to our RTA i.e. Link Intime India 
Private Limited (Unit: Suditi Industries Limited), or the Secretarial Department of the 
Company. 

 
5. Members holding shares in Electronic (demat) form or in physical mode are requested to 

quote their DPID & Client ID or Folio details respectively in all correspondences, to the 
RTA i.e. Link Intime India Private Limited (Unit: Suditi Industries Limited), or the 
Secretarial Department of the Company. 

 
6. Members who have not registered their email IDs with the depository participants, are 

requested to register their email IDs with their depository participants in respect of 
shares held in electronic form and in respect of shares held in physical form, are 
requested to submit their request with their valid e-mail IDs to our RTA at 

evoting@linkintime.co.in/ashok.sherugar@linkintime.co.in or cs@suditi.in for receiving all 

the communications including annual report, notices, letters etc., in electronic mode 
from the Company.  

 
7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as 
amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 
2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well 
as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

8. In compliance with the provisions of section 101 and section 136 of the Act, read with 
relevant Companies (Management and Administration Rules), 2014, and Regulation 36 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations and MCA circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2022-23, are being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email ids are available with the Company/Depositories/RTA. 

 
9. Members may note that the Notice of the 32nd  AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 will also 

be available on the Company’s website at http://suditi.in and websites of the Stock 
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Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Link Intime India 

Private Limited at on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting 

facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

10. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxies by 
the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance 
Slip are not annexed to this Notice. Further, the Route Map is not required to be annexed 
in this to the Notice. 

 
11. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

12. Institutional/Corporate members are encouraged to attend and vote at the meeting 
through VC/OVAM. We also request them to send, a duly certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and 
vote through remote e-voting on its behalf at cs@suditi.in and 

evoting@linkintime.co.in/ashok.sherugar@linkintime.co.in, pursuant to Section 113 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
 

13. In case of Joint Holders attending the AGM, only such Joint Holder who is named first in 
the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

 
14. Only bona fide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of 

Members, will be permitted to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM. The Company 
reserves its right to take all necessary steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-
members from attending the meeting. 

 
15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 
which the Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be 
available for inspection by the Members in electronic mode during the AGM. Members 
who wish to inspect, may send their request through an email at cs@suditi.in  up to the 
date of AGM. 

 
16. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voting to 
all the members as per applicable Regulations relating to e-voting. The complete 
instructions on e-voting facility provided by the Company are annexed to this Notice, 
explaining the process of e-voting with necessary user id and password. Members who 
have cast their vote by remote-voting prior to the meeting may attend the meeting but 
will not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
17. The Company has fixed Friday, September 22, 2023 as Cut-off date for determining the 

eligibility of Members entitled to vote at the AGM. The remote e-voting shall remain open 
for a period of 3 days commencing from Tuesday, September 26, 2023 (9.00 am) to 
Thursday, September 28, 2023 (5.00 pm) (both days inclusive). The Register of Members 
and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Saturday, 
September 23, 2023 to Friday, September 29, 2023 (both days inclusive). 
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18. The Company has appointed M/s. Mitesh J. Shah & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries (FCS 10070; CP 12891) as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in fair 
and transparent manner. 

 
19. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement 

shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company/Electronic mode 
during normal business hours (10:00 hours to 16:00 hours) on all working days except 
Saturdays and Sundays, up to and including the date of the AGM of the Company. 
Members who wish to inspect, may send their request through an email at cs@suduiti.in  
up to the date of 32nd AGM. 

 
20. Information required under Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial 

Standards – SS 2 on General Meetings, for directors seeking appointment/re-appointment 
at the AGM is furnished as annexure to this Notice. The Directors have furnished 
consent/declarations for their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Act 
and rules made thereunder. 
 

21. In line with the measures of “Green Initiatives”, the Act provides for sending Notice of 
the AGM and all other correspondences through electronic mode. Hence, Members who 
have not registered their mail IDs so far with their depository participants are requested 
to register their email ID for receiving all the communications including Annual Report, 
Notices etc., in electronic mode. The Company is concerned about the environment and 
utilizes natural resources in a sustainable way. 
 

22. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 
companies can only be transferred in demat form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except 
in case of request for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holding to demat form. Members can contact the Company or our RTA for assistance in 
this regard. 

 
23. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic mode are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical mode can submit their PAN to the Company / to our RTA. 
 

24. Members who hold shares in physical mode in multiple folios in identical names or joint 
holding in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to our 
RTA, for consolidation into a single folio. 
 

25. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform our RTA / respective depository 
participants, immediately of any: 

a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 
b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, 

branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code 
number, if not furnished earlier. 
 

26. Pursuant to section 124 of the Act (as notified on the 7th September, 2016), and Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, all shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive 
years or more, shall be transferred to an IEPF Account established by the Central 
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Government, within thirty days of such shares becoming due for transfer to the Fund. The 
Members whose shares/ unclaimed dividend have been transferred to the Fund may claim 
the shares or apply for refund by making an application to IEPF Authority in Form IEPF 5 
(available on www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as decided by the Authority from 
time to time.      
 

27. Pursuant to the provisions of section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 and section 125 of 
the Companies Act 2013 (with effect from 7th September, 2016), the Company has 
transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividend amount for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2015 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the 
Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (Uploading of Information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with 
Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company is in the process of uploading the details of unpaid 
and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the 31st March, 2023 on the website 
of the Company as also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(www.mca.gov.in).  

 
28. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 

MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

The remote e-voting begins on Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at 9.00 am and ends on 

Thursday, September 28, 2023 at 5.00 pm (both days inclusive). The remote e-voting module 

shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday, 

September 22, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be 

in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 

date. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access 
e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 

home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this 
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will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  

Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.j

sp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 

by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 

ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, 

you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 

App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 

mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 
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Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option 

will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 

further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user 

your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 

evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 

visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 

registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 

by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-

Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 

and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 

be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 
2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33  

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 

securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to 
NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 
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c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password 

to login and cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open 
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 

need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 

vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to compliance@mjshah.com with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 

clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 

their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 

of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request 

to Mr. Tejas Chaturvedi at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@suditi.in  

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
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PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to cs@suditi.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. 
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote 
e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” 
placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 
the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions 

in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at cs@suditi.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
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29. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting 

through InstaMeet: 
 

i. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request on or before September 22, 
2023, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail ID, mobile 
number, questions to ask, if any, at: enotices@linkintime.co.in and cs@suditi.in.   

ii. The company reserves the right to restrict the speakers at the AGM to only those Members 
who have registered themselves, depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

iii. Only those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

iv.  Members will get confirmation on first cum first basis. First 10 Speakers registered with 
the Company will only be allowed to speak at the AGM for a duration upto 3 minutes each 

v.  Members will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the 
meeting. 

vi. Members are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will 
announce the name and serial number for speaking. 

vii. Please remember your speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by 
switching on video mode and audio of your device 

viii. Please note that the Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and 
number of speakers, depending upon availability of time as appropriate for smooth 
conduct of the AGM. 
 

The Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance on or before September 22, 2023 mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, e-mail ID, mobile number at: cs@suditi.in. These queries will be 
replied by the Company suitably by e-mail.  
 

          By Order of the Board of Directors of 
Suditi Industries Limited 

   
            Sd/- 
 

Date: August 14, 2023          Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj  
Place: Navi Mumbai          Whole time Director & CEO 

            DIN: 00158832 
Registered Office:  
C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Industrial Area, 
Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai 
Dist. – Navi Mumbai – 400705, Maharashtra, India. 
CIN: L19101MH1991PLC063245  
Website: https://suditi.in 
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STATEMENT IN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
Statement with respect to items under Special Business covered in the Notice of Meeting are 
given below: 
 
ITEM NO. 3 

 
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director with effect from 
November 1, 2023 to hold the said position upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. As per 
the provisions contained under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the “Additional 
Director” so appointed shall hold office upto the date of the next Annual General Meeting or the 
last date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held, whichever is earlier.  
 
Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 10.00 a.m. to 4.00p.m. up to the 
date of the Meeting. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC”) and 

pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 150 and 152 of the Act, read with rules framed 

thereunder, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on November 1, 2022, appointed Ms. Krina 

Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company for term of 5 consecutive years November 1, 2023 till October 30, 2028 subject to the 

approval of the members of the Company. 

The Company has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 
signifying the candidature of Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala as an Independent Director of the Company. 
The Company has also received a declaration of independence from her. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) fulfils the conditions 
specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations for her 
appointment as Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the management of 
the Company.  Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) is not disqualified from being appointed as 
a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has received from 
her allstatutory disclosures /declarations including her consent to act as an Independent 
Director. The letter of appointment is available for inspection by members at the registered 
office of the Company between 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. on any working day of the Company. 

 
Having regard to the qualification, knowledge and experience, the appointment of Ms. Krina 
Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) as an Independent Director will be beneficial and in the interest of 
the Company. A brief profile and other information as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by ICSI is provided as Annexure to this 
Notice.  

 
None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in 
any way, concerned or interested in the resolution set out at item No. 3 of the Notice. The 
Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 3 of the Notice for 
approval of the members. 
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ITEM NO. 4 
 
Your Company generally enters into transaction with related parties as prescribed in the table of 
resolution mentioned in item no. 4 in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, 
which falls in the definition of “Related Parties” under the Act and/or SEBI Listing Regulations.  
 
Section 188 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
(“Rules”) exempts a Company from obtaining consent of the Board of Directors and the members 
in case the related party transactions entered into by the Company are in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length basis.  
 
However, Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations requires approval of the members for all 
material related party transactions, even if they are entered into in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length basis, if the same is not exempt under Regulation 23(5) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. For this purpose, a transaction with a related party is considered material if 
the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions 
during a financial year, exceeds one thousand crore or ten percent of the annual consolidated 
turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements, whichever is lower.  
 
Accordingly, your Company may have to enter into material related party transactions in future 
requiring shareholders’ approval, the framework of which has been recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in the text of the resolution 
proposed in the Notice. In the light of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of your Company has approved the proposed transactions along with annual limit that 
your Company may enter into with the related parties the name of the related parties, name of 
the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any and nature of relationship is 
mentioned in the resolution.  
 
The respective transactions have been carried out on arm’s Length basis and all factors relevant 
to the respective transactions have been considered by the Board. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, other than 
Shri. Pawan Agarwal and Shri Rajagopal Raja Chinraj and their relative's and their group of 
shareholders, is in any way, concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item No.4 of 
the Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution as special resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice 
for approval by the shareholders. The Board recommends the special resolution as set out at 
item No. 4 for approval by unrelated shareholders of the Company in terms of Section 188 (3) of 
the Act and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. 
 

ITEM NO. 5 & 6: 
 
Keeping in view the Company’s long term strategic and business objectives, the Company may 
need additional funds. For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance 
from various Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/ or any other lending institutions and/or 
Bodies Corporate and/or such other persons/ individuals as may be considered fit, which, 
together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans 
obtained from the Company’s bankers in ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate 
of the paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company. Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors cannot borrow more than the aggregate amount of 
the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves at any time except with the consent of 
the members of the Company in a general meeting. 
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In order to facilitate securing the borrowing made by the Company, it would be necessary to 
create charge on the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company. Further, 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for the power to sell, lease or otherwise 
dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company subject to 
the approval of members in the General Meeting. 
 
None of the Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are 
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item 
No.5 & 6 in the notice.  
 
The Board recommends the resolution as special resolution as set out at Item No. 5 & 6 of the 
Notice for approval by the shareholders. 
 

 
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF AGM 

(Details of Directors retiring by rotation, seeking appointment / re-appointment / fixation of 
remuneration at the ensuing Annual General Meeting) 
 

 (Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India) 

 
Name of Director Mr. Pawan Agarwal Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala 

Director Identification 
Number (DIN) 

00808731 07040989 

Date of Birth 19/02/1965 02/03/1985 
Age 58 years 38 years 
Date of the first 
appointment on the Board 

September 12, 1991 November 1, 2022 

Qualifications Bachelor’s degree in commerce Post graduate 
Expertise in specified field Has more than three decades 

of experience in the finance, 
marketing & other related 
matters particularly with 
reference to expertise in the 
manufacture and export of 
garments 

Wide experience in 
Finance, administration 
and policy management of 
business & marketing with 
industry expertise in the 
family business 

Number of Board Meetings 
attended in the Financial 
Year 2022-23  

7 4 

Directorships held in other 
Companies * 

1. Intime Knits Private 
Limited 

2. Suditi Sports Apparel 
Limited  

3. SAA & Suditi Retail 
Private Limited  

4. Suditi Design Studio 
Limited 

5.  Black Gold Leasing 
Private Limited 

None 
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6. Lehar Investrade Private 
Limited 

7.  R Piyarelall Private 
Limited 

Chairman/ Member in the 
Committees of 
the Boards of other 
companies in which he is 
Director * 

None None 

Shareholding in the 
Company as on 31st March, 
2023 

1,68,13,398 67,600 

Relationship with 
Directors, Managers and 
Key Managerial Personnel  

Mr. Pawan Agarwal is not 
related to any director of 
the Company 

Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala 
is not related to any 
director of the 
Company 

Terms & Conditions of 
appointment or re- 
appointment /  

As per the resolutions at 
item No. 2 of the Notice 
convening Annual General 
Meeting 

As per the resolutions 
at item No. 3 of the 
Notice convening 
Annual General Meeting 

Remuneration details 
(Including Sitting Fees & 
Commission) 

Refer Corporate 
Governance Report 

Refer Corporate 
Governance Report 

 
* Directorship includes Directorship of Public Companies & Committee membership includes 

only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Public Limited 
Company (whether Listed or not). 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT: 
 

Dear Shareholders, 
 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Second Annual Report of the Company 
together with the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the Profit and Loss Account for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
Financial Results: (Consolidated and Standalone)        
                                                   (Rs.in Lakhs) 

                                                                                              
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
The Consolidated and Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 
31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS), the 
relevant provisions of sections 129 and 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Act”), Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations”), which have been reviewed by the Statutory 
Auditors. 
 
Standalone Performance: 
The total revenue of the Company for F.Y. 2022-2023 stood at Rs. 9242.53 Lakhs. The Company 
incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 1069.89 Lakhs for F.Y. 2022-23, as compared to loss of Rs. 2896.40  
Lakhs in the previous year. 
 
 

 

Particulars 

Standalone  Consolidated 

 Current 

Year      

Previous 

Year      

Current 

Year 

Previous 

Year  

Revenue from operations 9242.53 9840.72 10278.29 10328.32 

Other Income 1373.87 68.24 1374.07 85.64 

Gross income 10616.40 9908.96 11652.36 10413.96 

Profit before Interest and Depreciation (569.42) (1693.27) (1149.83) (1631.73) 

Finance Cost 314.86 441.69 325.34 452.15 

Profit after Finance Cost (884.28) (2134.96) (1475.17) (2083.88) 

Depreciation 185.60 134.94 187.70 136.57 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1069.88) (2269.90)) (1662.87) (2220.45) 

Provision for Tax 0.00 0.00 00 00 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax before extra 

ordinary items and exceptional items 

(1069.89) (2269.90) (1662.87) (2220.45) 

Exceptional Items 0.00 626.50 00 763.47 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax  (1069.89) (2896.40) (1662.87) (2983.92) 

Deferred Tax provision 16.56 3.70 (15.61) 2.10 

Comprehensive income/Net of expenses 11.34 3.84 1.35 3.84 

Net Profit/(-) Loss (1041.98) (2896.26) (1751.71) (3504.87) 

Earning Per share     

Basic (3.95) (16.50) (6.66)  (19.94) 

Diluted (3.95) (16.50)  (6.66)  (19.94) 
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Consolidated Performance 
The total consolidated revenue of the Company for F.Y. 2022-23 stood at Rs.  10278.29 Lakhs. The 
company incurred a consolidated loss after tax of Rs. 1662.87 Lakhs for F.Y. 2022-23. 
 
Dividend:  
 

Due to the prevailing market conditions and losses, the Board has not recommended any Dividend 
for the financial year. In terms of Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of the 
Company has adopted a Dividend Distribution Policy, which can be accessed on the website of the 
Company at https://suditi.in. 
 
Share capital: 
 
During the year, the company has allotted 88,13,168 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of 
Rs.20/- each on rights basis on September 28, 2022. Further, during the year, the company has not 
issued any shares under SUDITI ESOP PLAN 2011 to employees. During the year under review and in 
the previous year, the company has neither granted any options nor issued any shares to any 
employees under SUDITI ESOP 2011. The Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
certifying that the Company's Stock Option Plans are being implemented in accordance with the 
ESOP Regulations and the resolution passed by the Members, would be available for inspection 
during the meeting in electronic mode. 

 
As on March 31, 2023, the paid-up share capital of the company is Rs. 26,36,72,910/- divided into 
2,63,67,291 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and similarly the reserves have also increased by 
Rs.17,62,63,360/- due to receipt of share premium from the issue which is now accounted under 
other Equity. 

 
Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies: 

The company has two subsidiary companies namely M/s. Suditi Design Studio Limited and M/s. 

Suditi Sports Apparel Limited. Apart from this, the company has entered into a joint venture 

arrangement with PAS Lifestyles Pvt. Ltd a company promoted by celebrity actor Ms. Anushka 

Sharma and her family. The joint venture company M/s. SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt Ltd. The statement 

containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or subsidiaries 

and joint venture (AOC-1) is annexed and marked as Annexure I. 

Deposits: 
 
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 & 76 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. 
 
Directors & the Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
The list of Directors & KMP’s of the company as on March 31, 2023 are as follows: 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director (DIN) Designation  

1 Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj (DIN: 00158832) Whole Time Director (ED) & CEO 
2 Mr. Pawan Agarwal (DIN: 00808731) Non-Executive Director 
3 Mr. Vivek Gangwal (DIN: 01079807) Independent Director 
4 Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) Independent Director 
5 Mr. Hari Gopalkrishnan Company Secretary 
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During the year under review, following changes took place in the composition of the Board of 
Directors: 

   Mrs. Sanjula Sanghai (DIN 00049344), Independent Woman Director, has resigned from the 
board with effect from October 14, 2022 due to pre-occupation with her family business.  

   Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN 07040989) has appointed as an Additional Independent woman 
Non- Executive Director on November 1, 2022. 

 
Post financial year, the following changes took place in the composition of Board & KMPs: 
   Further, the tenure of the appointment of Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj (DIN: 00158832) was 

due for renewal from June 1, 2023 and accordingly the company has re-appointed Mr. 
Rajagopal Raja Chinraj as Whole Time Director (ED) & CEO with effect from June 1, 2023 
for a further period of 3 years. Since Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj is above 70 years the 
company has passed Special Resolution. These appointments are further approved by the 
shareholders by passing special Resolution through Postal Ballot on December 30, 2022.  

   Mr. Gopalkrishnan, Company Secretary has retired from the services of the company on 
May 31, 2023 

   Mrs. Shweta Gupta has been appointed as Company Secretary cum compliance officer 
w.e.f. August 16, 2023. 

 
Further in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Director 
and Chairman of the board Mr. Pawan Agarwal (DIN 00808731) retires by rotation in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for reappointment.  
 
Presently, the company has not appointed any Chief Financial Officer (CFO) due to the prevailing 
situation and also on account of utilization of capacity at lower levels. The company will be taking 
necessary measures in this regard after recording some improvement in the operation. Till then the 
CEO will be overseeing the functions.  
Further, none of the Directors are disqualified for being appointed as the Director of the Company 

in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

A declaration by an Independent Director(s) that they meet the criteria of independence as 

provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been submitted to the 

Board every year in the first Board Meeting of the year including for the year 2022-23. An 

independent director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a 

Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment for next five years on passing of a special 

resolution by the Company and making disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report. In the 

opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Regulations 

and are independent of the management.  

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
 
The Directors hereby confirm - 
i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
ii) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit 
of the Company for that period; 

iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act, for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  
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iv) That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
v) That the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and; 

vi) That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and were operating effectively;  

Meetings of the Board: 

The company prepares a calendar of meetings in advance and circulated to the Directors. During 

the year seven Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The 

details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the 

Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 including the 

amendments and the rules. 

Board Evaluation: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Independent Directors have 

reviewed the performance of all the Directors including their own performance, as well as the 

evaluation of the working of its Audit committee, Nomination & Remuneration committee and 

other Compliance Committees. The details are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 

The related party transactions undertaken by the company are within the permissible limits of the 

special resolution passed by the shareholders and as a matter of prudence all the transactions with 

related parties are also placed before the Audit Committee for its review. An omnibus approval 

from the Audit Committee was obtained for the related party transactions which are though 

repetitive in nature. All the transactions with related parties, entered into during the year under 

review were in the Ordinary Course of Business and on Arms’ Length Basis in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The Audit Committee and the Board, review all the transactions entered into pursuant to the 

omnibus approvals, on a quarterly basis. Approval of the Members of the Company is also obtained 

in case any related party transaction exceeds the prescribed limits and as good corporate 

governance practice, since there may be few transactions that may be carried out in the long-term 

interest of the Company. The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s 

website and can be accessed at https://suditi.in. 

The particulars of contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties at 

arm’s length basis referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 

disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 as Annexure II. 

Particulars of Employees: 

Pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
details are annexed and marked as Annexure III and forms part of the report. 
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Energy, Technology and Foreign Exchange: 
 
The particulars relating to conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 is given in the 
Annexure IV forming part of this report. 
 
Corporate Governance: 
 
A separate section on Corporate Governance and a certificate from the Auditors of the Company 
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34 & 
other applicable Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations), form part of the Annual Report. 
 
Auditors: 
 
M/s. Chaturvedi & partners, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 307068E) were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, at the 31st Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2022, for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. to hold office from the conclusion of 31st Annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the 
financial year 2027.Further, the aforesaid Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not 
disqualified to act as Auditors and are eligible to hold office as Auditors of your Company for 
financial year 2023-24. 
Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with the notes to accounts is enclosed with the 
Financial Statements. The Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on the Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. The Auditors of the Company have not reported any 
fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Secretarial Audit Report:  

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under, Mr. Shivhari 

Jalan, Practicing Company Secretary had been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 

The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed. The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory 

and does not call for any further additional comments since the comments are addressed separately 

in this report. 

Cost Audit: 
 
In view of the new Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules 2014 and amendment thereof, the 
company is now out of the purview of the Cost Audit Report Rules.  
 

Internal Audit & Controls:  

The Company had appointed M/s. Shambu Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants as the internal 

Auditor to carry out the internal audit functions including the task of suggesting and implementing 

the board’s recommendations to improve the control environment for the year 2022-23. Their 

scope of work covered review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of 

operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control 

strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners and suitable 

corrective actions taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve 

efficiency in operations.  
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Vigil Mechanism: 

The company has set up a Vigil Mechanism in pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 for directors and employees to report genuine concerns from time to 

time. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been made available to each and every stakeholder and the 

Company has designated a senior official as Vigilance Officers to support the Vigilance Mechanism 

functions.  

Risk management policy: 

A statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management policy for Company 

including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, that in the opinion of the Board may 

threaten the existence of the company is given separately in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements: 

The company has an internal control mechanism in operation to ensure that the financial 

statements prepared are true, fair and transparent. Apart from this there is an internal audit 

mechanism also apart from the direct supervision of the Management to ensure that all the 

financial transactions executed are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in line 

with the budget plans. All the major variations or deviations are appropriately dealt with by the 

internal Audit department as well as by the Audit committee. The Company had earlier engaged an 

independent Chartered Accountant Firm to develop an improved and strong standard operating 

procedures and the same is followed. According to the management the present mechanism 

followed in the company is adequate and effective. The details are also stated in the Management 

discussion and analysis report annexed herewith and form part of this report.  

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the companies Act: 

There are no loans/guarantee or security provided during the year under review. Details of loans, 
guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of 
the Notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.  
 
Extract of Annual Return: 

As required pursuant to section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, the annual return is 
placed on the website of the company. 
 

Obligation of company under the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition, and Redressal) Act 2013: 

 

The company has set up a separate internal compliance committee under the “Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”. The Internal 

Complaints Committee is empowered to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work 

place of any women employee. Accordingly, the Company has adopted a policy for prevention of 

Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and the Committee ensures that the said policy is 

properly implemented all over the company. During the year Company has not received any 

complaint of harassment. 
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):  

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has constituted a separate 

committee to formulate the CSR policy and ensure the compliance of the same as per the 

provisions of the Companies act 2013. In view of the substantial losses reported, there is no 

requirement for the company to earmark any amount for the purpose of CSR expenditure.  

However as per the provisions of the Act for the financial year 2019-20, the company is required to 

spend an amount of Rs.7.20 Lakhs in the year 2020-21 and accordingly the company has spent an 

amount of Rs.9.75 lakhs against the same. The surplus spend is carried forward and the same will 

be adjusted against the amount to be spend subsequently. Apart from this, the company needs to 

spend another amount of Rs.9.51 lakhs pertaining to the profits computed based on the Financial 

Results of FY 2018-19. However, in view of the prevailing circumstances the company has not made 

the expenditure of the same. The details are separately provided in the disclosures as per Rule 9 of 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

Transfer of amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund: 

There is an amount of Rs. 6,17,118/- lying unpaid and unclaimed in the unpaid dividend account due 

to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) by November 2023. Further the 

company has also transferred 40012 shares to IEPF. Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor 

Education Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying 

with companies) Rules, 2012. The Company has already filed the necessary form and uploaded the 

details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company, as on the date of last AGM, with 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  

Listing with Stock Exchange: 

 The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the BSE Ltd (Bombay Stock 

Exchange Limited) where the Company’s Shares are listed.  

Statement on compliances of secretarial standards: 

The Board has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards as specified u/s 118 of Companies 

Act, 2013.  

Miscellaneous: 

 During the year, there was no change in the general nature of business of your Company. 

 There are no significant and material orders passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 

 There are no material changes and commitment affecting financial position of the Company 
which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 
2023 and the date of this Report. 

 Your company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 
otherwise; 

 Your Company did not allot any sweat equity shares. Therefore, no disclosures as required 
under Rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. 
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 During the financial year under review, no applications was made or proceeding initiated 
against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 nor any such 
proceeding was pending at the end of the financial year under review. 

 
Appreciation: 
 
Your Company and its Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the support 
and assistance extended by different Central and State Government Departments and Agencies, 
Banks and Financial Institutions, Insurance companies, Customers and Vendors. Your directors are 
thankful to the esteemed shareholders for their continued support and confidence reposed in the 
company and its management. Your directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of 
appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their outstanding and dedicated contribution 
made towards the growth of the Company. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of Suditi Industries Limited 

Sd/- 

Pawan Agarwal 

Chairman 

DIN: 00808731 

 

Place: Navi Mumbai            

Date: August 14, 2023  
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Annexure -I   - FORM NO. AOC -1 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

Part "A": Subsidiaries  
S.No Particulars Amount in Lacs Rupees 

1 Name of the Subsidiary Suditi Design Studio Ltd Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd 
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary 

concerned 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

3 Reporting Currency  INR INR 
4 Share Capital 87 200 
5 Reserves (891.81) (307.39) 
6 Total Assets 207.12 768.47 
7 Total Liabilities 1011.94 875.86 
8 Investments NIL NIL 
9 Turnover 6.02 1203.39 
10 Profit before Tax (305.23) (287.78) 
11 Provisions for taxation NIL 0.95 
12 Profit after Taxation (305.23) (288.73) 
13 Proposed Dividend NIL NIL 
14 % of Shareholding 100 60 
  
Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 
S.No Name of Associates or Joint Ventures SAA and Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 
1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date  March 31, 2023 
2. Date on which the Joint Venture was associated 19-09-2017 
3. 
 

Shares of Joint Ventures held by Company on the year end 
No.  50000 
Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 500000 
Extent of Holding (in percentage) 50% 

4. Description of How there is significant influence 50% of the shareholdings & 50% of Board 
Members are nominated by the Company 

5. Reason why the Associate/Joint Venture is not 
consolidated 

Not applicable as it is Consolidated as per 
Equity method 

6. Networth attributable to shareholding as per 
latest Audited Balance Sheet 

Nil 

7. Profit or Loss for the year (110.45) 
i) Considered in Consolidation Full 
ii) Not considered in Consolidation N.A. 

1.Names of Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations. Nil 
2.Names of Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during year-  Nil 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of Suditi Industries Limited 

Sd/- 

Pawan Agarwal 

Chairman 

DIN: 00808731 

Place: Navi Mumbai  

Date: August 14, 2023  
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      Annexure II 

 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 
b Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 
c Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 
d Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
Nil 

e Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

Nil 

f Date of approval by the Board Nil 
g Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
h Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

Nil 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details (1) Details (2) Details (3) Details (4) 

 
A 

Name (s) of 
the related 
party & 
nature of 
relationship 

Intime Knits 
Pvt. Ltd. 
(Company in 
which a Director 
is Interested) 

Black Gold 
Leasing Pvt. Ltd. 

(Promoter 
Group Entity 

R.Piyarellal 
Pvt. Ltd. 

(Promoter 
Group Entity) 

B.L.R. Knits 
Pvt. Ltd. 

(Promoter 
Group Entity) 

B Nature and 
particulars of 
contracts/arr
angements/tr
ansaction 

Sale/ Purchase 
of Fabrics & 
Finished 
Garments 
including 
related & other 
Job work 
services 

Sale/ Purchase 
of Fabrics 
&Finished 
Garments 
including 
related other 
Job work 
services 

Sale/ Purchase 
of Fabrics & 
Finished 
Garments 
including 
related other 
Job work 
services 

Sale/ Purchase 
of Fabrics & 
Finished 
Garments 
including 
related other 
Job work 
services 

 
c. 

Monetary 
value of the 
contract / 
arrangement 
for financial 
year 2023-24 
and onward 
 

Rs. 30 Crore Rs. 60 Crore  Rs. 10 Crore Rs. 15 Crore 
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d. 

Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

On Arm’s 
Length Basis & 
In ordinary 
course of 
business 

On Arm’s 
Length Basis & 
In ordinary 
course of 
business 

On Arm’s 
Length Basis & 
In ordinary 
course of 
business 

On Arm’s 
Length Basis & 
In ordinary 
course of 
business 

e 
e 

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

In board 
meeting held on 
10.08.2022 for a 
period of 2 
years. Further 
approved by 
shareholders by 
special 
resolution in 
the General 
Meeting held on 
29.09.2022. 

In board 
meeting held on 
10.08.2022 for a 
period of 2 
years. Further 
approved by 
shareholders by 
special 
resolution in 
the General 
Meeting held on 
29.09.2022. 

In board 
meeting held 
on 10.08.2022 
for a period of 
2 years. 
Further 
approved by 
shareholders 
by special 
resolution in 
the General 
Meeting held 
on 29.09.2022. 

10.08.2022 for 
a period of 2 
years also 
approved by 
shareholders 
by special 
resolution in 
the General 
Meeting held 
on 29.09.2022. 

f Amount paid 
as advances, 
if any 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Sr. 

no 

Particulars Details (5) Details(6) Details (7) Details (8) 

a Name (s) of the 

related party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Suditi Design 

Studio Limited 

(Subsidiary) 

Suditi Sports 

Apparel 

Limited 

(Subsidiary) 

SAA & Suditi 

Retail Pvt. Ltd. 

(Joint 

Venture) 

Chendur Dress 

Manufacturers 

Pvt. Ltd. 

(Company in 

which a 

Director is 

Interested) 

B Nature and 

particulars of 

contracts/arran

gements/transa

ction 

Sale/ Purchase 

of Fabrics & 

Finished 

Garments 

including 

related & 

other Job 

work services 

Sale/ Purchase 

of Fabrics 

&Finished 

Garments 

including 

related other 

Job work 

services 

Sale/ Purchase 

of Fabrics & 

Finished 

Garments 

including 

related other 

Job work 

services 

Sale/ Purchase 

of Fabrics & 

Finished 

Garments 

including 

related other 

Job work 

services 

C Monetary value 

of the contract 

/ arrangement 

for financial 

year 2023-24 

and onwards 

 

Rs. 50 Crore Rs. 75 Crore Rs. 50 Crore Rs. 10 Crore 

D Salient terms of On Arm’s On Arm’s On Arm’s On Arm’s 
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the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transaction  

Length Basis & 

In ordinary 

course of 

business 

Length Basis & 

In ordinary 

course of 

business 

Length Basis & 

In ordinary 

course of 

business 

Length Basis & 

In ordinary 

course of 

business 

e Date of 

approval by the 

Board 

In board 

meeting held 

on 10.08.2022 

for a period of 

2 years. 

Further 

approved by 

shareholders 

by special 

resolution in 

the General 

Meeting held 

on 29.09.2022. 

In board 

meeting held 

on 10.08.2022 

for a period of 

2 years. 

Further 

approved by 

shareholders 

by special 

resolution in 

the General 

Meeting held 

on 29.09.2022. 

In board 

meeting held 

on 10.08.2022 

for a period of 

2 years. 

Further 

approved by 

shareholders 

by special 

resolution in 

the General 

Meeting held 

on 29.09.2022. 

10.08.2022 for 

a period of 2 

years also 

approved by 

shareholders 

by special 

resolution in 

the General 

Meeting held 

on 29.09.2022. 

F Amount paid as 

advances, if any 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
  

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details (9) Details(10)  Details (11) 

a. Name (s) of the 
related party & 
nature of 
relationship 

 Chendur 
Enterprises (Entity 
in which a Director 
is 
Interested) 

Chendur Inc. (Entity in 
which a Director is 
Interested) 

Velaxmi Exim LLP 
(Limited Liability 
Firm in which a 
Director is 
Interested) 

b. Nature and 
particulars of 
contracts/arrang
ements/transacti
on 

Sale/ Purchase of 
Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including 
related & other Job 
work services 

Sale/ Purchase of 
Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including 
related & other Job 
work services 

Sale/ Purchase of 
Fabrics & Finished 
Garments including 
related & other Job 
work services 

 c. Monetary value 
of the contract / 
arrangement for 
financial year 
2023-24 and 
onwards 

Rs. 10 Crore  Rs. 10 Crore Rs. 10 Crore 

d. Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transaction 

On Arm’s Length 
Basis & in ordinary 
course of business 

On Arm’s Length Basis 
& 
In ordinary course of 
business 

On Arm’s Length 
Basis & in ordinary 
course of business 

e. Date of approval 
by the Board 

In board meeting 
held on 10.08.2022 
for a period of 2 
years. Further 
approved by 
shareholders by 

In board meeting held 
on 10.08.2022 for a 
period of 2 years. 
Further approved by 
shareholders by 
special resolution in 

In board meeting 
held on 10.08.2022 
for a period of 2 
years. Further 
approved by 
shareholders by 



        

        Suditi Industries Limited 

  

32 

 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of Suditi Industries Limited 

 

Sd/-  

Pawan Agarwal 

Chairman 

DIN: 00808731 

 

Place: Navi Mumbai         

Date: August 14, 2023  

 
 

special resolution in 
the General Meeting 
held on 29.09.2022. 

the General Meeting 
held on 29.09.2022. 

special resolution in 
the General 
Meeting held on 
29.09.2022. 

f. Amount paid as 
advances, if any 

Nil Nil Nil  
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Annexure III 
 
Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014: 

  
A)  Details of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s 

remuneration and other details as required pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

a)   The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees; 
 Executive Director 8.90:1  

b)    % increase in remuneration of each Director, KMP and of %. Increase in median 
remuneration of employees 
 % increase/(decrease) in remuneration of Executive Director = 0%  

              % increase (decrease) in remuneration of KMP = 2%  

              % increase/(decrease in remuneration of median = 11%  

c)   Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March 31, 2023 is 154 
(including Executive Director).  
 

d)  Justification of increase in managerial remuneration (percentile) with that of increase in 
remuneration of other employees: 
 

There is no increase in the remuneration of any Managerial Persons during the year under 

review. The increase which is reflected is mainly due to remuneration paid the managerial 

persons in both the years are not comparable due to the lock-down impact and varying 

remuneration pattern followed during the pandemic period. The revision of the 

remuneration will be considered by the Board after the recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the committee has not made any 

recommendation in view of prevailing economic & market conditions.  

e)   Affirmation that remuneration is as per remuneration policy of the Company.  

 
I, Pawan Agarwal, Chairman of the company hereby affirm that all the employees 

including key managerial personal are paid remuneration as per the remuneration policy 

formulated by the company and approved by the Board. No employee is treated unfairly or 

denied any benefits as may be applicable and payable to him as per the company's 

payment of remuneration policy. 
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B) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further the statement 

showing the requisite information pursuant to the Companies (Appointment of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules 2014 is not annexed herewith as there are no employees covered by the rule 

(2)(i) (ii) & (iii). 

The statement of the name of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn is as under: 

Sr
. 
N
o 

Name 
Designation 
Qualification 
No of shares 
held 

Remuneration  
(incl 
perquisites) 

Nature of 
Employment 

Exp 
(Approx) 

Date of 
commen-
cement 

Last  
Employment 

Whether 
relative  
of any 
Director
/manage
r of 
company 

No. of 
shares 
held 

1. Mr. R. 
Chinraj 
Designation: 
Whole time 
Director 
Dob: 
25.03.1950 
Qualification
: B. Tech 

1969227 Non-
contractual 

47 
years 

01.08.2003 Kasha 
Synthotics 
Pvt. Ltd 

No 67600 
 

2. Mr. Harsh 
Pawan 
Agarwal 
Designation: 
Head Design & 
Development 
DoB: 
25.11.1991 

3141020 Non-
contractual 

8 years 13.02.2019 Black Gold 
Leasing Pvt L 

Yes 35000 

3. Mr. Hitesh 
Doshi 
Designation: 
General 
Manager-  
Garment 
Dob: 
22.12.1972 

1800000 Non-
contractual 

29 
years 

 16.10.2021 Fractal 
Fashion 

No - 

4. Mr. H 
Gopalkrishnan
Designation: 
Company 
Secretary 
DoB: 
08.07.1957 

1417856 Non-
contractual 

37 
years 

 28.07.2004 Aarey Drugs & 
Pharmaceutic
als Ltd 

No 8000 

5. Mr. Arvind 
Singh 
Designation: 
Head of 
Production 

1098830 Non-
contractual 

20 
years 

 18.03.2013 Fingerprints 
Fashion Pvt 
Ltd 

No - 
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Dob: 
16.07.1977 

6. Mr. Deepak 
Naik 
Designation: 
V. P. Factory 
Dob: 
14.09.1955 

1054902 Non-
contractual 

47 
years 

 01.12.1992 Velo 
Industries 

No  28187 

7. Mr. Prafull 
Chandra 
Jena 
Designation: 
Production 
Manager 
Dob: 
20.05.1975 

953333 Non-
contractual 

27years  10.04.2023 DKI No - 

8. Mr. Siyaram 
Singh 
Designation: 
Dyeing 
Manager 
Dob: 
10.12.77 

881891 Non-
contractual 

23 
years 

 22.04.2017 Innovative 
Textiles Ltd 

No - 

9. Mr. Sanjay 
Thakur 
Designation: 
Plant 
Engineer 
Dob: 
03.07.1973 

867643 Non-
contractual 

27 
years 

 26.3.1996 First Job No 5000 

10 Mr. Rajendra 
Gaikwad 
Designation: 
Quality 
Assurance- 
Dyeing Div 
Dob 
:01.06.1973 

760819 Non-
contractual 

27 
years 

 01.08.2000 Santogen 
Rxpotrs 
Limited 

No - 

11 Mr. Sujeet 
Deena 
Verma 
Designation: 
Commercial 
Manager-
Garment 
Dob: 
03.09.1982 

635511 Non-
contractual 

14years  15.04.2019 Clothing 
Culture Ltd. 

No - 
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C) Any director who is in receipt of any commission from the company and who is a Managing 

Director or Whole-time Director of the Company shall receive any remuneration or commission 

from any Holding Company or Subsidiary Company of such Company subject to its disclosure by 

the Company in the Board’s Report. Nil 

 

D) There are no disclosures to be made as the directors (except the whole time Director), are not 

in receipt of any remuneration or stock options other than sitting fees and reimbursement of 

expenses incurred for attending the meeting. The details are furnished separately in the 

corporate governance report. 

   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of Suditi Industries Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Pawan Agarwal 

Chairman 

DIN: 00808731 

 

Place: Navi Mumbai           

Date: August 14, 2023  
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Annexure IV 

Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Disclosure 
of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules and forming Part of the Directors Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

are as follows: 

a) Conservation of Energy: 

The company lays great emphasis on the energy conservation measures as it plays a significant role 
in the development of any country. The company keeps a close watch on all the energy 
conservation measures practiced in the industry and takes all necessary steps to implement them in 
the manufacturing units of the company to the best possible extent 
 

(i) the steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy 

The Company has been taking continuous 
steps to conserve the energy and minimize 
energy cost at all levels. Regular efforts are 
made for optimization of process 
parameters, improving the operational 
efficiencies and reducing water and energy 
consumption. While undertaking expansion, 
modernization and technological up 
gradation of production facilities, due 
consideration is given to energy efficient 
plant and equipment's with multi product 
capabilities  

(ii) the steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy 

The company is looking into the scope as 
well as the cost of the systems to properly 
assess the prospects of the usage of solar 
energy to support heating and daytime usage 
of lights in the plant. Necessary decision will 
be taken at the appropriate time. 

(iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment’s 

The capital investments on the items 
installed till date are not very significant. 

 
(b) Technology absorption: 
 

(i) the efforts made towards technology 
absorption 

The Company is constantly making efforts to 
adopt latest technology wherever possible to 
improve quality of product, productivity and 
efficiency of the machineries. The Company 
is also at a continuous endeavor to improve 
the efficiency of process by way of deep 
study of new technologies and exchange of 
information with other mills and machinery 
manufacturers. 

(ii) the benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, 

Up gradation of technology is mainly aimed 
towards quality improvement with cost 
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product development or import 
substitution 

benefits. 

(iii) in case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three 
years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)- 

NIL 

(a) the details of technology 
imported 

NIL 

(b) the year of import; NIL 
(c) whether the technology been 
fully absorbed 

NIL 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas 
where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof 

NIL 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on 
Research and Development 

Expenditure on R & D has been shown under 
respective heads of expenditure in the profit 
and loss account as no separate account is 
maintained. 

 
 (c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
                                                                                                                       
  (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

 

Total Foreign Exchange used - 45.72 

Total Foreign Exchange earned (FOB Value) - - 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Of Suditi Industries Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Pawan Agarwal 

Chairman 

DIN: 00808731 

 

Place: Navi Mumbai    

Date: August 14, 2023  
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
1.  COMPANY GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY: 
 
Our corporate governance practices are a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, 

policies, and relationships with our stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our 

corporate governance practices to ensure that we gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders at 

all times. Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and 

sustainably. At Suditi, the Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the 

term. Our disclosures seek to attain the best practices in international corporate governance. We 

also endeavor to enhance long-term shareholder value and respect minority rights in all our 

business decisions. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the Company’s 
overall functioning. The Board provides strategic direction and leadership and oversees the 
management policies and their effectiveness looking at long-term interests of shareholders and 
other stakeholders. The Board, inter alia, reviews and guides corporate strategy, major plans of 
action, risk policy, annual budgets, acquisitions and divestments. It also monitors implementation 
and effectiveness of governance structures. The Board and its Committees provide effective 
governance to the Company. The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with the Company’s 
best interests 
 
In line with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, your Company’s Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board effectively separates the functions of governance and management and 
balances deliverables.   
 

Composition of Board of Directors: 
  
The constitution of the board has a balanced mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors as well 
as Independent Directors with expertise from different fields. The Directors are all persons of 
integrity with `adequate qualifications and experience in different fields like management, 
marketing, finance & technical and administration who upholds ethical standards and assists the 
company in implementing best corporate governance practices. 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Board comprised Four members, consisting of a non-executive and non-
independent Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time Director (CEO & WTD), and two 
independent directors. While all the Board members possess the skills identified. The details of 
composition of the Board as at March 31, 2023, the attendance record of the Directors at the Board 
Meetings held during FY 2022-23 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM),as also the number 
of Directorships, Committee Chairmanships and Memberships held by them in other Public 
Companies, the names of other listed entities where they have Directorship and their category of 
directorship in such listed entities, and  their area of core expertise is given in their respective 
profiles below. 
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Name of the 
Director & date 
of Appointment 
(DOA) 
 

 

NO. of 
shares 
held 

 

Executive 
or Non-
Executive 

 Indep-
endent 
 

 

 

Total No. of 
Directorshi

ps 
(including 

SIL) 

No. of other outside 
Committee 

 

Name of 
the listed 
entities 

where the 
person is 
a director 
(Category 

of 
Directorsh

ip) 

Area of expertise 

Membership Chair-
person 

Mr. Rajagopal 
Raja Chinraj 
DOA: 01/06/2018 

67600 Executive No 2 - - --   Leadership & 
Operational 
Experience 

 Strategy 
Planning 

 Policy Making 
 Risk 

Management 
 Finance &  

Regulator 

 Commercial 
Mr. Pawan Agarwal 

DOA:01/02/2015* 

1,68,13,398 Non-
Executive 

No 8 -- -- --   Strategy 
Planning 

 Finance & 
Regulatory 

 Commercial 
Business   

 International 
Global business 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal 

DOA: 01/04/2019** 

 

NIL Non-
Executive 

Yes 5 -- -- --  Strategy 
Planning 
 Policy Making 
 Risk 
Management 
 Finance & 
Regulatory 

Sanjula Sanghai  
DOA: 31/03/2015 

 

NIL Non-
Executive 

Yes 2 -- -- --  Policy Making 
 Commercial 
Decisiveness 
 International 
Business 
 Management and 
Administration 

Ms. Krina Gaurav 
Gala DOA: 
01/11/2022 

NIL Non-
Executive 

Yes 1 - - -  Strategy 
Planning 
 Policy Making 
 Risk 
management 
 Management & 
Administration 

 

 
 
Note:  
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1. Number of Directorship/Memberships held in other companies excludes 
Directorships/Memberships in Foreign Companies, companies under section 8 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

2. This relates to membership of Committees referred to in Regulation 26(1) of the Listing 
Regulations, viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of all public limited 
companies, whether listed or not and excludes private limited companies, foreign companies 
and companies licensed under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 / Section 25 of the 
Companies Act, 1956; 

3. Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022 has confirmed that that there were no 
other material reasons other than those provided in the resignation letter submitted to the 
Company. 

4. Appointment of Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala (DIN: 07040989) as an Additional Director (Non –Executive 
Independent Category) of the Company w.r.f. November 1, 2022, who will hold office up to the 
date of the 32nd Annual General meeting and the Board has recommended her appointment to 
the shareholders. 

5. There are no inter-se relationship between the Directors 
*    (Director on the Board since 12/09/1991) 
**   (Director on the Board since 16/06/2003) 
 
  
Brief profile of Directors: - 
 
The brief profile of the Directors as on March 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 
Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj (Whole Time Director & CEO - Executive & Non- Independent 
Director) 
Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj holds B. Tech (Textiles) and Post Graduate Diploma in Wet Processing 
from Mumbai, has wide experience in the textile industry spanning of more than 45 years. He has 
expertise in the technical and commercial aspect of product development and Research. 
 
Mr. Pawan Agarwal (Non -Independent & Non-Executive Director) 
Mr. Pawan Agarwal holds bachelor’s degree in commerce and has more than three decades of 
experience in the finance, marketing & other related matters particularly with reference to 
expertise in the manufacture and export of garments.  
  
Mr. Vivek Gangwal (Non-Executive Independent Director) 
Mr. Vivek Gangwal is qualified chartered accountant with vast experience and knowledge in the 
various aspects of primary and secondary market operations. He has expertise in portfolio 
management, and equity research. His experience span over a period of more than 20 years and 
also traveled for enhancing and sharing his wide business experience.  
  
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala (Non-Executive Independent Director) 
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala is a post graduate with wide experience in Finance, administration and 
policy management of business & marketing with industry expertise in the family business. 

   
Further, the independent director who resigned, has confirmed that there is no other material 
reason other than those provided in the resignation letter submitted to the Company. 
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Independent Directors: 
 
The Independent directors play a very important part in the implementation of Corporate 
Governance policies and practices as per the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws in the company. They 
continue to enrich the Board with their vast experience and knowledge and take active part in the 
deliberations during the meetings of the Board and committees. Apart from the statutory and 
regulatory obligations, the independent directors are also responsible for ensuring that the 
company discharges its obligation towards the society and the public in general.  
 
All Independent Directors meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
and are independent of the management.  The terms and conditions of appointment of 
Independent Directors were set out in the appointment letter issued to the Director at the time of 
his/her appointment/re-appointment as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
The terms and conditions as mentioned in the appointment letter is disclosed on the Company’s 
website https://suditi.in  
  

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the 

Company was held on 14th February, 2023 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors 

and members of the management. 

Familiarization program for Independent Directors:  

 

The Company believes that the Board be continuously empowered with the knowledge of the latest 

developments in the Company’s business and the external environment affecting the industry as a 

whole. To this end, the Directors were given brief update on the global business environment, as 

well as all business areas of the Company including business strategy, risks opportunities. Periodical 

updates on performance/ developments giving highlights of performance of the Company including 

the developments/ events having impact on the business of the Company are also sent to all the 

Directors.  

In the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in Companies 

Act, 2013 & SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015 and are independent of the management. The details are 

available on the Company’s website https://suditi.in . 

Board Meetings: 
 
The Board Meetings are held at least once in every quarter to review the quarterly results and 
additional meetings are held whenever required to consider any specific agenda of items. The 
Board meeting dates are decided in consultation with the Board members. The schedule of the 
Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are communicated in advance to the Directors to 
enable them to attend the meetings. Senior Management Personnel & Auditors are also intimated 
to attend the Board meeting, to provide additional inputs to the items being discussed by the 
Board. As a system, in most cases, information to Directors is submitted along with the agenda 
papers well in advance of the Board meeting. Inputs and feedback of Board Members are taken and 
considered while preparing agenda and documents for the Board meeting. Sufficient time is 
allocated for discussions and deliberations at the meeting. 
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Seven Board Meetings were held during the financial year. The details of Board meetings and 
attendance of Directors at these meetings and at last Annual General Meeting (AGM) are given 
below: 
 
Name of 
Director 

Attendance at the Board Meetings held on Attendance 
at AGM held 
on 29/09/22  30/05/22 10/08/22 30/08/22 01/11/22 14/11/22 24/11/22  14/02/23 

Mr. Pawan 
Agarwal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Vivek 
Gangwal 

Yes Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Ms. Sanjula 
Sanghai* 

Yes Yes Yes Yes NA# NA# NA# No 

Mr. 
Rajagopal 
Raja 
Chinraj 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mrs. Krina 
Gala ** 

NA # NA# NA# Yes Yes Yes Yes NA# 

Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
          ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
     # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to the date of joining of the Director. 
 
 
3. BOARD COMMITTEE: 
 
In compliance with the requirements under various Acts & Regulations the Board has constituted 
the following committees Viz., Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Risk 
Management Committee, Compensation committee and also a Right Issue Committee. This enables 
the board to provide specialized and focused attention relating to all the activities falling within 
the terms of reference including the assignments of its Members thereof. 
 
I. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee 

comprises of three directors as members out of which two third are Independent Directors and all 

directors are financially literate.  

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board of Directors to the Audit Committee are as 
contained under Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Committee. None of 
recommendations made by the Audit Committee were rejected by the Board. Mr. Vivek Gangwal, 
Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 
September 29, 2022. 
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The Audit Committee has met 4 times during the year under review. The composition and 
attendance of each member of the committee at the Audit Committee meeting held is as under:  
 

Name of Director Category 
 

Attendance at committee Meetings held on 
 
30/05/22 10/08/22 14/11/22 14/02/23 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal 
(Chairman) 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj  Executive Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Ms. Sanjula Sanghai * Non-Executive 
Independent 

Yes Yes NA# NA# 

Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala ** Non-Executive 
Independent 

NA# NA# Yes Yes 

Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
         ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
         # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to the date of joining of the Director. 
 
II. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
Pursuant to section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, nomination and remuneration committee must fulfill 

below mentioned points: 

o The committee shall comprise of at least three directors;  

o All directors of the committee shall be non-executive directors; 

o At least two third of the directors shall be independent directors. 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends the compensation payable to 

the Executive/Managing Director. Further the Committee is also entrusted with the task of 

periodical review of the compensation structure and policies of the Company. The terms of 

reference include the matters specified under Part D of Schedule II to Regulation 19(4) of Listing 

Regulations as well as under section 178 of the Companies Act 2013. Based on the Recommendation 

of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board have formulated and adopted 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 

During the year under review the committee met once in the year on October 14, 2022. The 
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at March 31, 2023 and the 
attendance of each member at the Committee Meetings are as given below: 
 

           Name Category No of Meeting attended 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal  
(Chairman) 

Non-Executive Independent 1 

Mr. Pawan Agarwal  Non-Exective Non-Independent 1 
Ms. Sanjula Sanghai* Non-Executive Independent 1 
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala ** Non-Executive Independent NA# 

 
Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
         ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
          # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to the date of joining of the Director. 
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Performance Evaluation: 

The Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors 

including the Chairman individually as well as the evaluation of the working of the Audit, 

Nomination and Remuneration and other Compliance Committees pursuant to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 17 of the Listing Regulations. The evaluation is based broadly 

on certain parameters like level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgement 

safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance 

evaluation of the Independent Directors was also carried out by the Board. The performance 

evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 

Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 
Remuneration Policy: 
 
The committee reviews the compensation policy on periodical intervals. The company strives hard 

to ensure that the compensation levels of the Company are in line with industry standards followed 

in the area. The policy on appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes as well as independence of director and all other related matters 

including succession plans and other policies adopted by the Board are also available on the web 

site of the company.  

 
The Committee also reviews the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management 
Employees based on certain criteria as approved by the Board. The compensation policy of the 
company also includes performance-oriented incentives for various staff and executives in the 
organization. The remuneration and other compensations to the Whole-time Director is 
recommended by the Committee in accordance with the various provisions of the Companies Act 
and Rules & regulations.  
 
Non-Executive Directors have not drawn any remuneration from the Company except sitting fees 
for the Board Meetings attended by them. Details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 is given below: 
 

There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Non-Executive Directors 

(including Independent Directors) and the Company except sitting fees drawn by Independent 

Directors for attending the meeting of the Board, Committee(s) thereof and Independent Directors’ 

Meeting 

Name of the Director Salary Perquisites 
& Other 
benefits 

Sitting 
Fees 

Reimburse
ment 
of expenses 

Total 

1. Mr. Pawan Agarwal - - 9000 - 9000 
2. Mr. Rajagopal Raja 
Chinraj* 

1850001 119226  108000 2077227 

3. Mr. Krina Gaurav Gala - - 3000 - 3000 
4. Mr. Vivek Gangwal - - 9000 - 9000 
5. Ms. Sanjula Sanghai - - 6000 - 6000 
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Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors: 

Non-Executive Directors are paid only Sitting Fees & Travelling and other conveyance expenses for 

attending the Board & Committee Meetings. Apart from this they are not entitled for any 

remuneration. The policy related to managerial remuneration approved by the Board is placed on 

the website of the Company. 

Terms of appointment & remuneration – CEO & Wholetime Director: 

There is no change in the remuneration payable to Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Wholetime Director 

& CEO from the date of appointment in view of reporting significant losses and also due to the 

impact of pandemic conditions and the unfavourable market conditions. The terms continued to 

remain same while re-appointing him from June 1, 2023. The remuneration payable to Mr 

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj is furnished below: -   

Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj  

Period of Appointment  5 years 
Salary Grade  Rs.155000/- P.M 
Allowances  Reimbursement of conveyance expenses 
Perquisites  Nil 
Retrial Benefits  As per company Rules 
Performance Bonus  Only Annual Bonus  
Sign-on Amount Nil 
Deferred Bonus Nil 
Minimum Remuneration Same as above 
Notice Period & Severance Fees Nil 
Other Nil 

 

III. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
Pursuant to section 178 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulation, 

2015 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee must fulfill below mentioned points: 

o Chairman of this committee shall be a non-executive director; 

o At least three directors, with atleast one being an independent director, shall be members of 

the Committee. 
 

The Stakeholders Committee has met twice on 27/07/2022 and 28/03/2023 during the year under 

review. The composition & attendance of each member at Committee meeting held is as under:  

            Name Category Attendance at the 
meeting 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal (Chairman) Non-Executive Independent 2/2 
Mr. Pawan Agarwal  Non-executive 2/2 
Ms. Sanjula Sanghai* Non-Executive Independent 1/1# 
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala* Non-Executive Independent 1/1# 

 
Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
         ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
          # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to date of joining of the Director. 
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The Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer for complying with the 

requirements of SEBI Regulations and the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India. 

The terms of reference cover the matters specified under Part D of Schedule II to Regulation 20(4) 
of Listing Regulations as well as under section 178 of the Companies Act 2013.  
Number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of Shareholders / Investors during 
the year under review and their break-up is as under:  
 

Number of Investor complaints pending at the beginning of the year : 2 
Received during the year : 2 
Disposed during the year    : 4 
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year : NIL 

 
 
IV. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) is constituted in accordance with 

the requirements under the Companies Act 2013 and its rules and amendments. The composition of 

the Committee is as under:  

            Name Category No. of Meetings attended 
during the year 

Mr. Pawan Agarwal 
(Chairman) 

Non-Executive Non Independent  1 

Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Executive 1 

Ms. Sanjula Sanghai* Non-Executive Independent NA# 
Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala** Non-Executive Independent 1 

 
Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
          ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
         # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to the date of joining of the Director. 
 
The committee has met once on February 14, 2023 and reviewed the status of the CSR under the 

revised CSR policy to advise the board.  

V. COMPENSATION COMMITTEE: 

The board has constituted a Compensation Committee to administer the SUDITI Employees Stock 

Option Plan 2011 (SUDITI ESOP PLAN 2011). The committee had met once during the year under 

review on 14th February 2023 to take stock of the plan. The directors have recorded their presence 

and the committee taken note of the present status of the pending stock options and decided to 

keep all the plan on hold in view of the prevailing circumstances. The committee manages the 

entire aspects of the SUDITI ESOP PLAN 2011 and advises the Board from time to time on the 

various issues related to the SUDITI ESOP PLAN 2011.  

            Name Category No. of Meetings attended 

During the year 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal 

(Chairman) 

Chairman 1/1 

Mr. Pawan Agarwal  Member 1/1 
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Ms. Sanjula Sanghai* Member NA# 

Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala** Member 1/1 

 
Note: *Ms. Sanjula Sanghai resigned with effect from 14.10.2022. 
         ** Mrs. Krina Gaurav Gala was appointed with effect from 01.11.2022 
         # No. of committee meetings indicated is with reference to the date of joining of the Director. 
 
VI.  RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

The policy on risk assessment and minimization procedures as laid down by the Board are 

periodically reviewed by the Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee and the Board. The 

policy facilitates identification of risks at appropriate time and ensures necessary steps to be taken 

to mitigate the risks. Brief details of risks and concerns are given in the Corporate Governance 

Report and Management Discussion and Analysis Report.  

The objectives and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises: 

 Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management; 
 Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with the legal requirements and SEBI 

guidelines; 
 Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions and ownership 

as per a pre-defined cycle; 
 Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation as well as 

reporting of risks. 
 

The Management does not envisage any risk associated with commodity price or foreign exchange 

and there are no hedging activities undertaken by the Company. The board has accepted the 

recommendations of the committees which are mandatorily wherever applicable and required to 

be accepted. The composition of the Risk Management Committee as at March 31, 2023 and details 

of the Members participation at the Committee Meeting are as under: 

 
Name of the Member Category Attendance at the Risk 

Management Committee 
meeting held on 
14/11/2022  

Mr. Pawan Agarwal 
(Chairman)  

Executive, WTD & CEO  Present 

Mr. Vivek Gangwal Non Executive, Independent Director Present 
Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Executive Director Present 
Mr. Vikas Sharma Head Marketing Present 

 

The board has accepted the recommendations of all the committees which are mandatorily 

required to be accepted.  
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4. POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES: 

 
Policies 
 
(a)Prevention of insider trading: 
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The code 
is reviewed in line with the amendments in the regulations from time to time. The Code requires 
pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares beyond a specified limit and prohibits the 
purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the 
period when the Trading Window is closed. The Company Secretary & Head Compliance is 
responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees 
during the year under review have confirmed compliance with the Code. The Board approved policy 
is available on the Company’s website https://suditi.in  
 

(b) Code of Conduct: 
 
The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management (the Code) for all the Board members and all the employees in the management grade 
of the Company. The Code covers amongst other things the Company’s commitment to honest & 
ethical personal conduct, fair competition, corporate social responsibility, sustainable 
environment, health & safety, transparency and compliance of laws & regulations etc. The Code of 
Conduct is hosted on the website of the Company. All the Board members and senior management 
personnel have confirmed compliance with the code. A declaration to that effect signed by the 
Whole time Director and CEO is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report of the Company. 
 
(c) Disclosure on Related Party Transaction:  
 
All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, and 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations during the financial year were in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (except as stated in AOC - 2 (Annexture D to Directors' Report)). There were 
no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year which were in 
conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS 24) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements. The Board approved 
policy for related party transactions is available on the Company’s website https://suditi.in  
 

(d) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:   

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism has been formulated by the Company with a view to 

provide a mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to approach the Chairman of the 

Audit Committee of the Board to report genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or 

suspected fraud or violation of the Code of Conduct or ethics policy or any other unethical or 

improper activity including misuse or improper use of accounting policies and procedures resulting 

in misrepresentation of accounts and financial statements and incidents of leak or suspected leak 

of unpublished price sensitive information. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest 

standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operations and in order to maintain these 

standards, the Company encourages its employees who have genuine concerns about suspected 

misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair 
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treatment. The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism also provides safeguards against 

victimization or unfair treatment of the employees who avail of the mechanism. The Company 

affirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

(e) Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace: 

 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and towards this end, 

has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. All employees 

(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under the said policy. An Internal 

Complaints Committee has also been set up to redress complaints received on sexual harassment.  

 

Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

a) No. of complaints filed during the financial year 2022-23: NIL 
b) No. of complaints disposed of during the financial year 2022-23: NIL  
c) No. of complaints pending as on 31.03.2023:  NIL 
 
(f) Archival Policy: 

 

The Listing Regulations mandates listed entities to formulate a Policy for preservation and 

archiving of documents pursuant to Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. It is in this context that the Document Retention and Archival 

Policy (“Policy”) is being framed and implemented. The Archival Policy of the Company is available 

on company’s website. 

 

Objectives of the Policy: 

The objective of this Policy is to classify the documents in two categories i.e. 

(i) Documents which need to be preserved permanently & 

(ii) Documents which need to be preserved for a specific period of time. 

 

(g) Subsidiary Monitoring Framework:  

 

All the Subsidiary Companies of the Company are Board managed with their Boards having the 

rights and obligations to manage such companies in the best interest of their stakeholders. As a 

majority shareholder, the Company nominates its representatives on the Boards of subsidiary 

companies and monitors the performance of such companies. The Company has the two material 

subsidiaries, whose income is more than 10% of the consolidated income of the Company during the 

previous financial year. A policy for determination of Material Subsidiaries has been formulated and 

has been posted on the Company’s website https://suditi.in   

Sr. no Name of the material 

subsidiary 

Date and place of 

incorporation  

Name & Date of appointment of 

statutory auditor 

1 Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd 18.03.2015, Navi 

Mumbai, Thane. 

Chaturvedi & Co. being appointed 

as an auditor of the Company in 

the AGM  held on 30.11.2021 
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2 Suditi Design Studio Ltd 23.03.2015, Navi 

Mumbai, Thane. 

Chaturvedi & Co. being appointed 

as an auditor of the Company in 

the AGM held on 30.11.2021 

 

Disclosures: 

(a) Non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets and no strictures 

or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the SEBI or by 

any statutory authority on any matters related to capital markets during the last three (3) 

years:   

2021-22 There was a delay in the submission of Audited financial results for the fourth. 

Quarter and year ended 31st. March 2021. Accordingly, the Stock Exchange BSE 

Limited has issued notice asking the company to pay the penalty amount of 

Rs. 277300/- pertaining to the delay in the submission of the Audited Results 

for the fourth Quarter/year ended March 31, 2021. 

There was a delay in the submission of Un-Audited Financial Results for the 

first quarter ended 30th.June 2021.  Another notice asking the company to pay 

Rs.100300/- pertaining to the delay in the submission of the Un-Audited 

Financial Results for the first Quarter/period ended 30th.June 2021.  

2020-21 There was a delay in the submission of Audited financial results for the fourth. 

Quarter and year ended 31st. March 2020. The Company has received email 

from BSE Ltd on August 18, 2020 for levy of fines of Rs. 94,400. 

There was a delay in the submission of Un-Audited Financial Results for the 

first quarter ended 30th.June 2020.  Another notice asking the company to pay 

Rs.59,000/- pertaining to the delay in the submission of the Un-Audited 

Financial Results for the first Quarter/period ended 30thJune 2021.   

 

Apart from these cases, there were no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 

Exchange, SEBI or any statutory authority on any matters relating to capital markets during the last 

3 years. The company has complied with all mandatory requirements stipulated under the 

provisions of the Listing regulations as amended from time to time.  

(b) Utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as 

specified under Regulation 32 (7A):  

During the year under review, the company had raised Rs. 2643.95 lakhs/- through right issue of 

equity shares of Rs.10 each at premium of Rs. 20/- each on September 28, 2022. The proceeds of 

the right issue have been utilized to repay borrowings of the Company. All the proceeds of the said 

issue have been fully utilized. Apart from the above, the Company has not raised any other funds 

through Preferential Issue or Qualified Institutional Placement as specified under Regulation 32 

(7A). 
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5. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

 

The status of adoption of discretionary requirements of Regulation 27(1) as specified under Part E 

of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, is provided below: 

i. Non-Executive Chairperson’s entitlement to maintain Chairman’s Office and reimbursement of 

expenses incurred: The Company does have a Non-Executive Chairperson.  

ii. Shareholders’ Rights: The Quarterly, Half Yearly, Nine Monthly and Annual financial performance 

including summary of significant events are published in the newspapers, communicated to the 

stock exchanges and also posted on the Company’s website. 

iii. Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company’s financial statement for the financial year 

2022-23 does not contain modified audit opinion. 

iv. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee. 

 6. FEES PAID TO THE STATUTORY AUDITOR AND ALL ENTITIES IN THE NETWORK FIRM/NETWORK 

ENTITY OF WHICH THE STATUTORY AUDITOR IS A PART: 

 
The total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors for all services rendered by them to the company and 
its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis amounts to Rs.8.15 Lakhs. 
 

7. LOANS AND ADVANCES BY COMPANY OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES TO FIRMS/COMPANIES IN WHICH 
DIRECTORS ARE INTERESTED: 
 
Name of the Company  Amount INR/Crore Name of the Director 

interested  
Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. 
(Unsecured Loan) 

450 Cr Mr. Pawan Agarwal 

 

 

8. NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:  

There are no instances of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report as 

mentioned in sub-paras (2) to (10) of Para (C) of Schedule V. The Company has been regularly 

submitting the quarterly compliance report to the Stock Exchanges as required under Regulation 27 

of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
 
9.  COMMUNICATION AND RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS: 
 
Timely disclosure of consistent, comparable, relevant and reliable information on corporate 
financial performance is at the core of good governance towards this end 
 
(a) Quarterly/Half Yearly/Nine Monthly/ Annual Results:  
 
The Quarterly, Half Yearly, Nine Monthly and Annual Results of the Company are intimated to the 
Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board.  
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b) Publication of Quarterly/ Half Yearly/Nine Monthly/Annual Results:  
 
The Quarterly, Half Yearly, Nine Monthly and Annual Results of the Company are published in the 
prescribed proforma within 48 hours of the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they 
are considered, in the Business Standard in English and Navakal/Mumbai Lakshdeep daily in 
Marathi. Apart from this, announcement of General meeting, E-voting and book closures are 
published in the newspapers. 
 
(c) Website:  
 
The Company’s website https://suditi.in contains a separate dedicated section where information 
for shareholders is available. The Quarterly, Half Yearly, Nine Monthly and Annual Financial 
Results, annual reports, investor forms, stock exchange information, shareholding pattern, 
corporate benefits, polices, investors’ contact details, etc., are posted on the website in addition 
to the information stipulated under Regulations 46 & 62of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The latest official press 
releases are also available on the website. 
 
(d) Filing with BSE “Listing Centre”:  
 
Pursuant to Regulation 10 (1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, BSE has mandated the Listing Centre 
as the “Electronic Platform” for filing all mandatory filings and any other information to be filed 
with the Stock Exchanges by Listed Entities. BSE also mandated XBRL submissions for Financial 
Results, Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 
Report & Voting Results etc. All the data relating to financial results, various quarterly, half yearly, 
nine monthly and annual submissions/disclosure documents etc., have been filed 
Electronically/XBRL mode with the Exchange on the “Listing Centre” (http://listing.bseindia. 
com). 
 
(e) Annual General Meeting: 

(a) The details of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held during the preceding three years and 
the Special Resolutions passed there at, are as under: 

 

AGM 
Date and Time Venue of AGM 

Special Resolutions Passed 

31st September 29, 

2022 at 3.30 

p.m. 

Virtual meeting 

through VC/OAVM 

1) Sale/Disposal of property at Navi Mumbai 
2) Approval of Related Party transactions. 
 

30th November 16, 

2021 at 3.30 

p.m. 

Virtual meeting 

through VC/OAVM 

1) Alteration of Articles of Association. 
2) Shifting the Registered office of the 

company from A-2 Shah Nahar Estate. 
Unit no.23/26, Lower Parel Mumbai-
400013 to C-253/254, TTC Industrial 
Area, MIDC, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi 
Mumbai-400705.  

3) Authorization to the Board to undertake 
certain Related Party Transactions. 

29th December 30, 

2020 at 3.30 

p.m. 

Virtual meeting 

through VC/OAVM 

 

No special Resolution was passed 
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b) Passing of Special Resolutions by Postal Ballot vide notice dated November 24, 2022: 

  During the year, the company has passed two special resolutions seeking the approval of 

the shareholders for the appointment of Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala as an independent woman 

director and the re-appointment of Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj as Whole Time Director (ED) 

and CEO with effect from June 1, 2023 vide postal ballot on December 31, 2022.  

  The remote e-voting schedule commenced from December 1, 2022 at 9.00 am and 

concluded on December 30, 2022 at 5.00pm. The consolidated report on the result of the 

postal ballot through remote e-voting for approving the aforementioned resolutions was 

provided by the Scrutiniser by its report dated December 30, 2022.  

c)  Shiv Hari Jalan & Co. Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. FCS 5703, CP No. 

4226) acted as the ‘Scrutiniser’ to conduct the postal Ballot /e-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner.  

d) Procedure For Postal Ballot 

  All the aforesaid Postal Ballots were conducted by the Company as per the provisions of 

Sections 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Rules framed 

thereunder and General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated 

December 31, 2020, 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, and 

3/2022 dated May 5, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  

  None of the Businesses proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

require passing of a special resolution through Postal Ballot. 

(f) General Shareholders’ Information 

Annual General Meeting: 
Date and time Friday, September 29, 2023 at 03.00  P.M. 
Venue Through Video conference (VC)/ Other Audio 

Visual Mens (OVAM) 
Book Closure September 23, 2023 to September 29, 2023 
 
Financial Calendar (Tentative): 
The financial year of the Company starts from the 1st day of April and ends on 31st day of March of 

the next year. Our tentative calendar for declaration of results for the financial year 2023-24 are 

as given below. In addition, the Board may meet on other dates as and when required: 

First Quarter : second week of August 
Second Quarter/Half year : second week of November 
Third Quarter : Second week of February 
FourthQuarter/Annual  : End of May (Audited Results) 

 
Dividend payment: 
Nil 
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E-Voting Facility to members: 

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide 

members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 

electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).  

Listing on Stock Exchanges: 
The Company’s equity shares are listed on The BSE LTD (Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd). Phiroze 
Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 
 
Listing fees: 
The Annual Listing fee for the financial year has been paid to BSE Ltd. (The Bombay Stock 
Exchange) 
 

Delisting:  

Delisted from Ahmadabad Stock Exchange and applied for delisting of shares from the Calcutta 

Stock Exchanges. (Delhi already closed). 

Stock Code: 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (521113) 

The ISIN Number is: 

INE691D01012 (NSDL & CDSL) 

Share transfers: 
Transfer of shares in physical form is not permitted as per the new amendments issued by SEBI in 

this regard. Similarly, Dematerialisation requests are also processed within 21 days from the date 

of the receipt to give credit if the shares through the depositories. In compliance with the Listing 

Agreement with the Stock Exchange and the Listing regulations, every six months, a practicing 

Company secretary audits the system of Transfers and a certificate to that effect is issued. The 

Stakeholders Relationship committee is entrusted with the task and the details of the committee 

are stated separately in the report. 

Nomination facility for shareholding: 
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available for 
Members in respect of shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form are requested 
to contact the Registrar & Transfer Agency of the Company. Members holding shares in 
dematerialized form should contact their Depository Participants (DP) in this regard. 
 
Permanent Account Number (PAN): 
Members who hold shares in physical form are advised to contact R&T Agents as SEBI has made it 
mandatory that a copy of the PAN card of the transferee/s, members, surviving joint holders / 
legal heirs be furnished to the Company while obtaining the services like issue of duplicate share 
certificates. 
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Payment of dividend through National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS): 
The Company has not recommended any dividend for the year 2022-23. Regarding the unpaid 
dividend members are requested to contact R&T agents for claiming the amount subject to the 
provisions of the Rules & Regulations. 
 
Dematerialization and Liquidity: 
The Company’ has arrangement with both National Securities Depository Ltd. & Central Depository 
Services (India) Ltd. The Company is taking all steps to dematerialize the entire Share capital and 
the members are advised regularly. 
  
The break-up of equity shares held in Physical and Dematerialised form as on March 31, 2023 is 
given below: 

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage 
Physical Segment 576360 2.18% 
Demat Segment 
NSDL 16977159 64.39% 
CDSL 8813772 33.43% 
Total 26367291 100.000% 

 
Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023: 
Category 
From    - To 

No. of 
Holders 

% of total 
holders 

Total Shares % of issued 
capital 

Upto 5000   
5001 – 10000 
10001 – 20000 
20001 – 30000 
30001 – 40000 
40001 – 50000 
50001 – 100000 
100001 and above  

6979 
64 
43 
16 
11 
7 
11 
16 

97.6494 
0.8955 
0.6017 
0.2239 
0.1539 
0.0979 
0.1539 
0.2239 

1927495 
478715 
650203 
399097 
388084 
306157 
782969 
21434571 

7.3102 
1.8156 
2.4659 
1.5136 
1.4718 
1.1611 
2.9695 
81.2923 

              Total: 7147 100 26367291 100 
 
Market Price Data: 
Source (Website – bseindia.com) 

                                                The Stock Exchange, Mumbai. 

Month Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Monthly Volume 

April, 2022 40.00 51.65 3,55,404 

May, 2022 35.95 44.50 1,38,072 

June, 2022 33.65 41.00 72,181 

July, 2022 28.85 36.00 20,630 

August, 2022 26.10  38.85 1,87,974 

September, 2022 26.65 37.30 15,73,934  

October, 2022 29.35  34.85 8,23,913  

November, 2022 27.50  35.70  6,68,321  

December, 2022 22.00  30.15 2,35,765 

January, 2023 22.00 26.00  1,35,378 

February, 2023 15.50 26.40 3,75,287 

March, 2023 16.10  22.00 6,44,579 
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Stock Price Suditi v/s BSE Sensex: 
(Source-R&T Agents) 
 

 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: 
As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) regulations, quarterly audit of the 
Company’s share capital is being carried out by an independent external auditor (Practicing 
Company Secretary) with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and 
held in physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The Auditors’ Certificate in regard to the 
same is submitted to BSE Limited and is also placed before Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
and the Board of Directors. 
 
Details of Demat/unclaimed Suspense Account:  
There are no details to be furnished in respect of Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense 
account. 
 
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs, Warrants or Convertible Instrument, conversion dates & likely impact 
on equity:  
There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs,Warrants or any Convertible Instrument as on March 31, 2023 
 
Complaints: 
The Company has received a letter from its R&T Agent M/s. Link Intime Pvt. Ltd. indicating that 
there are no complaints pending against the Company. 
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Unclaimed Dividend: 
Unclaimed dividend (not due for transfer to IEPF) as on 31st March, 2023 is Rs.15,07,480/-. 
However, there is no unclaimed Dividend account due and pending for transfer to IEPF as on march 
31, 2023, except the dividend distributed in the year 2016 and unclaimed for more than 7 years 
which is due for transfer to IEPF in the month of November, 2023. The Company has already 
circulated notices to those shareholders who have not claimed their dividends informing that the 
shares held by these shareholders are also due for transfer to IEPF. 
 
Share Transfer Agent: 
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West),Mumbai – 400 083. 

Tel: 49186000/49186270 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

 

Registered Office:   
C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705 
 
Plant Location: 
Administrative Office: 
C3-B, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area,Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705. 
 
Factory: 
Unit No1:C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705. 
 
Knitting and Garment Division: 
Unit No.2: C3-B, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705. 
 
Garment Division: 
Unit No.3:Vapi 
 

Address for Correspondence: 
All correspondences shall be addressed to Company’s Share Transfer Agents at address given above. 
In case of any difficulty, shareholders may contact Compliance Officer/Company Secretary Mrs. 
Shweta Gupta or alternatively Mr. Sandeep Gothankar (Authorised Person) (Tel: 67368600/10, 
67368615/20) at the Company’s Secretarial Dept. at C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area, Pawne 
Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai – 400 705. 
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 

to 27 and sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and the details are stated separately including various 

management policies and full Annual Report which are all available on the website of the Company 

https://suditi.in. 

CEO/CFO Certification: 
A declaration from Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj, Whole time Director & Chief Executive Officer (WTD 

&CEO) has submitted necessary certificate to the Board stating the particulars specified under the 

listing regulations 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.  
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Compliance Certificate by Practicing Company Secretary 
The Company has obtained a certificate from the – Mr. Shivhari Jalan, Practicing Secretarial 
Auditor pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations which is annexed herewith. 
 
Compliance Certificate by Auditors: 
The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations which is annexed herewith. 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION AFFIRMING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT 
As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior 
Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 
March 31, 2023. 
 
                                                                           For Suditi Industries Limited 
                     
           Sd/-  
            
Place: Navi Mumbai                                            Rajagopal Raja Chinraj        
Date: August 14, 2023        WTD & CEO      
              (DIN: 00158832)                        
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DECLARATION & CERTIFICATION BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CEO/ CFO. 
 
I, Rajagopal Raja Chinraj, Whole time Director & Chief Executive Officer (WTD &CEO) to the best 
of my knowledge and belief certify that: 
a. I have reviewed the financial statement and cash flow statement for the year ended March 

31, 2023 and to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading. 
ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 

are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 

b. I also certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered 
into by Suditi Industries Ltd., during the year; which are fraudulent, illegal, or in violation 
of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 

c. I along with the Chairman of the company are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal 
control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to 
the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that we have taken or 
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
d. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i)   Significant changes, if any, in internal controls during the year. 
ii) Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statement and 
iii) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the Management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

            
           
                                                                           For Suditi Industries Limited 
             Sd/-  
          
Place: Navi Mumbai                                            Rajagopal Raja Chinraj        
Date: August 14, 2023        WTD & CEO      
               (DIN: 00158832)                        
    



        

        Suditi Industries Limited 

  

61 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Suditi Industries Limited  
C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area,        
Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Suditi Industries Limited having CIN L19101MH1991PLC063245 and having registered 
office at C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Indl. Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe,Navi Mumbai - 400 705 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-
clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 
on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 
Sr. 
No 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in company  

1  Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj     00158832 01.06.2018 
2 Mr. Vivek Kumar Gangwal 01079807 16.06.2003 
3 Mr. Pawan Agarwal  00808731 12.09.1991 
44 Ms. Krina Gaurav Gala 07040989 01.11.2022 
 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.  
 
Place: Navi Mumbai                                                                      For Mitesh J. Shah & Associates 
Date:  August 14, 2023                 Company Secretaries  
          

       Sd/- 
   Mitesh Shah 
                                                                              Proprietor 

                        Practicing Company Secretary  
                        FCS: 10070 
                        CP. No.: 12891 
                        UDIN: F010070E000935027  

        
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members of  
Suditi Industries Limited 
C - 253 / 254, MIDC, T.T.C. Ind. Area,  
Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai,  
Thane - 400705. 

I, Shiv Hari Jalan, Proprietor of Shiv Hari Jalan & Co., Company Secretary in practice have 

conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Suditi Industries Limited (hereinafter called the 

“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 

opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
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(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018;  

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021;  

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to 

the company during the period under review) 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

applicable to the company during the review period) 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 

applicable to the company during the review period) 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018;  

 

 (vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely: 

(a) Factories Act, 1948; 

(b) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and Rules made thereunder; 

(c) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and Rules made thereunder; 

(d) Environment Protection Act, 1986  

(e) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Rules made thereunder. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by 

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 The Company has submitted outcome of Board Meeting held on 30.05.2022 to BSE Ltd with 

delay of 17 minutes in which board has approved and considered the audited standalone 

and consolidated financial result for the quarter and year ended 31.03.2022. 

 The Company has delayed in appointing independent director on the Board of unlisted 

material subsidiaries of listed entity i.e. on 30.12.2022 pursuant to Regulation 24(1) of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 The Company has not appointed Chief Financial Officer as required under Section 203 of 

Companies Act, 2013. 

I further report that: 
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The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent in advance in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and a 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the company had following specific actions having a 

major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

The Company has allotted 88,13,168 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each issued at a premium of Rs.20/- 

on rights basis on September 28, 2022 which has been listed on BSE Limited on October 04, 2022 

with script code 521113 vide BSE Ltd notice dated October 03, 2022. 

 

Place: Mumbai                      For Shiv Hari Jalan & Co. 

Date: 14.08.2023                                                                 Company Secretaries 

UDIN: F005703E000799023                                                 FRN: S2016MH382700 

                                                     

                                                                                                                    

Sd/-              

                                                        

(Shiv Hari Jalan)                                           

Proprietor                                         

FCS No: 5703                                                              

C.P.NO: 4226                                                                                                                      

PR No. 1576/2021 

 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ and forms 

an integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure A’ 

To, 
The Members, 
Suditi Industries Limited 
C - 253 / 254, MIDC, T.T.C. Ind. Area,  
Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai,  
Thane - 400705. 

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 

the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the company. 

 
4. Where ever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 
5. The Compliance of provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standard 

is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedure on test basis. 

 

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of Company nor of 
the efficacy of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

 

 

Place: Mumbai              For Shiv Hari Jalan & Co. 

Date: 14.08.2023                                                                    Company Secretaries 

UDIN: F005703E000799023             FRN: S2016MH382700 

                                                                                                                            

Sd/-                                                                  

(Shiv Hari Jalan)                                         

Proprietor 

FCS No: 5703 

C.P.NO: 4226  

PR No. 1576/2021  
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Certificate of Statutory Auditor on Corporate Governance 

 

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance 

                                             Ref No. : 230814/011/C 

To the Members of SUDITI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 

October, 2022. 

2.  We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Suditi Industries 

Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on 31 March 2023, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 

27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). 

Management’s Responsibility 

3. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. 

This responsibility includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness 

of internal control to ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as 

stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a 

reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion as to whether the Company has complied with 

the conditions of corporate governance as stated in paragraph 2 above. Our responsibility is 

limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor 

an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

5. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable 

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in India, the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 

Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and Guidance 

Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we 

comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control 

(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial 

Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

Opinion 

7. Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations provided to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied, in all material 

respects, with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations 

during the year ended 31 March 2023. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as 



        

        Suditi Industries Limited 

  

67 

 

to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Restriction on use 

8. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and 

may not be suitable for any other purpose. 

 
For Chaturvedi & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 

 
             Sd/- 

 
(Siddharth Punamiya) 
Partner 
Membership No.: 148540 
UDIN: 23148540BGUQOY4993 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 14, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of Regulation 34(2)(e) of Listing Regulations, read with Schedule V(B) thereto, with a view 

to provide an analysis of the business and Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2022-23 and 

should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements, the schedules and notes 

thereto and other information included elsewhere in the Integrated Report.  

The objective of this report is to convey the Management's perspective on the external 

environment and our industry, as well as strategy, operating and financial performance, material 

developments in human resources and industrial relations, risks and opportunities and internal 

control systems and their adequacy in the Company during the FY 2022-23.  

Industry Structure & Development: 

Textile Industry is one of the largest contributors to the country’s exports valuing nearly USD 35.5.5 

billion. India is the third largest exporter of Textiles & Apparel in the world. India’s textiles and 

clothing industry is one of the mainstays of the national economy. In terms of employment, Indian 

textile industry is the second largest employer after agriculture, providing direct and indirect 

employment to nearly 100 million people in India. In keeping with goal of making India’s 

development inclusive and participative, the Government’s central focus has been on increasing 

textile manufacturing by building the best-in-class manufacturing infrastructure, upgradation of 

technology fostering innovation, enhancing skills and traditional strengths in the textile sector. 

The Ministry of Textiles has undertaken several initiatives to support the textile industry in India 

and strengthen its position in the global market, empowering economically disadvantaged people 

and improving infrastructure, plans to encourage sustainable fashion and promote advanced 

manufacturing facilities within India are also underway. The steps like Incubation centres for 

apparel manufacturing for start ups, Production linked incentive (PLI) scheme, PM-Mega Integrated 

Textiles and Apparel Park (PM MITRA), Capacity building scheme (SAMARTH) for textile industry are 

great intitiative taken by the Ministry of textile for creating opportunities and growth in the sector.   

In June 2023, Government has approved R&D projects worth US$ 7.4 million (Rs. 61.09 crore) in 

textile sector and Huge funds in schemes such as Rs. 900 crore (US$ 109.99 million) for Amended 

Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (ATUFS) have been released by the Government in the union 

budget of 2023-24 to encourage more private equity investments and provide employment. 

Opportunities & Threats 

The fashion industry has historically demonstrated tremendous resilience and adaptability. Over the 

years, industry players have successfully navigated challenges and emerged stronger with new and 

innovative methods. The global apparel market expanded at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) 

of 7.0% between 2022 and 2023, from US$ 610 bn to US$ 653 bn. The apparel market is anticipated 

to expand at a 6.2% CAGR to US$830.69bn by 2027. Global apparel retail industry is expected to 

increase at 7% CAGR in the period between 2020 and 2025 with China and USA continuing to be the 
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largest markets in terms of the sales forecast. Besides, trade agreements with United Kingdom, 

other countries in the European Union and Canada are expected to drive robust growth, leading to 

an increase in India’s stake in the global readymade garment trade. 

Sustainable fashion, Gen-Z propelling gender-fluid fashion, development of E-commerce portals, 

customisation, personalisation, of digital technology in textile products, 3D modelling and other 

technologies will be key to driving growth and profitability in the long run. China plus one policy 

adopted by USA / Europe will give a boost to Indian Textile Sector. Economic volatility in Srilanka, 

Pakistan, Bangladesh and Vietnam has played out in favour of India as the world has started looking 

at India as reliable partner for their requirement. 

The textile industry is highly sensitive to global economic conditions and can be significantly 

impacted by global demand and pricing. Rising competition in the market both on the domestic & 

export front, duty free access to competing countries in US & European markets, Rise of demand 

for low-cost products having sustainable and environment - friendly production processes, sustained 

inflationary pressure, cost of raw material and its availability, slowdown in demand & change in 

fashion trends, the geopolitical conflict in Europe, interest rate hikes by Central Banks across the 

world, lower demand in Europe, the UK and USA, extra inventories with traders are some of the 

challenges. Besides this the Company is also exposed to factors such as the change in government 

policies, duties & taxes, availability of power from the grid, availability of labour etc. 

Performance: 

In spite of the continued disturbance due to the economic and market conditions in the prevailing 

situation, the company has maintained the sales business in line with the previous year. However, 

the performance could have been more visible if there were profits from the performance for the 

year 2022-23 in the backdrop of losses reported in the previous year. The company had to account 

for substantial loss on the sale of accumulated inventory of retail division stocks and because of 

these the company reported substantial losses for the financial year.  

            (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars    2022-23    2021-22 Percentage Change 

Total Sales (Domestic) 9242.53 9840.72 -6.08 

Other Income  1373.87 68.24 1913.29 

            Total: 10616.40 9908.96 7.14 
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 Key Ratios:  

Particulars  2022-23 

(Standalone) 

2021-22 

 (Standalone) 

2022-23 

(Consolidated) 

2021-22 

(Consolidated) 

Debtors Turnover 2.64 2.68 3.53 3.13 

Inventory Turnover 6.84 3.43 5.48 3.14 

Interest coverage Ratio (2.36) (4.13) (4.11) (5.59) 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.03 (1.67) (0.04) (0.20) 

Operating profit margin (%) (7.01) (18.41) (11.47) (24.27) 

Net Profit margin (%) (0.11) (0.29) (0.15) (0.34) 

Return on net worth (%) 0.02 0.02 (0.01) (0.20) 

Current Ratio 1.09 0.80 0.73 0.70 

 

Earnings per share: 

The Company’s earnings per share for 2022-23 are Rs. (3.95) as against Rs. (16.50) during 2021-22. 

Detailed analysis of ratio are given separately in the notes to the accounts. 

Outlook: 

The Company envisions a positive outlook for its future, aspiring to increase its business. The focus 

is on establishing long term strategic partnerships that offer enhanced visibility into the business 

and drive a consistent stream of revenue. This enables the Company to transition from transactional 

orders to value-accretive businesses, ultimately driving higher margins and improved return ratios 

in the long term. Adapting to the dynamic economic and fashion landscape, the Company continues 

to evolve and build resilience against market upheavals. While acknowledging the near-term 

challenges that may impact growth, the Company anticipates a positive outlook. As a global 

platform, we remain dedicated to strengthening our capabilities, accompanied by a gradual 

increase in profitability. We, therefore, look at the future optimistically. 

Risk and Concerns: 

There are various risks and concerns associated with the textile and apparel industry such as 

Regulations, Competition, Business risk, Technology Obsolescence, Retention of talent, cyber 

security etc. Price fluctuation, interrupted availability of raw material, high inventory and rising 

input cost remain the major concern for the industry. As business passes on the rising cost due to 

rise in input prices, consumer sentiments are getting affected and the demand is being further 

contracted. 

Internal Controls & Systems:  

Company has in place robust Internal Control system to maximize the effectiveness and efficiency 

by including activities that are tailored to the nature, size and complexity of the entity. The 

Company follows proper hierarchy for reporting of routine activities. The company has set up 

adequate internal control and systems to ensure that all the functions and procedures followed are 
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effective and any major revenue leakage or wastage of resources are timely checked and 

controlled. The Company implements and manages efficient internal control systems to ensure that 

all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, by 

maintaining proper records and reports in a timely manner. There is regular evaluation of all the 

Internal Controls Systems and procedures and it is also reviewed by Internal Auditors through 

checking, inspection and verification. Apart from this the company has also adequate internal 

financial control systems that include a risk based framework to ensure orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, safeguarding assets and accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and assurance on reliable financial information. 

Internal Audit  

Internal Audit at the Company is an independent and objective activity designed to provide 

assurance to senior management and add value by identifying opportunities to deliver business 

benefits and improvements to internal controls. It helps us accomplish our objectives by bringing a 

systematic and disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of processes, 

controls, and governance. The internal audit function carries out a focused and risk-based annual 

internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. 

Human Resources  

We take pride in fostering an inspiring workplace with an agile and high-performance culture to 

attract, develop and retain the best talent. Human Resources are capital of the Company. It could 

be invested through education and training which leads to an improvement in the quality and level 

of production. The Company has always given importance for developing individuals as well as 

teams. The system followed is transparent and performance based and it endeavors to retain, 

develop and provide better working environment to the employees by providing an atmosphere of 

trusteeship, competition and challenge, thereby providing opportunities for personal and 

professional growth through training and ample career enhancement opportunities. The Company 

organizes and provides requisite training to its employees from time to time and periodical 

appraisal and rewarding systems are in put well in place. The Company has shown full commitment 

towards employees, investors, consultants and all related personnel by providing safe-working 

conditions along with other welfare measures.  

As on 31st
 March, 2023, the number of permanent employed is 154 (including Executive Director). 

Cautionary Statement: 

All the statements and observations stated in the Management Discussion and Analysis & other 

reports, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, data information and estimates may be 

“forward looking” statements within the meaning of applicable securities, laws, and regulations. 

Therefore, the actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important 

factors that could make a difference to your Company’s operations include economic conditions 

affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the domestic and international markets, changes in 

the Government regulations, tax laws, statutes, and other incidental national and international 
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factors. By their nature, forward-looking statements require the Company to make assumptions and 

are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the assumptions, 

predictions and other forward-looking statements will not prove to be accurate. Readers are 

cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward looking statements as a number of factors could 

cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ materially from those expressed in 

the forward-looking statements. 

 

     By Order of the Board of Directors of 
                   Suditi Industries Limited 
   
          Sd/- 

 
Date: August 14, 2023                            Mr. Rajagopal Raja Chinraj  

Place: Navi Mumbai            Whole time Director & CEO 

                 DIN: 00158832   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

          Ref no. 230530/005/R 
 
To,  
THE MEMBERS OF  
SUDITI INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
 
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SUDITI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the period ended on that date, the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the financial statements”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, 
of total comprehensive loss (including other comprehensive income) for the period ended on that 
date, Changes in Equity and its Cash flows for the year then ended.  
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 

of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters: 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant 

assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These 

matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation 

of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Key Audit matter description How the scope of our audit responded to the 

key audit matter 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers: 

(Refer to Significant 

accounting policies para 4(b).) 

Revenue from contracts with customer is 

recognized upon transfer of control of 

promised goods and is measured at the 

transaction price received or receivable, 

net of returns and allowances, trade 

discounts and volume rebates, based on 

contractually defined terms. In some cases, 

discounts estimated will be determined on 

sale of goods by the customers. 

Also, in certain cases the Company has 

contracts with customers which entitle 

them to right of return. At year end, 

number of returns, and discounts that have 

been incurred and not yet settled with the 

customer are estimated and accrued. 

Estimating the amount of accrual at year-

end is considered a key audit matter due to 

the judgements required to be made by 

management. 

 

The audit procedures included but were not 

limited to:  

--Assessment of the processes of the Company for 

adoption of the new accounting standards. 

--Selecting a sample from each type of the 

contracts with the customers, and testing the 

operating effectiveness of the internal control, 

relating to identification of the distinct 

performance obligations and determination of 

transaction price. Carrying out a combination of 

procedures involving enquiry and observation, re-

performance and inspection of evidence in 

respect of operation of these controls. 

--Testing the relevant controls including access 

and change management controls of information 

technology systems, which are relevant for 

appropriate measurement and presentation of 

revenue and related account balances. 

Performing following procedures on the samples 

selected: 

--Reading, analysing and identifying the distinct 

performance obligations in these contracts. 

--Comparing these performance obligations with 

that identified and recorded by the Company.  

--Testing sample of revenues with the 

performance obligation specified in the 

underlying contracts. 

--Carrying analytical procedure for reasonableness 

of revenue disclosed by segments. 

--Evaluating the appropriateness of adequate 

disclosures in accordance with the standards.   

Inventory valuation: (Refer to Significant 

Accounting Policies para 4 j) 

As described in para (j) of the Significant 

Accounting policies and Notes 40, 41 and 

42 on Inventories, the Company carries 

We obtained a detailed understanding and 

evaluated the design and implementation of 

controls that the Company has established in 

relation to inventory valuation. 

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness 
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inventory at the lower of cost and fair 

value less costs to sell. The Company 

provides for changes in value based on 

estimated inventory usage. This 

methodology relies upon assumptions made 

in determining appropriate provisioning 

percentages to apply to inventory 

balances. 

of management’s assumptions applied in 

calculating the value of inventory provisions by: 

–– verifying the value of a sample of inventory 

items to confirm whether they are held at the 

lower of cost and net realizable value, through 

comparison to vendor invoices and sales prices; 

–– using data analytics to identify unusual 

inventory usage characteristics, completing 

assumption tolerance testing and recalculating 

the provision in totality. 

Contingent liabilities: (Refer to Note 53) 

The Company has ongoing legal matters 

relating to previous corporate transactions 

which require management judgement to 

be applied in order to determine the likely 

outcome. 

Judgement is required in assessing the 

nature of these exposures and their 

accounting and disclosure requirements. 

 

 

In assessing the potential exposures to the 

Company, we have completed a range of 

procedures including: 

–– assessing the design and implementation of 

controls in relation to the monitoring of known 

exposures; 

–– reading Board and other meeting minutes to 

identify areas subject to Company consideration; 

–– meeting with the Company’s internal legal 

advisors in understanding ongoing and potential 

legal matters impacting the Company; 

–– reviewing the proposed accounting and 

disclosure of actual and potential legal liabilities, 

drawing on third party assessment of open 

matters. 

Allowance for Credit Losses: (Refer to 

Significant Accounting Policies para 4(v) 

(ii)(f) and Note no: 60) 

The Company applies the ‘simplified 

approach’ which requires expected lifetime 

losses to be recognised from initial 

recognition of the trade receivables. The 

Company uses historical default rates to 

determine impairment loss on the portfolio 

of trade receivables adjusted to reflect 

current and estimated future economic 

conditions of its customers, their industry 

and geography of operations. At every 

reporting date these historical default 

rates are reviewed and changes in the 

Our audit procedures to test the effectiveness of 

controls over allowances for credit loss includes 

the following: 

•• Trade Receivables ageing report as on balance 

sheet date 

•• Development of the expected credit model for 

the allowance for credit losses, including 

consideration of the current and estimated future 

economic conditions. 

•• Completeness and accuracy of information 

used in the estimation of probability of default 

•• Status of recovery of trade receivables as on 

the report date out of the total outstanding as at 
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forward-looking estimates are analysed. In 

calculating expected credit loss, the 

Company also considers other related 

information for its customers, including 

credit periods, to estimate the probability 

of default in future and has considered 

estimates of possible effects from any 

uncertain events/litigations etc. The 

Management has exercised significant 

judgement in estimating the allowance for 

credit losses making it a key audit matter. 

 

March 31, 2023 

•• Verification of computation of the allowance 

for credit losses 

•• Testing the arithmetical accuracy and 

computation of the allowance prepared by the 

Management. 

•• Testing the allowance for credit loss through 

alternate scenarios, including profiling of 

customers based on their attributes with various 

sensitivities around the assumptions and 

reviewing the possible effects of any uncertain 

events/ litigations to validate the Management 

estimates. 

 

Other Information: 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the annual report— Directors Report, Management Discussion & Analysis and 

Corporate Governance Report-- other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement of 

the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  

The Chairman’s Statement, Directors Report, Management Discussion & Analysis and Corporate 

Governance Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

When we read these reports, if we conclude that the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 

charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the laws and regulations.  

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income/loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
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the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting  frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the standalone financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Company.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing 

(SA’s) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”) and on the basis of such checks of the books of accounts and records of the Company 
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we 
give in the Annexure A hereto, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the said Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Rules 
issued thereon. 

 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 

2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in Annexure B. 

 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the 
Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i.       The Company’s pending litigation comprise of proceedings pending with Local Body  Tax 

and Excise Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and 
proceedings and disclosed the contingent liabilities in its financial statements. The 
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact 
on its financial position. (refer Note No.53 for details on contingent liabilities)  

 
ii.      The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
iii.      There has been no delay in transferring amounts which were required to be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
iv.       (a) The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign 
entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding that the lntermediary shall whether 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.  

 

(b) The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the company 

from any person(s) or entities including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with the 

understanding that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate beneficiaries.  
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Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representations given by management under the 

above sub-clauses contain any material mis-statement. 

v.       The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend in the current year. Accordingly, 
reporting on matters specified in sub-clause (iii) of Rule 11 (e) is not applicable. 
      

vi.       As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the 
Company only with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. 

 
For Chaturvedi & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 

 
Sd/- 

 
(Siddharth Punamiya) 

Partner 
(Membership No.: 148540) 

UDIN: 23148540BGUQOB4943 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2023 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Suditi Industries 
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that: 
 
1)  
a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  quantitative 
  details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment except for those under  installation. 
 (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

 
b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our  examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant and 
Equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature  of its assets. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
c. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the title deeds of land and building comprising of the Right-to-Use 
Assets  disclosed in the standalone financial statements are not held in the name of the Company. 
The details are as follows:  

 
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 

( in lakhs) 
As at 31st March 
2022 

( in lakhs) 
Right of use assets – Land &  Buildings   
Balance at the beginning of the year 0 - 
Additions for the year 838.53 - 
Amortisation charge for the year (48.22) - 
Balance at the end of the year 790.31 - 
 
 
d. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Right-of use of 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Hence, para 3(i)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company 

 

e. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.  
  
 
2) (a) As explained to us, the inventories of the company have been physically verified at       

intervals during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification 
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No 
material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book 
records.  
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has repaid its working capital dues 
to the Bank during the year. We have ,however, done a limited verification of the quarterly 
returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with such Banks/financial 
institutions as compared to the books of accounts of the Company and the difference between 
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the statements filed and the books of accounts is as under:     
     (Rs. In lakhs) 
Quarter Value as per quarterly statement 

filed with Banks/financial 
institutions 

Value as the book of 
accounts 

Difference 

Q1 6744.79 6744.79 -- 
Q2 6950.26 6950.26 -- 
  
 

3) (a) According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, the Company has not provided guarantee or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that since the Company has not provided guarantee or 
security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured the provisions of 
para 3(iii)(b) of the Order will not apply to that extent. 

(c) According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, the Company has not provided guarantee or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, the provisions of para 3(iii)(c) –schedule of 
principal and interest payment being stipulated and whether repayments or receipts are 
regular--are not applicable. 

(d) According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, the Company has not provided guarantee or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, the provisions of para 3(iii)(d) –repayment 
amounts are overdue beyond 90 days and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the 
Company for recovery of principal and interest payment being stipulated and whether 
repayments or receipts are regular--are not applicable. 

(e) According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, there are no loans falling due during the year which have been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the 
same party. 

(f) According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or 
without satisfying any terms or period of repayment. 

 
4. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of investments made and has not provided any loans, guarantees, and 
security as per the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

5. During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed 
to be deposits from the Public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under as also the directives issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

6. According to the information & explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the Maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 for products manufactures by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.  
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7.  
a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, 
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. There 
were no dues outstanding as on the last day of the financial year for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. 
 

b. According to the books of accounts and records as produced and examined by us in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, as at 31st March 2023, 
the following are the particulars of dues that have not been deposited on account of 
dispute: 

 
Name of the 
Statute 

Nature 
of dues 

Amount 
(Rs. in lacs) 

Forum where 
dispute is pending 

Financial year 
to which the 
amount relates 

Excise Act, 
1958 

Excise 30.84 Excise Tribunal 2013-14 

Excise Act, 
1958 

Excise 1.25 Excise Tribunal 2002-03 

Navi Mumbai 
Local Body 
Tax 

LBT 41.51 LBT Assessing 
Officer – Navi 
Mumbai municipal 
Corporation 

2014-15 

 

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income-tax, 1961 as income during the year. 
 

     9. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment 

of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.  

           (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful 

defaulter by any Bank or financial institution or Government or Government authority. 

           (c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on 

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has repaid all 

the term loans and working capital loans availed from its Bankers. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) do not apply..  

           (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on 

short-term basis have been used for long term purposes by the Company.  
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           (e) Accordingly, to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has 

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 

its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

           (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by 

us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 

securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 (x) (a) The Company has raised  moneys by way of a Rights Issue aggregating Rs. 26.44 crores to 

its existing shareholders at Rs. 30 per share. Consequently, the share capital of the 

Company has increased from Rs. 17.55 crores to Rs. 26.37 crores and an amount of Rs. 

17.62 crores has been added to the share premium account. The Rights issue opened for 

subscription on September 15, 2022 and closed on September 21 The newly allotted shares 

were listed on the Stock Exchange from 29th September 2022 onwards.. 

         (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 

the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined 

in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

       (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 

(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-

4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no whistle blower    

complaints received by the Company during the year. 

(xii)     According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi        

Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 

with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian According Standards. 

(Refer to Note no. 50 to the financial statements). 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 

opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business. 
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         (b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the 

period under audit. 

(xv)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its 

Directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable 

to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order which covers Non-Banking 

Financial Companies (NBFC’s), Housing Finance Companies (HFC’s) is not applicable. 

        (b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order which requires comments on 

conduct of activities with valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) is not applicable. 

         (c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Regulations made 

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c ) of the Order is not applicable. 

        (d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, 

the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi) (d) are not 

applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any material uncertainty exists  as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 

not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 

fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that 

this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee not any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 

the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects in connection with Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) obligations, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be 
transferred to a fund as specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance with second 
proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 
no.56 to the financial statements. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be 
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 



        

        Suditi Industries Limited 

  

86 

 

135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note no. 56 to the financial 
statements. 

      

For Chaturvedi & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 
 
 
 
 

(Siddharth Punamiya) 
Partner 

(Membership No.: 148540) 
UDIN: 23148540BGUQOB4943 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 30, 2023 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of 
Suditi Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, both issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
control with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on 
the internal control with reference to financial statements  criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
For Chaturvedi & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 

 
 

Sd/-           
 
 
 
 

(Siddharth Punamiya) 
Partner 

(Membership No.: 148540) 
UDIN: 23148540BGUQOB4943 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Suditi Industries Limited - Standalone Results

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31-03-2023

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes As at March 31,

2023

As at March 31,

2022

ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 5 1,386.03 752.31

b. Capital work-in-progress -                              153.92

c. Intangible assets 5 3.89 4.06

d. Intangible assets under development -                              -                              

e. Financial Assets

i. Investments

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries 6 207.00 206.00

(b) Investments in Joint Ventures 7 5.00 5.00

ii. Loans 8 135.98 778.88

iii. Others financial assets 9 71.48 66.37

f. Deferred tax assets (net) 10 18.47 5.73

g. Other non-current assets 11 -                              -                              

Total non-current assets 1,827.85 1,972.27

2 Current assets

a. Inventories 12 643.27 2,057.70

b. Financial Assets

i. Other investments 13 1.30 1.23

ii. Trade receivables 14 3,298.77 3,702.22

iii. Cash and cash equivalents 15 16.58 29.30

iv. Loans 8 0.77 2.62

c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 16 177.11 114.16

d. Other Current Assets 11 442.06 944.21

Total current assets 4,579.86 6,851.45

Total assets 6,407.71 8,823.72

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

a. Equity share capital 17 2,636.73 1,755.41

b. Other equity 18 -1,256.21 -1,976.86

Total Equity 1,380.52 -221.44

LIABILITIES

1 Non-current liabilities

a. Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 19 43.50 369.71

b. Provisions 24 42.15 49.25

c. Other non-current liabilities 20 744.61 54.16

Total non-current liabilities 830.26 473.12

2 Current liabilities

a. Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 21 80.83 3,775.76

ii. Trade payables 22

Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 326.51 187.51

Others 2,698.16 3,016.13

iii. 23 234.92 212.17

b. Provisions 24 16.95 15.62

c. Other current liabilities 25 839.56 1,364.85

Total current liabilities 4,196.93 8,572.04

Total liabilities 5,027.19 9,045.17

Total Equity and Liabilities 6,407.71 8,823.72

The accompanying notes 1 to 65 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/-

sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540) sd/-

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

Other financial liabilities 

PARTICULARS



Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes  As at March 31,  

2023 

 As at March 31,  

2022 

I Revenue from operations 26 9,242.53 9,840.72

II Other Income 27 1,373.87 68.24

III Total Income (I + II) 10,616.40 9,908.96

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 28 5,536.10 6,567.42

29 1,353.52 1,014.99

Employee benefits expense 30 593.16 524.54

Finance costs 31 314.86 441.69

Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 185.60 134.94

Other Expenses 33 3,703.04 3,495.28

Total Expenses (IV) 11,686.29 12,178.86

V -1,069.89 -2,269.90

VI Exceptional items 60 -                            626.50                     

VII -1,069.89 -2,896.41

VIII Tax expenses

(1). Current tax -                            -                            

(2). Deferred tax -16.56 3.70

-16.56 3.70

IX Profit/ (loss) for the period (VII- VIII) -1,053.33 -2,900.11

Other comprehensive income 39

A: (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 15.16 5.13

-3.82 -1.29

B: (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                            -                            

-                            -                            

VIII Total other comprehensive income [a+b] 11.34 3.84

X Total comprehensive income for the period (VII + VIII ) -1,041.99 -2,896.27

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations):

(1). Basic (in Rs.) (3.95)                         (16.50)                       

(2). Diluted (in Rs.) (3.95)                         (16.50)                       

57.91 (1,041.99)                 

The accompanying notes 1 to 65 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements (436.44)                    

(605.55)                    

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/-

sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540) sd/-

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

Statement of Standalone profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Suditi Industries Limited - Standalone Results

Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-

trade

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

Profit or Loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit

or Loss

Particulars

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax  (III - IV )

Profit/ (Loss) before tax  (V-VI)
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�����������	
����
���������
��������
��	
��
�� ���
���
��������������
�������������
 ��!"
������
� #$%%&'()*+,)&'% *+,)&'%-./.0$(1. /23.0$(1 324.0$(1 5,1$&'()4.0$(1 6,&(789:;)<9%=>&$<61(<$1$?$9@(A7$%2.?,)%9<$1$<.B,,< /C44*DE/... F3DGF......... FHFDHF....... H/*DHF....... IGJDHI....... 4C/FID4H...899:;)<9%=>&$<61(<$K$?$9@(A7$% -?,)%9<$1$<.<,>A&L>7 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 33HDJE....... 33HDJE.......89@: M9%=>&$< 61(<$K$?$9@(A7$%-.?,)%9<$1$<.B,,< 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. H/*DJF....... H/*DJF.......8@: M9%=>&$< 61(<$K$?$9@(A7$% -?,)%9<$1$<.<,>A&L>7 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 2..............6N6O# /C44*DE/... F3DGF......... FHFDHF....... H/*DHF....... /CHHEDG3... 4CJEEDII...���
���
��������������
�������������
 ��!"
������
� #$%%&'()*+,)&'% *+,)&'%-./.0$(1. /23.0$(1 324.0$(1 5,1$&'()4.0$(1 6,&(789:;)<9%=>&$<61(<$1$?$9@(A7$%2.?,)%9<$1$<.B,,< /C*G3D*/... H43DEI....... IIEDJH....... I3*DH*....... GDH*........... 4CJF3D3F...899:;)<9%=>&$<61(<$K$?$9@(A7$% -?,)%9<$1$<.<,>A&L>7 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. 3*D/*......... GD4*........... 3*DF4.........89@: M9%=>&$< 61(<$K$?$9@(A7$%-.?,)%9<$1$<.B,,< 2.............. 2.............. 2.............. /IHD//....... 33FDFH....... HGED*F.......8@: M9%=>&$< 61(<$K$?$9@(A7$% -?,)%9<$1$<.<,>A&L>7 2.............. 2.............. /4D//......... /I*D/E....... /4*D/F....... 44FDHF.......6N6O# /C*G3D*/... H43DEI....... EG3DIF....... /C333DE3... 4*3DF/....... HCF34DIJ...P����
������	
��	
��
�����Q���
���	�
�������
���
	�Q
R����P����
������	
��	
��
�����Q���
���	�
�������
���
	�Q
R����S���
�R
	�����	��
��
��
������Q
������
��
�����TQ�
�
�
�R��	
��
��
�
����S�
��
�
��U��
���
��S�
�������	
������R�
��������������
���������



����������������	
��
������ �������������������������������� ����������������� ! � ����������������� !  "#$#%&'()*+,-)"#%.( /012 30425#(-)6%)-#%7 2028 1029:������;<%&$#+='7)>+?+7'%7)@&&6A%,( 2B0/4 2801BC���� �D��E  F��!�D����������G������� �������������������������������� ����������������� ! � ����������������� !  ����������G�������H%&6=')I#J)KI>L)M'&'+?#N$'O)P',)6Q)RS6?+(+6%(T 2UU022 229023C���� �VV��� ��W��DX�����Y�Z��[��Z��������������[\����������������G\�������Y��Z�������������X����������]���������X���������Z�������Y���������������������� ! �



���������	
��
�������� ���������	��������
	��	��������
��������� �	��������
��������� !"#$%&'()*+&,)-#$). /0121342&&&&&&&&&& 50466375&&&&&&&&&&8���� ��9�9������������� ���::�;�����������20<<<3<<&&&&&&&&&& 20<<<3<<&&&&&&&&&&=		�
>��	�?	���?
>�@�A��>�B� /0121342&&&&&&&&&& 50466375&&&&&&&&&&8���� ��9�9������������� ���::�;������������C��������>�
������	
��
	 D��?
���E�	
��
	 F
��
����������������G�����
��������
��������� ���::;��������� ���::�;�H()IJ+'&#I&+!"#$%&'()*+&,)-#$).&K"*#IJ&$(+&%+)* L0L52051L&&&&&&& LL532/&&&&&&&&&&&&&G�����
��������
��������� �9��9���M������ ��9�9�������������F�������E	�N��E��������������N������
	��>��

�
O�����������E�����������

F���>����
�C���������F���
�
���E����

��
���
�>
>���	������
������A���������	���
���	
>�F
��
�P������20<<0<<0<<<&Q"..%&-)#K&+!"#$%&'()*+'&RS&T'35<UV&+),(W/0120140/X5Q"..%-)#K+!"#$%'()*+'RST'35<UV+),(W)')$&Y)*,(&250&/</2Z&[W504606705/2&RS&5<&+),(&)'&)$&Y)*,(&250&/<//ZC�������>
�����	
��
	�\
��

�]
����]���
�E�	�����������
]��
�
�	
��
��>�����������N
�����>�]�>
�>	�A���������	"̂*#IJ$(+%+)*$(+,R_-)I%()'#''"+KLL052051L'()*+'RST'35<UV+),()$)-*+_#"_RST'3/<UV-+*'()*+3̀(+'()*+'a+*+#''"+KRIb*#J($'c)'#'b$R$(+'()*+(R.K+*'0a(Ra+*+_+_c+*')IK(R.K#IJ'()*+')'RI$(+*+,R*KK)$+)IIR"I,+Kc%$(+,R_-)I%SR*$(#'-"*-R'+3d,,R*K#IJ.%$(+'()*+,)-#$).RS$(+,R_-)I%()'#I,*+)'+KS*R_T'3540660750/2<UV$RT'3/102104/0X5<UV)S$+*$(+#''"+3̀(+K+'#JI)$+Ke$R,f g,()IJ+he i#_#$+K()'#''"+KI+,,+'')*%i#'$#IJ)IK *̀)K#IJ)--*Rj).$R$(++I$#*+'()*+'#''"+K&"IK+*&$(+&T#J($'&#''"+&-*RJ*)_3



����������	
�	�	���
������
	�
���	�	������
����������
���	������
	����
���
����������	����	����
�
����
�����
�����������������
��������������������������������� ������	�
�������	
�������� ��������������������� ������	�
�������	
�������� !"# $"$%#&&&&& !$'(!!&&&&&&&&&&&&&   "$#(")**&&&&& !+'#!%&&&&&&&&&&&&&������������,�������	�������������
	��� - ./0&1234567&/58&82&95:&5;;2<<0=&$ ($)>&8/5:08')-?6@?0A29;28808:042:<0=58A0;;58B610:<5?6<74:0@5?;?6C?6</035:D0<"</0E25:=29F?:01<2:8&/58&62<&:0123306=0=&567&=?@?=06=&92:&</0&9?6561?5;&705:&)>))G)$'%!>>>>8/5:08A0:0:080:@0=92:?88B0B6=0:</0H34;27008I<21DJ4<?26K;564B:8B56<<258401?5;:082;B<?2645880=?6)></L66B5;M060:5;N00<?6C/0;=26)6=I04<03O0:")>  'FB:?6C</0705:)>) G))"</0P234567/5860?</0:C:56<0=56724<?268<2567034;2700862:56724<?268A0:00Q0:1?80=58</0:05:06224<?268406=?6CA/?1/5:070<<2O00Q0:1?80='./0=0<5?;829</024<?268C:56<0=56=0Q0:1?80=?6458<5:05892;;2A8'R�
�	����S��	����TU��	
�V����������������������������	�
����
���W���
���

��
�
���������	��
���X������Y���� �� 
������������� Z���
����������������./01234567/5826;72601;588298/5:08?'0'H[B?<7I/5:08/5@?6C59510@5;B029\8' >]G051/'./00[B?<78/5:0/2;=0:85:006<?<;0=<2=?@?=06=26;7?9=?@?=06=?6545:<?1B;5:9?6561?5;705:?8:0123306=0=O7</0E25:=29F?:01<2:856=544:2@0=O7</0303O0:85<</0566B5;C060:5;300<?6C29</5<705:'̂6</00@06<29;?[B?=5<?2629</0P234567"</0/2;=0:8290[B?<78/5:08A?;;O006<?<;0=<2:010?@056729</0:035?6?6C5880<829</0P234567"59<0:=?8<:?OB<?26295;;4:090:06<?5;532B6<8'./0=?8<:?OB<?26A?;;&O0&?6&4:242:<?26&<2&</0&6B3O0:&29&0[B?<7&8/5:08&/0;=&O7&8/5:0&/2;=0:8'��������	�����	
��������K5A56&_?8/2:?;5;&LC5:A5; Z���
����������������./0O5;56105826$ 8<N5:1/)>)$?8!+)!#>24<?268A/?1/?870<<2O0C:56<0=&<2&</0&034;27008&9:23&:080:@0=&42:<?26&29&</0&0[B?<7&154?<5;'



����������	
�	�	���
������
	�
���	�	������
����������
���	������
	����
���
����������	����	����
�
����
�����
�����������������
������������������ !"��##$ %%$&'�#&$(!� ��!)*�!* #&&$+$#&� +&,!-./&�$*&) 0'�#&"�/#1��+�/2�34/#4,+ !�43*�/#14540� �!4/''�3/ &�%04)��+�3/#1467!&48 �+�94:;:6-<



�����������	
���
����
����������
��
�����
�����
�����
���
�	��������������
�������� �������������
��������� !"#$!% #&#'( !)*&(! "#$!#+!,-* (,! .!#+!'#'*/!,-* (, "#$!#+!,-* (,! .!#+!'#'*/!,-* (,0 %121"!13142156789 %4:;:<84=>?48@<:4A 0BC0DDEC BD$FF 00DCFGHH BI$CF!G �J15?"?!13142156%K%3K%1@A DGBLII 0$GI GLEBLL 0$0E!D 41M8">41!13142156%K%3K%1@A ILFCC L$0H GBGG0 L$0H!I 14@J1"1!13142156%3K%1@A FFLLL L$GE IEHLL L$GC!H J14�J!13142156%3K%1@A DHLLL L$0D GGHLL L$0D!B <1"19!13142156%3K%1@A DHLLL L$0D GGHLL L$0D!F <1"NM!13142156%3K%1@A DHLLL L$0D GGHLL L$0D!C ;88"1!3N%<16%3K%1@A 0HHHH L$LB 0LLLL L$LB!E �J?5%1!13142156%3K%1@A DCCC L$L0 GHLL L$L0!0L O51@73:5>581�?"3%P<$!5<>$6%3K%1@A 0H0EF0F H$FB 0EF0F L$00!00 4$%?91485155 %P<$5<>$6%3K%1@A 0HH L$LL 0LL L$LL!Q���� �RS��TUT ���VS ������S� V���V"#'( %!&(*),!% #&#'( %3!&(*),!% #&#'( !3 #WX%1@!&(*),!%( ,#),!1Y'Z)[!Z)!@#)Y( '�	���
\�
�����
���������	��������������������
�]�������
\��
�
����������������������̂�������������������
�
�����\��
��������������
�����������
��������_\��
�����
��������������
�\��
�



���������	�
��
	�
������	�����
	�
��	�	����
�
��	�	����
��	
�������� ��!�"#��$%!#������&�'(%�#'� )��&�"�"%*�'(%�#' )�+(%$,#�-.�/$,�"(#0#%� �����&�'(%�#'� )��&�"�"%*�'(%�#' )�+(%$,#�-.�/$,�"(#0#%� �����&�'(%�#'� )��&�"�"%*�'(%�#'1  232��2425326789:� 5;<;=95>�?@59A=;5B 1CD1EEFD CE�GG 71�1HB 11EDGIJJ CK�DG� H�C1� 11IGFFF1 CK�IC�I �L26@�@�24253267 M 4M 2AB EICHKK 1�IK H�HK� IHFCHH 1�1F�������������N��� IHFCHH 1�1F�E 52O9�?52�24253267 M 4M 2AB KHGDD H�1J H�H1� ICII1 H�1J�������������N��� ICII1 H�1J�K 25AL2�2�24253267 4M 2AB GGHHH H�IF H�H1� KFJHH H�ID�������������N��� KFJHH H�ID�J L25�L�24253267 4M 2AB EJHHH H�1E H�HH� IIJHH H�1E�������������N��� IIJHH H�1E�C =2�2:�24253267 4M 2AB EJHHH H�1E H�HH� IIJHH H�1E�������������N��� IIJHH H�1E�G =2�PO�24253267 4M 2AB EJHHH H�1E H�HH� IIJHH H�1E�������������N��� IIJHH H�1E�D <99�2�4P =27 4M 2AB 1JJJJ H�HC H�HH� 1HHHH H�HC�������������N��� 1HHHH H�HC�F �L@6 2�24253267 4M 2AB EDDD H�H1 H�HH� IJHH H�H1�������������N��� IJHH H�H1�1H Q62A8 4;6?692�@�4  R=�6=?�7 4M 2AB 1J1FG1G J�GC J�CJ� 1FG1G H�11�������������N��� 1FG1G H�11�11 5�  @:2596266 R=��6=?�7 4M 2AB 1JJ H�HH� H�HH� 1HH H�HH�������������N��� 1HH H�HH�S	��� �TUV�WXW ���YU �����ZUZ Y��VY ��YYW��U YY�XW��"#  �!#%$'� ��!�"#� 4�!#%$'� ��!�"#��4��.[ 2A�!#%$'� #�'�$'�2+"/$,�/$�A�$+#�"\�
	�
Z���
]����̂
�V�Z \�
	�
Z���
]����̂
�V�� \�
	�
���
\����
�V��������
����
_̀
��	�	����
��
���
���
	�
̀���
�
����̀	���������������	
������	���������	�����a������	�̀���	�����	�	�����������	��b������������������	����
̀���
�����
Z���
]����̂
�V�Z



���������	
��� 
��
�����������������������
���� 
����������������� �� 
����������������� ��!"#$%&"'("$)&%&*+ ,-./001234 ,2.53/16047"89)%#%"+(:)";%9; 2.-031<= 53210>7?$)"(@:#%@&(@9#+#$&'%&*($88@9&# =612< =612<A#";+(@B(C#?")(D@;:)"?"&+%E"(A&8@;" 20103 >1<0F���� ����GH���� ���IJH��H�K?"('"#$%L+($)"($+(B@LL@M+NO�������P�������Q� 
����������������� �� 
����������������� ��R$L$&8"($#(#?"(S"*%&&%&*(@B(T"$) ,2.53/1604 -5-12=U''N(V)@B%#(W9)%&*(#?"(T"$) ,=.05-1--4 ,2.6001==4X������������P��Y����� ���H  ��Z� ���GZH�I �[��
�������\����
� 
����������������� �� 
����������������� ��R$L$&8"($#(#?"(S"*%&&%&*(@B(T"$) 53210> 53210>
PP](K)$&+B")+('9)%&*(#?"(T"$) =.</21/-(((((((((((((((( O((((((((((((((((((((((((((X������������P��Y����� ��� Z�J� GZ�� �[������\������
�����P��Q�����
�� 
����������������� �� 
����������������� ��R$L$&8"($#(#?"(S"*%&&%&*(@B(T"$) =612< =612<
PP](K)$&+B")+('9)%&*(#?"(T"$) O(((((((((((((((((((((((((( O((((((((((((((((((((((((((X������������P��Y����� �I��J �I��J�̂�����Y����������\�������_�������� 
����������������� �� 
����������������� ��R$L$&8"($#(#?"(S"*%&&%&*(@B(T"$) >1<0 31>5
PP](U''%#%@&+('9)%&*(#?"(T"$) ==1-3((((((((((((((((((((( -1>3X������������P��Y����� � � Z ��J [
������Y��Q��Y���������
����Q\���������P������̀\����������Y��������������[���P������a���������[���������Y��������������P�P�������������� ��



����������	
�	�	���
������
	�
���	�	������
����������
���	������
	����
����
����������	����	����
�
����
�����
�����������������
�����������������	�
	��������
�����������������������������������	
	�� ���	���!"#$%&'&"()%"*&$*%"("%+"&(#%",'"--$"'.)%"*&$*./&(($".0(1,%"(231"("%"("%+"&($'&4&5"-&/,##.%-,/#"6&'1'1")%.+&(&./(.0'1"78.*),/&"(79#':7;<=>2�������
	����
�
���	�
������
�8%",'"-0.%%"#.%-&/?'1"?%,/'-,'"0,&%+,4$".0.)'&./(&(($"-'."*)4.@""($/-"%'1"A*)4.@""(('.#B.)'&./(#1"*"(7C7&(7,-D$('"-7./7"E"%#&("F0.%0"&'$%"7.07.)'&./(2G
������
�������������	��	������8%",'"-0.%'%,/(0"%%&/?'1"%"H*",($%"*"/'(7?,&/(7C74.(("(7./7-"0&/"-7I"/"0&'7)4,/(2J�
�	���K���	�
��8%",'"-0%.*L%.0&'F4.((.0'1"8.*),/@:,(,-D$('"-0.%-&('%&I$'&./7'.7.6/"%(:7'%,/(0"%(7'.7.'1"%7%"("%+"(7"'#2



����������	�
������
���� �����
�������������������
���������������� ����
���������������� !	���	"�#$%&'()* +,-./0 1),* 2-.3/4 56&77 589&7:;(//< =>))(.? *-?>)$?$(/ ,@ ;,.A0?()* B(2? CD&E7                     FF9&:6G�
�H���������	�
������
���� I��J� �K��L���M
�	����������	�
�H����H�
�	� �����
�������������������
���������������� ����
����������������N(O>)$?P Q(R,/$?/ N(O>)$?P Q(R,/$?/ S-P-2+( 0                          56&C:;(-/( ;$-2$+$?P4 966&:C 0                          G�
�H LII�K� JI��K4 S+(-/( )(@() ?, T,?( .,&5C&!�����U�V�����V����
������
���W�H���	���"�
�	�	XWH���
��U��V����
�����
�	!
��"�H��	�Y�������H�!
�
	�	�
�V���
�	�U	���	�"	"����
������������Z��
���H���Z��
���H���4'[1;,-.-*,>.?$.A?,\/&56&77+-3]/$//(O>)(B2P+$(.*-)3(B,.1$̂(BQ(R,/$?#\(@()T,?(T,&8%2P?](=,*R-.P&_?$/@>)?]()/(O>)(B2P]PR,?](O-?$,.,@/R(O$@$OR+-.? ̀ *-O]$.()P R),O>)(B 2P >?$+$a-?$,. ,@ ?]( +,-.&



����������	
�	�	���
������
	�
���	�	������
����������
���	������
	����
���
����������	����	����
�
����
�����
�����������������
��������������������
�������	�
� �����
� !�"�	��#�$��%����
���������������� ����
����������������&'(#���������������)*+,-.*/-..0,12&3*4&567 )************************** 89:;<(==)*+,-.*>2,01?-,7 )************************** @A:(::*******************)*+,-.*B,-.-?0,*C,-DE )************************** FA:(::*******************)*+,-.*-?G0,7 @:(::********************* 8A:(::*******************H'(/D,,05?*.&?D,2?207*-+*I-5J)?0,.*K0H? =:(<L********************* 88@(MFN�
�� O�"O� ��PPQ"PR='8'L' I-&57-+/-..0,12&34&5672513DK07?G0H-,,-S25J7+,-.TU274&56I2.2?0K&5KVG0W-D?GX5K2&54&56I2.2?0K(Y&?0-+25?0,07?1G&,J0K+-,?G0S-,625J1&E2?&3H-,,-S25J25,07E01?-+TU274&56I2.2?0K27Z/IY[=(A\E(&(]VG0W-D?GX5K2&54&56I2.2?0K27Z/IY[:(AA\E(&(̂ -,625J1&E2?&33-&527701D,0KH_G_E-?G01&?2-5-+25̀05?-,207&5KH--6K0H?7(VG03-&5271-33&?0,&33_701D,0KH_I&5K]4D23K25J&5KB3&5?].&1G250,_3-1&?0K&?B&S50 2̀33&J0VD,HG09a&̀2ZD.H&2&5K&37-E0,7-5&3JD&,&5?000U01D?0KH_/G&2,.&5WG,2B&S&5TJ&,S&325+&̀-D,-+H-?G?G04&567(>D,25J?G0_0&,?G0/-.E&5_G&7,0E&2K?G005?2,0̂ -,625J/&E2?&3I-&5&̀&230K+,-.?G0*/-..0,12&3*4&567(W01D,0KI-&57&,0?G0/,0K2?b&1232?207&̀&230KH_?G0/-.E&5_+,-.2?70U27?25J4&5672̀c(Zd7(TU274&56I2.2?0K&5KVG0W-D?GX5K2&54&56I2.2?0KD5K0,e.0,J051_/,0K2?I250CD&,&5?00W1G0.0fe/ICW'0U?05K0KH_?G0Y070,̀04&56-+X5K2&5fY4X'?-7DEE-,??G0/-.E&5207KD,25J?G0E&5K0.21E0,2-K(VG0/-.E&5_G&KKD,25Jbg8:8:)8=,0102̀0KY7(F9<A9::9:::d)+,-.TU274&56I2.2?0K&5KY7(=9;M9;L9:::d)+,-.VG0W-D?GX5K2&54&56I2.2?0K(VG070b&1232?207&,00U?05K0KS2?G-D?&5_1-D5?0,)JD&,&5?00?-?G04&56(h-S0̀0,9?G0703-&57&,0701D,0K&J&257??G0G_E-?G01&?2-5-+?G0/-.E&5_i7X5̀05?-,_]4--6>0H?7(VG0Y&?0-+X5?0,07?1G&,J0KH_TU274&56I2.2?0K27<(@A\&5KVG0W-D?GX5K2&54&56I2.2?0K27<(MA\(VG0/-.E&5_G&7,0E&2K?G0*05?2,0*3-&5*KD,25J*?G0*_0&,(/D,,05?.&?D,2?207-+I-5J)?0,.K0H?27?G0257?&33.05?KD0+-,E&_.05?E0,?&2525J?-Vjb*I-&5( k��
	������



���� ������	
���	
�	����������������� ������ ����
�������������
�
��	����
��� ������������������	�����������������������
����	 �������!	������"	������������������
����������������������
��	�
��������
��#$%&'' ()*+,(-.,./.01(23.4 56757859**** 56757859**** &*************2)*3:(%*,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************/)*;%1.%<:,= >6??78@?**** >6??78@?**** &*************A.B&'' ()*+,(-.,./.01(23.4 56C7D85D**** 56C7D85D**** &*************2)*3:(%*,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************/)*;%1.%<:,= '69758C>**** '69758C>**** &*************E./&'' ()*+,(-.,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************2)*3:(%*,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************/)*;%1.%<:,= &************* &************* &*************F(,&'@ ()*+,(-.,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************2)*3:(%*,./.01(23.4 &************* &************* &*************/)*;%1.%<:,= &************* &************* &*************+G.H0I$,.4H:,<G.3(4<<J:K$(,<.,4(,.%:<B,:10-.-6(4<G.L:MB(%=G(-,.B(0-<G.J:,N0%I/(B0<(33:(%4/:MB3.<.3=8O//:,-0%I3=%:4<:/N4<(<.M.%<J.,.,.K$0,.-<:*2.*4$2M0<<.-*<:*<G.*P(%N8Q�����!���
R�
�
�����������
�R���
�
�����������S��������!
�������
�������Q���������	T
����
��	Q��������	���	���	!���	�����	U���	V����W	�X�UOY04*P(%N*Z0M0<.-[A:$<G*;%-0(%*P(%NOY04*P(%N*Z0M0<.-[A:$<G*;%-0(%*P(%NOY04*P(%N*Z0M0<.-[A:$<G*;%-0(%*P(%NOY04*P(%N*Z0M0<.-[A:$<G*;%-0(%*P(%N\
����������R���
�R������
�
��
���� ������!��������
���]
�����������������	���������



������������	
�� �
��������������������������
��� ������������������ �� ������������������ ��!"#$%&"'%(&)&"*+,*-+(.)%/0,12%.*&.232,).)"*+)0"''4.*&.232,).)4 56789: :;<89:!=#$%&"'%(&)&"*+,*-+(.)%/12.+,&%2)%&>.2&>"*0,12%4.*&.232,).)4"*+4)0"''4.*&.232,).) 6?7@;8:7 5?A:78:5����
 �� �B�CD ��� ���

����V��W��V��������������W��
��������������X�
���������V��
����������U�����
����Y�������
�U����
����V������������������������������� ��M11%2+,*-&%,*/%20"&,%*"O",'"='.N,&>&>.0"*"-.0.*&?%*&>.="),)%/,*&,0"&,%*2.1.,O.+/2%0)(33',.2)2.-"2+,*-&>.,2)&"&()(*+.2&>.J,12%?I0"''"*+J.+,(0K*&.232,).)L.O.'%30.*&M1&?6AA7!ZJIJKLM1&[#?&>.H%03"*F>")"0%(*&)+(.&%J,12%?4I0"''4"*+4J.+,(04K*&.232,).)4(*+.24&>.4)",+4M1&4")4/%''%N)4\]%&.\G*&.2.)&,)3",+=F&>.H%03"*F&%&>.)(33',.2)"*+).2O,1.32%O,+.2)")"*+N>.*+.0"*+.+8



�����������	
���
����
�
����� ���
���
��������������	������������ 
!��"�
������
�  �����
����
�� �#��$�
�� �#��$�
�� �	����
�����
�� �	�
�%&'()(* +,-./0''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' +,-./0'''''''2%%&'34567 08+-9.+,'''' 080,-.,:'''' ,;<./9''''''' 1''''''''''''' ,8-=:.09''''2%%%& >%?@A46BBA6?'C'()(* 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1'''''''''''''2%%%& >%?@A46BBA6?'C'34567? 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1'''''''''''''���
���
��������������	������������ 
!��"�
������
�  �����
����
�� �#��$�
�� �#��$�
�� �	����
�����
�� �	�
�%&'()(* 0:<.9-''''''' ;.--''''''''''' 0.=+''''''''''' ;.0-''''''''''' 0:9./0'''''''2%%&'34567 ,8+-0.,0'''' /=<.=9''''''' </.;<''''''''' 0<.=;''''''''' +8;0-.0+''''2%%%& >%?@A46BBA6?'C'()(* 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1'''''''''''''2%%%& >%?@A46BBA6?'C'34567? 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1''''''''''''' 1'''''''''''''D���
��	
�����
��
��
��	������E	������
��	�����FE�
�
�	����
	��
��	�	�����D�
��
�	���G��
���
��D�
�������
	��������
��������������
���������H����
�����
	�
	��	I���E���	��
�	� ����
��	
E
�����H����
�����
	�
	��	I���E���	��
�	� ����
��	
E
�����



���������	
�
�	�
�
	��	
	�	�� ����
�������	
�����������	��
��� ��������������������� ��������������������������
� !"#$%&''()'*'+,-.(/ & 0$' 12345 52364078-.- *9,*:(!;#'*.'. <432= 26352>?'*9%@(/ &"'*-(A >,$,-& 1<3B6 1<3CC9D*# ,9(E,F,9'*9 G<34= GC3B<H���
 ��I�J� �����K�I���L	�	�
� ����
�������	
�����������	��
��� ��������������������� ���������������������M�
N�����
�E'+,*'9(0'*'+,-($, 0,$,-&(O*'-P BG3<B B<34=7-Q'@ $%*: -'@" '"#$%&''%0$,: -,%*. G4356 G23G1H���
 I���R IJ��R�����
�E'+,*'9(0'*'+,-($, 0,$,-&(O*'-P S(((((((((((((((((((((((((( S((((((((((((((((((((((((((7-Q'@ $%*: -'@" '"#$%&''%0$,: -,%*. 23<B 53=5((((((((((((((((((((((((T89,-(A''.(/ & 0$' G6326 1315H���
 �U�JR �R�U�V�����W ���	X
	�	��
� �����
�	
X Y�
	�	�� �
Z ����� �[Y
�
����W	
������	�
�
���V��
Z�
�
�\	
�
�	�
V������
�������W����
Z�Z���������������]%-'̂T* "%8*-%+_.3266<4C̀Sa0',*:8*>$ ,"'99,F,9'*9aQ .0''*-@ *.+'@@'998@,*:-Q'&' @-%-Q'b*F'.-%@!98> -,%* *9/@%-'>-,%*A8*9 .#'@ ##$,> 0$'_8$'. *9@'#%@-'9-%-Q'_':,.-@ @%+c%"# *,'.a(d,*,.-@&(%+(c%@#%@ -'(T++ ,@.3



���������	���
����
�������� ���	
��������
��
�����
����	�
�� ���
���
������������� ���
���
�������������� !"#$%$&'( )*+,- ))+),#./0(112/3$'"�$4"5$%$&'( *+6, *+67839/:(";$4"5$%$&'( <"""""""""""""""""""""""""" <""""""""""""""""""""""""""=>?$39(1"0./:"@A1;/:(.1 -B-+*7 )C6B,+-7D($1("D2$&2'2;% E,+7E <""""""""""""""""""""""""""#./?2>(3;"0A3> F+GG 6+*BH!8@ *+B) *+B-!$'(1";$4 )7+), <""""""""""""""""""""""""""I��
� J�K��L ���LM�J�N	��
�O �P��Q
�P��

� 
���	
��
Q R������� 

S ����� �TR�


���O�
P���
���
�
���N�

S
��
�U�


��
�N�
����
�P�����O�
��
S�S�����
���������



�����������	
��
��	
��
�� ��
�������������
�����
	�����
	� ���
���
	������������ ���
���
	����������������������	
��
��	
��� �������
��	�!��
""	�"
��!#
��!
��
��	�
��	
!���
	��	�����$%&'()(*+(,-./0,1%2(,/-,3./4+56789,:%*+-%56+.(4,;//47 <=>?@<= <A=?@=<9,16/5B9C*96.%4( 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,D�#EF
�
���
� G����G� GH����G$I&J6K(.,/L(.%6C*;,.()(*+(789,MNL/.6,C*5(*6C)(79'/O%26O.(5(C)(4P./0 7+I7C4C%.C(7%*4%77/5C%6(79,'/O%26O,.(5(C)(4,P./0,/6K(.79,15.%L,1%2(7 ?Q@R? ?<@S>9,J6K(.7,$7L(5C-O,4(6%C27& 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,D�#EF
�
���#� ����� �G�T�F
�
�����������	
��U��	
��
����
V#� G�T��W� GHT��X�Y���������	
��
��	
��� �������
��	�!��
""	�"
��!�#
��!�
��"�
"	
��Z ���
���
	������������ ���
���
	������������[K( 6%I2( I(2/\ L.(7(*674C7%;;.(;%6(4.()(*+(-./05/*6.%567\C6K5+76/0(.7-/.6K(O(%.(*4(4:%.5K=Q=>%*4:%.5K=Q==@[K( ]/0L%*O I(2C()(7 6K%6 6KC74C7%;;.(;%6C/*I(764(LC567K/\6K(*%6+.(̂%0/+*6̂6C0C*;%*4+*5(.6%C*6O/-.()(*+(7%*45%7K-2/\7%.(%--(56(4IOC*4+76.Ô0%.B(6,%*4,/6K(.,(5/*/0C5,-%56/.7$%&_/0(76C5 <=S=@̀> <ASQ@a=$I&MNL/.67 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,F
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b) Transactions with related parties:

Suditi Industries Limited

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

For year

ended 

March 2023

For year

ended 

March 2022

For year

ended 

March 2023

For year

ended 

March 2022

For year

ended 

March 2023

For year

ended 

March 2022

For year

ended 

March 2023

For year

ended 

March 2022

a)

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. 783.43        699.71        

2 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. 0.48             -               

3 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. 37.85           -               

4 Suditi Sports Apparel Limited 117.35        297.86        

5 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 1.01             2.54             

6 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. -               -               

7 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. 19.56           48.27           

b) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. 0.62             1.30             

2 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. -               -               

3 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. -               -               

4 Suditi Sports Apparel Limited 17.39           10.81           

5 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. -               -               

6 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. -               1.49             

7 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 2.44             -               

8 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. -               7.50             

c) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -               0.41             

2 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. 230.27        546.35        

3 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. 3.07             1.86             

Expenses towards Services received

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Entities in which a

director or his/her 

Relatives of

KMPs

Description Subsidiaries Joint Ventures

Sale of Goods/Related Services

Purchase of Goods



4 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. -               0.88             

5 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. 25.99           31.99           

6 Chendur Enterprises 6.03             6.52             

7 Chendur Inc. 5.96             5.96             

8 Ve Laxmi Exim LLP 7.78             7.78             

9 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -               -               

10 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. -               -               

11 Mr. Harsh Pawan Agarwal 31.41           22.96           

d) 

1 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) -               2.07             

2 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Receivable) -               -               

3 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Payable) 719.20        1,297.97     

4 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Deposits Receivable) -               303.81        

5 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 211.42        16.89           

6 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 47.76           47.76           

7 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 27.17           24.90           

8 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. (Receivable) 661.80        608.60        

9 Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd. (Receivable) 327.69        294.57        

10 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 528.92        716.62        

11 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 46.79           38.48           

12 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 35.23           20.31           

13 Chendur Enterprises (Receivable) 2.45             -               

14 Chendur Enterprises (Payable) 3.51             2.00             

15 Chendur Inc. (Payable) 3.47             1.99             

16 Ve Laxmi Exim LLP (Payable) 4.54             2.59             

e) 

1 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Unsecured Loan) -               450.00        

2 Shri Pawan Agarwal (Unsecured Loan) -               750.00        

f) 

1 Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd. -               116.00        

2 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. * -               1.00             

The figures are re-grouped / re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary.

Balance Outstanding as at the year end

Loan Taken

Investment in Subsidiary
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64 Events after the reporting date

65

Signatures to Notes 1 to 65

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/-

sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540) sd/-

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

The Financial results have been presented in accordance with the Division II of

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Certain Balances of assets and liabilities as at

March 31, 2023 have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to comply

with the amended Division II of Schedule III. Such reclassifications did not have a

material impact on the financial results.

No other adjusting or significant non-adjusting events has occurred between the

reporting date (31st March, 2023) and the report release date (30th May, 2023).

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to

conform to the current period presentation.



Note forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2023
11. Fixed Assets

(Amount in Rs.)

Description As at Additions Deduction/ As at As at For the Deductions Other As at As at As at

01.04.2022 Adjustments 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 Period Adjustments 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Tangible Assets

1 Land (Leasehold) 16,42,190          -                  16,42,190        -                      1,14,835            19,139             -                (1,33,974)             -                    -                     15,27,355             

2 Building 3,84,72,991       1,12,73,416     4,97,46,407     -                      3,11,55,562       27,76,480        -                (3,39,32,042)         -                    -                      73,17,429             

3 Plant & Machinery 31,19,19,238      19,650            11,39,851        31,07,99,038        28,54,81,332     20,35,678        -                (10,82,858)            28,64,34,152      2,43,64,886         2,64,37,906          

4 Furniture & Fixtures 7,81,74,117       41,44,244        -                  8,23,18,361         5,14,65,748       60,11,474        -                -                       5,74,77,223       2,48,41,138         2,67,08,369          

5 Office & Other Equip. 2,28,88,721       12,288            -                  2,29,01,009         1,64,82,077       16,93,562        -                -                       1,81,75,639       47,25,370           64,06,644             

6 Computers 1,85,14,282       10,600            -                  1,85,24,882         1,73,42,523       1,78,303          -                -                       1,75,20,826       10,04,056           11,71,759             

7 Electrical Installation 1,97,81,922       -                  -                  1,97,81,922         1,50,31,585       8,90,734          -                -                       1,59,22,319       38,59,603           47,50,337             

8 Vehicles 24,54,577          -                  -                  24,54,577            15,43,225          1,34,085          -                -                       16,77,310          7,77,268             9,11,353               

9 Right to use Amortised Va 38,53,870          8,38,53,278     38,53,870        8,38,53,278         38,53,870          48,22,615        -                (38,53,870)            48,22,615          7,90,30,663         -                       

49,77,01,909   9,93,13,476  5,63,82,317   54,06,33,067     42,24,70,757   1,85,62,070   -               (3,90,02,744)      40,20,30,083   13,86,02,984    7,52,31,152        

Intangible Assets

1 Software 40,41,766          -                  -                  40,41,766            36,35,491          17,084             -                -                       36,52,576          3,89,190             4,06,275               

2 Trademark(Brand) 3,00,000            -                  -                  3,00,000              3,00,000            -                  -                -                       3,00,000            -                     -                       

50,20,43,675   9,93,13,476  5,63,82,317   54,49,74,833     42,64,06,248   1,85,79,154   -               (3,90,02,744)      40,59,82,659   13,89,92,174    7,56,37,426        

Previous Year 48,96,85,873      1,23,57,802     -                  50,20,43,675        41,28,89,217     1,34,94,064     -                22,967                  42,64,06,248      7,56,37,426         7,67,96,656          

Capital Work In Progress -                    1,53,91,660          

Intangible Assets Under Development -                    -                       

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Sr.

No.



Note forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2023
11. Fixed Assets

(Amount in Rs.)

Description As at Additions Deduction/ As at As at For the Deductions Other As at As at As at

01.04.2022 Adjustments 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 Period Adjustments 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Tangible Assets

1 Land (Leasehold) 16,42,190          -                  16,42,190        -                      1,14,835            19,139             -                (1,33,974)             -                    -                     15,27,355             

2 Building 3,84,72,991       1,12,73,416     4,97,46,407     -                      3,11,55,562       27,76,480        -                (3,39,32,042)         -                    -                      73,17,429             

3 Plant & Machinery 31,19,19,238      19,650            11,39,851        31,07,99,038        28,54,81,332     20,35,678        -                (10,82,858)            28,64,34,152      2,43,64,886         2,64,37,906          

4 Furniture & Fixtures 7,81,74,117       41,44,244        -                  8,23,18,361         5,14,65,748       60,11,474        -                -                       5,74,77,223       2,48,41,138         2,67,08,369          

5 Office & Other Equip. 2,28,88,721       12,288            -                  2,29,01,009         1,64,82,077       16,93,562        -                -                       1,81,75,639       47,25,370           64,06,644             

6 Computers 1,85,14,282       10,600            -                  1,85,24,882         1,73,42,523       1,78,303          -                -                       1,75,20,826       10,04,056           11,71,759             

7 Electrical Installation 1,97,81,922       -                  -                  1,97,81,922         1,50,31,585       8,90,734          -                -                       1,59,22,319       38,59,603           47,50,337             

8 Vehicles 24,54,577          -                  -                  24,54,577            15,43,225          1,34,085          -                -                       16,77,310          7,77,268             9,11,353               

9 Right to use Amortised Va 38,53,870          8,38,53,278     38,53,870        8,38,53,278         38,53,870          48,22,615        -                (38,53,870)            48,22,615          7,90,30,663         -                       

49,77,01,909   9,93,13,476  5,63,82,317   54,06,33,067     42,24,70,757   1,85,62,070   -               (3,90,02,744)      40,20,30,083   13,86,02,984    7,52,31,152        

Intangible Assets

1 Software 40,41,766          -                  -                  40,41,766            36,35,491          17,084             -                -                       36,52,576          3,89,190             4,06,275               

2 Trademark(Brand) 3,00,000            -                  -                  3,00,000              3,00,000            -                  -                -                       3,00,000            -                     -                       

50,20,43,675   9,93,13,476  5,63,82,317   54,49,74,833     42,64,06,248   1,85,79,154   -               (3,90,02,744)      40,59,82,659   13,89,92,174    7,56,37,426        

Previous Year 48,96,85,873      1,23,57,802     -                  50,20,43,675        41,28,89,217     1,34,94,064     -                22,967                  42,64,06,248      7,56,37,426         7,67,96,656          

Capital Work In Progress -                    1,53,91,660          

Intangible Assets Under Development -                    -                       

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Sr.

No.



SCHEDULE "D" - FIXED ASSETS (Amount in Rs.)

Description As at Additions Deduction/ As at As at For the Deductions Other As at As at As at

01.04.2022 Adjustments 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 Period Adjustments 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1 Land (Leasehold) 16,42,190         -                     16,42,190         -                     1,14,835           19,139              -                     (1,33,974)                -                     -                     15,27,355         

-                     -                     

2 Building 3,84,72,991     1,12,73,416     4,97,46,407     -                     3,11,55,562     27,76,480         -                     (3,39,32,042)           -                     -                     73,17,429         

-                     -                     

3 Plant & Machinery 31,19,19,238   19,650              11,39,851         31,07,99,038   28,54,81,332   20,35,678         -                     (10,82,858)              28,64,34,152   2,43,64,886     2,64,37,906     

4 Furniture & Fixtures 7,81,74,117     41,44,244         -                     8,23,18,361     5,14,65,748     60,11,474         -                     -                           5,74,77,223     2,48,41,138     2,67,08,369     

-                     -                     

5 Office & Other Equip. 2,28,88,721     12,288              -                     2,29,01,009     1,64,82,077     16,93,562         -                     -                           1,81,75,639     47,25,370         64,06,644         

6 Computers 1,85,14,282     10,600              -                     1,85,24,882     1,73,42,523     1,78,303           -                     -                           1,75,20,826     10,04,056         11,71,759         

7 Electrical Installation 1,97,81,922     -                     -                     1,97,81,922     1,50,31,585     8,90,734           -                     -                           1,59,22,319     38,59,603         47,50,337         

-                     -                     

8 Vehicles 24,54,577         -                     -                     24,54,577         15,43,225         1,34,085           -                     -                           16,77,310         7,77,268           9,11,353           

9 Right to use Amortised Va 38,53,870         8,38,53,278     38,53,870         8,38,53,278     38,53,870         48,22,615         -                     (38,53,870)              48,22,615         7,90,30,663     -                     

10 Software 40,41,766         -                     -                     40,41,766         36,35,491         17,084              -                     -                           36,52,576         3,89,190           4,06,275           

11 Trademark 3,00,000           -                     -                     3,00,000           3,00,000           -                     -                     -                           3,00,000           -                     -                     

50,20,43,675   9,93,13,476     5,63,82,317     54,49,74,833   42,64,06,248   1,85,79,154     -                   (3,90,02,744)          40,59,82,659   13,89,92,174   7,56,37,426     

Previous Year

Capital Work In Progress

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Sr.

No.



SCHEDULE "D" - FIXED ASSETS (Amount in Rs.)

Description As at Additions Deduction/ As at As at For the Deductions Other As at As at As at

01.04.2022 Adjustments 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 Period Adjustments 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1 Land (Leasehold) 16,42,190         -                     16,42,190         -                     1,14,835           19,139              -                     (1,33,974)                -                     -                     15,27,355         

-                     -                     

2 Building 3,84,72,991     1,12,73,416     4,97,46,407     -                     3,11,55,562     27,76,480         -                     (3,39,32,042)           -                     -                     73,17,429         

-                     -                     

3 Plant & Machinery 31,19,19,238   19,650              11,39,851         31,07,99,038   28,54,81,332   20,35,678         -                     (10,82,858)              28,64,34,152   2,43,64,886     2,64,37,906     

4 Furniture & Fixtures 7,81,74,117     41,44,244         -                     8,23,18,361     5,14,65,748     60,11,474         -                     -                           5,74,77,223     2,48,41,138     2,67,08,369     

-                     -                     

5 Office & Other Equip. 2,28,88,721     12,288              -                     2,29,01,009     1,64,82,077     16,93,562         -                     -                           1,81,75,639     47,25,370         64,06,644         

6 Computers 1,85,14,282     10,600              -                     1,85,24,882     1,73,42,523     1,78,303           -                     -                           1,75,20,826     10,04,056         11,71,759         

7 Electrical Installation 1,97,81,922     -                     -                     1,97,81,922     1,50,31,585     8,90,734           -                     -                           1,59,22,319     38,59,603         47,50,337         

-                     -                     

8 Vehicles 24,54,577         -                     -                     24,54,577         15,43,225         1,34,085           -                     -                           16,77,310         7,77,268           9,11,353           

9 Right to use Amortised Value of Assets38,53,870         8,38,53,278     38,53,870         8,38,53,278     38,53,870         48,22,615         -                     (38,53,870)              48,22,615         7,90,30,663     -                     

10 Software 40,41,766         -                     -                     40,41,766         36,35,491         17,084              -                     -                           36,52,576         3,89,190           4,06,275           

11 Trademark 3,00,000           -                     -                     3,00,000           3,00,000           -                     -                     -                           3,00,000           -                     -                     

50,20,43,675   9,93,13,476     5,63,82,317     54,49,74,833   42,64,06,248   1,85,79,154     -                   (3,90,02,744)          40,59,82,659   13,89,92,174   7,56,37,426     

Previous Year

Capital Work In Progress

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Sr.

No.



SCHEDULE "C" - FIXED ASSETS

DESCRIPTION AS AT ADDITIONDEDUCTION AS AT AS AT ADDITIONDEDUCTION OTHER AS AT AS AT AS AT

01.04.2022 ADJST. 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 ADJUST. 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1 LAND(Leasehold) -            16,42,190        -                16,42,190    -                   1,14,835          19,139          -             (1,33,974)      -                   -                 15,27,355      

2 BUILDING-I 3.17 3,84,72,991     1,12,73,416  4,97,46,407 -                   3,11,55,562     27,76,480     -             (3,39,32,042) -                   -                 73,17,429      

BUILDING-II Garement -                   -                -               -                   -                   -                   -                 -                 

3 PLANT & MACHI 12.66 28,12,26,600   -                -               28,12,26,600   26,35,09,110   5,55,097       -             -                26,40,64,207   1,71,62,393   1,77,17,490   

PLANT & MACHI Gmt 12.66 2,25,01,008     9,000            11,39,851    2,13,70,157     2,15,64,061     5,13,192       -             (10,82,858)    2,09,94,395     3,75,763        9,36,947        

4 FURNITURE & FIX. 11.88 5,16,33,148     41,18,244     -               5,57,51,391     3,37,14,125     43,26,902     -             -                3,80,41,027     1,77,10,364   1,79,19,023   

5 OFFICE & OTHER 19.00 2,08,72,663     -                -               2,08,72,663     1,50,17,017     15,25,217     -             -                1,65,42,235     43,30,429      58,55,646      

6 ELECTRICAL INST. 9.50 1,21,50,134     -                -               1,21,50,134     99,61,067        3,38,817       -             -                1,02,99,884     18,50,250      21,89,067      

7 VEHICLES 11.88 20,08,170        -                -               20,08,170        11,90,973        2,38,306       -             -                14,29,279        5,78,891        8,17,197        

8 COMPUTER 31.67 1,20,36,390     -                -               1,20,36,390     1,14,06,045     16,646          -             -                1,14,22,691     6,13,699        6,30,345        

9 RIGHT TO USE AMORTISED VALUE OF ASSETS38,53,870        7,31,08,252  38,53,870    7,31,08,252     38,53,870        24,78,246     -             (38,53,870)    24,78,246        7,06,30,006   -                 

10 Software 31.67 3,41,238          -                      -               3,41,238          3,24,176          -                -             -                3,24,176          17,062           17,062           

Software 31.67 3,09,150          -                      -               3,09,150          2,93,692          -                -             -                2,93,692          15,458           15,458           

31.67 4,50,000          -                      -               4,50,000          4,27,500          -                -             -                4,27,500          22,500           22,500           

11 Trademark 3,00,000          -                -               3,00,000          3,00,000          -                -             -                3,00,000          -                 -                 

44,77,97,552   8,85,08,912  5,63,82,317 47,99,24,146   39,28,32,034   1,27,88,042  -             (3,90,02,744) 36,66,17,332   11,33,06,814 5,49,65,518   

SR

. 

NO

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

   
          Ref no. 230530/006/R 
 
To,  
THE MEMBERS OF  
SUDITI INDUSTRIES LIMITED   
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
Opinion  

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SUDITI INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries along with share in a joint venture, as listed in 

Annexure ‘A’ (the Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture together referred to as “the Group”), 
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the period ended on that date, the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for 
the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and 
based on the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial 
information of the subsidiaries and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the 
consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income) for the period ended on that date, 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion  

 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the 

other auditor in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter: 
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We draw attention to Note 74 to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to the following 

matter: 

 

A. ” Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” paragraph in the other Auditors Report 
dated  

25th May, 2023 on the separate financial statements of “Suditi Design Studio Limited”, a 
subsidiary of the company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 whose 
extract is produced below: 

    ---“Suditi Design Studio Limited” 

“We draw attention to Note 38 in the financial statements, which states that the Company has incurred 

continuous losses; its net worth has been fully eroded and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets as 

at the Balance Sheet date. As stated in Note 38, these events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty 

exists that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as 

stated in the Note, the Company has received an assurance of continued long-term support from the Parent 

Company basis which the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.” 

 

Key Audit Matters: 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed 

risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters 

included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of 

resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Key Audit matter description How the scope of our audit responded to the key 

audit matter 

Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers: (Refer to Significant 

Accounting policies--para 6)  

Revenue from contracts with customer is 

recognized upon transfer of control of 

promised goods and is measured at the 

fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, net of returns and allowances, 

trade discounts and volume rebates, 

based on contractually defined terms. In 

some cases, discounts estimated will be 

determined on sale of goods by the 

customers. 

Also, in certain cases the Company has 

The audit procedures included but were not limited 

to:  

--Assessment of the processes of the Company for 

adoption of the new accounting standards. 

--Selecting a sample from each type of the contracts 

with the customers, and testing the operating 

effectiveness of the internal control, relating to 

identification of the distinct performance obligations 

and determination of transaction price. Carrying out 

a combination of procedures involving enquiry and 

observation, re-performance and inspection of 

evidence in respect of operation of these controls. 

--Testing the relevant controls including access and 

change management controls of information 
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contracts with customers which entitles 

them to right of return. At year end, 

amount of returns, and discounts that have 

been incurred and not yet settled with the 

customer are estimated and accrued. 

Estimating the amount of accrual at year-

end is considered a key audit matter due 

to the judgements required to be made by 

management. 

 

technology systems, which are relevant for 

appropriate measurement and presentation of 

revenue and related account balances. 

Performing following procedures on the samples 

selected: 

--Reading, analysing and identifying the distinct 

performance obligations in these contracts. 

--Comparing these performance obligations with that 

identified and recorded by the Company.  

--Testing sample of revenues with the performance 

obligation specified in the underlying contracts. 

--Carrying analytical procedure for reasonableness 

of revenue disclosed by segments. 

--Evaluating the appropriateness of adequate 

disclosures in accordance with the standards.   

Inventory valuation: 

As described in para 12(i), 12(ii) &; 12(iii) 

of the Significant Accounting policies and 

Notes 52, 53 and 54 on Inventories, the 

Company carries inventory at the lower of 

cost and fair value less costs to sell using 

the weighted average cost basis. The 

Company provides for changes in value 

based on estimated inventory usage. This 

methodology relies upon assumptions 

made in determining appropriate 

provisioning percentages to apply to 

inventory balances. 

 

We obtained a detailed understanding and evaluated 

the design and implementation of controls that the 

Company has established in relation to inventory 

valuation. 

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of 

management’s assumptions applied in calculating 

the value of inventory provisions by: 

–– verifying the value of a sample of inventory items 

to confirm whether they are held at the lower of cost 

and net realizable value, through comparison to 

vendor invoices and sales prices; 

–– using data analytics to identify unusual inventory 

usage characteristics, completing assumption 

tolerance testing and recalculating the provision in 

totality. 

Contingent liabilities: (Refer to Note 65) 

The Company has ongoing legal matters 

relating to previous corporate transactions 

which require management judgement to 

be applied in order to determine the likely 

outcome. 

 

In assessing the potential exposures to the 

Company, we have completed a range of 

procedures including: 

–– assessing the design and implementation of 

controls in relation to the monitoring of known 
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Judgement is required in assessing the 

nature of these exposures and their 

accounting and disclosure requirements. 

 

exposures; 

–– reading Board and other meeting minutes to 

identify areas subject to Company consideration; 

–– meeting with the Company’s internal legal 

advisors in understanding ongoing and potential 

legal matters impacting the Company; 

–– reviewing the proposed accounting and 

disclosure of actual and potential legal liabilities, 

drawing on third party assessment of open matters. 

  

Allowance for Credit Losses: (Refer to 

Significant Accounting Policies para 5(v) 

and Note no: 72) 

 

The Company applies the ‘simplified 

approach’ which requires expected lifetime 

losses to be recognised from initial 

recognition of the trade receivables. The 

Company uses historical default rates to 

determine impairment loss on the portfolio 

of trade receivables adjusted to reflect 

current and estimated future economic 

conditions of its customers, their industry 

and geography of operations. At every 

reporting date these historical default rates 

are reviewed and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed. In 

calculating expected credit loss, the 

Company also considers other related 

information for its customers, including 

credit periods, to estimate the probability of 

default in future and has considered 

estimates of possible effects from any 

uncertain events/litigations etc. The 

Management has exercised significant 

judgement in estimating the allowance for 

credit losses making it a key audit matter. 

 

 

Our audit procedures to test the effectiveness of 

controls over allowances for credit loss includes the 

following: 

•• Trade Receivables ageing report as on balance 

sheet date 

•• Development of the expected credit model for the 

allowance for credit losses, including consideration 

of the current and estimated future economic 

conditions. 

•• Completeness and accuracy of information used in 

the estimation of probability of default 

•• Status of recovery of trade receivables as on the 

report date out of the total outstanding as at March 

31, 2023 

•• Verification of computation of the allowance for 

credit losses 

•• Testing the arithmetical accuracy and computation 

of the allowance prepared by the Management. 

•• Testing the allowance for credit loss through 

alternate scenarios, including profiling of customers 

based on their attributes with various sensitivities 

around the assumptions and reviewing the possible 

effects of any uncertain events/ litigations to validate 

the Management estimates. 

 

Other Information: 
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the annual report—Chairman’s Statement, 

Directors Report, Management Discussion & Analysis and Corporate Governance Report-- other 

than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated 

in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 

audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 

material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 

there is a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, 

we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact.  

The Directors Report, Management Discussion & Analysis and Corporate Governance Reports are 

expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. When we read these 

reports, if we conclude that the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the 
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Holding Company’s Board of 
Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information 
considered necessary for preparation of Ind AS financial statements, Further, in terms of provisions 
of the Act, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, covered under 
the Act, are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting  
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid.  
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing 

(SA’s) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 

financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company 
has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 
concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated f inancial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
financial statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the financial statements, which have 
been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
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our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total 

assets of Rs. 975.59 lakhs and net assets of (912.20) lakhs as at 31st March 2023, total revenue of 

Rs. 1209.60 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.19.83 lakhs for the year ended on that 

date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated f inancial statements 

also include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. 110.45 lakhs for the year ended 31stMarch 2023, as 

considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of the joint venture company, whose 

financials have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other 

auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 

respect of these subsidiaries and joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 

143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary companies and joint venture 

company, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other legal and 

regulatory requirements below are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 

reliance on the work done by and reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the 
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information 
of the subsidiaries and joint venture, we report to the extent applicable, that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors. 

 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and of 
its joint venture company covered under the Act, none of the Directors of the Group company 
and joint venture company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal controls with reference to the financial 

statements of the Group companies and its joint venture company covered under the Act and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. 
and  

 
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and based on the 
consideration of the report of other auditors on separate financial statements as also the 
other financial information of the subsidiaries and joint venture and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on 

the consolidated financial position of the Group.  (Refer Note No. 65 to the 
consolidated financial statements). 

 
ii) The Group and its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-

term contracts including derivative contracts. 

 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies and joint venture company incorporated in India. 
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iii) (a) The respective managements of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us 
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company or any such subsidiaries or joint venture to or in any other person(s) or 
entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries"), with the understanding that the 
intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries or 
joint venture (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.  
 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture, 

whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us 

that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any such 

subsidiaries or joint venture from any person(s) or entities including foreign entities 

("Funding Parties") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that such Company or any such subsidiaries or joint venture shall whether, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.  

 

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and by the other auditors on its 

subsidiaries and joint venture whose financial statements have been audited under the 

provisions of the Act, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 

to believe that the representations given by the respective managements under the 

sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement. 

iv) The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend during the current year. 
Accordingly, reporting on matters specified in sub-clause (iii) of Rule 11 (f) does not 
apply. 

 
v) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the 

Company only with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. 
 

h) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”--CARO) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, to be included in the Auditor’s Report, according 
to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued by us 
for the Company and those given by the other auditor’s for the subsidiaries included in the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is 
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these reports. 

 

i) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding 

Company, covered under the Act, paid remuneration to their respective Directors during the 

year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with 

Schedule V to the Act.  
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For Chaturvedi & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 

 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/- 
(Siddharth Punamiya) 

Partner 
(Membership No.: 148540) 

UDIN: 23148540BGUQOC5232 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2023 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
List of subsidiaries and joint venture included in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Name of entity As at March 31, 2023 

% holding Consolidated as 

Suditi Design Studio Ltd. 100% Subsidiary 

Suditi Sports Apparels Ltd. 60% Subsidiary 

SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 50% Joint Venture 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements of Suditi Industries Ltd., (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its 
subsidiary companies and joint venture company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of 
that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint 
venture company, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (“IFCFR”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of the entities of the Group, which are Companies incorporated in India, based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards of 
Auditing, both issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the 'Other Matters' paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
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A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements and to the best of our information and 
according to explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint 
venture company, which are incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the 
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 
 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the IFCFR in so far as it relates to joint venture company, which is a company 
covered under the Act, in respect of which, the Group's share of net loss of Rs. 110.45 lakhs for the 
year ended 31st March, 2023 has been considered in the consolidated financial statements. The 
IFCFR in so far as it relates to the subsidiary companies have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the IFCFR for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint 
venture company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such 
subsidiary companies and joint venture is based solely on the report of the auditor of such 
companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the 
work done by and on the report of the other auditor. 

 
 
 

For Chaturvedi & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No.: 307068E) 
 



        
        Suditi Industries Limited 
  

 
                                                                                                                        Sd/- 

(Siddharth Punamiya) 
Partner 

(Membership No.: 148540) 

UDIN: 23148540BGUQOC5232 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  30th May, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ĚƵƐƚƌŝĞƐ LŝŵŝƚĞĚ Ͳ CŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ RĞƐƵůƚƐ

ĂƚĞĚ BĂůĂŶĐĞ SŚĞĞƚ ĂƐ ŽŶ ϯϭͲϬϯͲϮϬϮϯ

AŵŽƵŶƚ ;RƐ͘ ŝŶ LĂŬŚƐͿ
NŽƚĞƐ AƐ Ăƚ MĂƌĐŚ ϯϭ͕  

ϮϬϮϯ
AƐ Ăƚ MĂƌĐŚ ϯϭ͕  ϮϬϮϮ

ASSETS
ϭ NŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ

Ă͘ PƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ PůĂŶƚ ĂŶĚ EƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ ϭϵ ϭϯϵϯ͘ϴϱ ϳϲϭ͘ϲϭ
ď͘ CĂƉŝƚĂů ǁŽƌŬͲŝŶͲƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ Ͳ                             ϭϱϯ͘ϵϮ
Đ͘ IŶƚĂŶŐŝďůĞ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ ϭϵ ϰ͘ϭϮ ϰ͘Ϯϵ
Ě͘ IŶƚĂŶŐŝďůĞ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ ƵŶĚĞƌ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ Ͳ                             Ͳ                                
Ğ͘ FŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů AƐƐĞƚƐ

ŝ͘ IŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ
;ĂͿ IŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ ŝŶ SƵďƐŝĚŝĂƌŝĞƐ Ͳ                             Ͳ                                
;ďͿ IŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ ŝŶ JŽŝŶƚ VĞŶƚƵƌĞƐ Ͳ                             Ͳ                                

ŝŝ͘ LŽĂŶƐ ϮϬ ϭϱϮ͘ϵϰ ϳϵϱ͘ϴϰ
ŝŝŝ͘ OƚŚĞƌƐ ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů ĂƐƐĞƚƐ Ϯϭ ϳϭ͘ϰϴ ϲϲ͘ϯϳ

Ĩ͘ DĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ ƚĂǆ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ ;ŶĞƚͿ ϮϮ Ϯϭ͘ϳϰ ϲ͘ϱϴ
Ő͘ OƚŚĞƌ ŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ Ϯϯ Ϭ͘ϱϬ Ϭ͘ϱϬ

TŽƚĂů ŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ  ϭϲϰϰ͘ϲϯ ϭϳϴϵ͘ϭϭ

Ϯ CƵƌƌĞŶƚ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ
Ă͘ IŶǀĞŶƚŽƌŝĞƐ Ϯϰ ϭϭϬϰ͘ϯϵ Ϯϲϰϰ͘ϭϯ
ď͘ FŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů AƐƐĞƚƐ

ŝ͘ OƚŚĞƌ ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ Ϯϱ ϭ͘ϯϬ ϭ͘Ϯϯ
ŝŝ͘ TƌĂĚĞ ƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ Ϯϲ ϮϱϳϮ͘ϮϬ ϯϮϰϲ͘ϲϴ
ŝŝŝ͘ CĂƐŚ ĂŶĚ ĐĂƐŚ ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ Ϯϳ ϮϬ͘ϱϲ ϱϯ͘ϭϮ
ŝǀ͘ LŽĂŶƐ ϮϬ ϭ͘Ϯϭ Ϯ͘ϵϬ

Đ͘ CƵƌƌĞŶƚ TĂǆ AƐƐĞƚƐ ;NĞƚͿ Ϯϴ ϭϳϴ͘ϭϵ ϭϭϰ͘ϭϲ
Ě͘  OƚŚĞƌ CƵƌƌĞŶƚ AƐƐĞƚƐ Ϯϯ ϲϱϴ͘ϱϴ ϭϭϱϰ͘ϴϰ

TŽƚĂů ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ĂƐƐĞƚƐ  ϰϱϯϲ͘ϰϯ ϳϮϭϳ͘Ϭϱ

TŽƚĂů ĂƐƐĞƚƐ ϲϭϴϭ͘Ϭϲ ϵϬϬϲ͘ϭϲ

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EƋƵŝƚǇ
Ă͘ EƋƵŝƚǇ ƐŚĂƌĞ ĐĂƉŝƚĂů Ϯϵ Ϯϲϯϲ͘ϳϯ ϭϳϱϱ͘ϰϭ
ď͘ OƚŚĞƌ ĞƋƵŝƚǇ ϯϬ ;ϯϱϵϮ͘ϯϴͿ ;ϯϳϭϴ͘ϭϭͿ
EƋƵŝƚǇ ĂƚƚƌŝďƵƚĂďůĞ ƚŽ ŽǁŶĞƌƐ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ CŽŵƉĂŶǇ ;ϵϱϱ͘ϲϱͿ ;ϭϵϲϮ͘ϳϬͿ
NŽŶͲCŽŶƚƌŽůůŝŶŐ IŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ ;ϰϮ͘ϲϬͿ ϳϳ͘ϴϳ
TŽƚĂů EƋƵŝƚǇ ;ϵϵϴ͘ϮϱͿ ;ϭϴϴϰ͘ϴϯͿ

LIABILITIES
ϭ NŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ

Ă͘ FŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů LŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
ŝ͘ BŽƌƌŽǁŝŶŐƐ ϯϭ ϰϯ͘ϱϬ ϯϲϵ͘ϳϭ

ď͘ PƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ ϯϲ ϲϯ͘ϳϱ ϱϱ͘ϲϮ
Đ͘ OƚŚĞƌ ŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϯϮ ϴϱϮ͘Ϯϱ ϭϲϭ͘ϴϭ

TŽƚĂů ŶŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϵϱϵ͘ϱϬ ϱϴϳ͘ϭϰ

Ϯ CƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
Ă͘ FŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů LŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ

ŝ͘ BŽƌƌŽǁŝŶŐƐ ϯϯ ϭϬϰ͘ϯϬ ϯϳϵϵ͘ϮϮ
ŝŝ͘ TƌĂĚĞ ƉĂǇĂďůĞƐ ϯϰ

MŝĐƌŽ EŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞƐ Θ SŵĂůů EŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞƐ ϲϳϱ͘ϰϲ ϰϴϮ͘ϱϰ
OƚŚĞƌƐ Ϯϵϭϲ͘ϱϱ ϯϬϱϵ͘ϭϳ

ŝŝŝ͘ ϯϱ Ϯϳϭ͘Ϯϯ Ϯϲϱ͘ϰϴ
ď͘ PƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ ϯϲ ϮϬ͘Ϯϴ ϭϳ͘ϴϭ
Đ͘ OƚŚĞƌ ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϯϳ ϮϮϯϭ͘ϵϵ Ϯϲϳϵ͘ϲϯ

TŽƚĂů ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϲϮϭϵ͘ϴϭ ϭϬϯϬϯ͘ϴϱ

TŽƚĂů ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϳϭϳϵ͘ϯϭ ϭϬϴϵϬ͘ϵϵ

TŽƚĂů EƋƵŝƚǇ ĂŶĚ LŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ ϲϭϴϭ͘Ϭϲ ϵϬϬϲ͘ϭϲ

ͲϬ͘ϬϬ                          ͲϬ͘ϬϬ                             
TŚĞ ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ ŶŽƚĞƐ ϭ ƚŽ ϴϬ ĂƌĞ ĂŶ ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů ƉĂƌƚ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ

AƐ ƉĞƌ ŽƵƌ ƌĞƉŽƌƚ ŽĨ ĞǀĞŶ ĚĂƚĞ ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ FŽƌ ĂŶĚ ŽŶ ďĞŚĂůĨ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ BŽĂƌĚ ŽĨ DŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ

ƐĚͬͲ ƐĚͬͲ
PĂǁĂŶ AŐĂƌǁĂů VŝǀĞŬ GĂŶŐǁĂů

FŽƌ CŚĂƚƵƌǀĞĚŝ Θ PĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ CŚĂŝƌŵĂŶ DŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ
CŚĂƌƚĞƌĞĚ AĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶƚƐ DIN͗ ϬϬϴϬϴϳϯϭ DIN͗ ϬϭϬϳϵϴϬϳ
;Fŝƌŵ RĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ NŽ͘ϯϬϳϬϲϴEͿ

ƐĚͬͲ ƐĚͬͲ
ƐĚͬͲ RĂũĂŐŽƉĂů RĂũĂ CŚŝŶƌĂũ KƌŝŶĂ GĂůĂ

EǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ DŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ Θ CEO DŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ
SŝĚĚŚĂƌƚŚ P PƵŶĂŵŝǇĂ DIN͗ ϬϬϭϱϴϴϯϮ DIN͗ ϬϳϬϰϬϵϴϵ
PĂƌƚŶĞƌ
;MĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ NŽ͘ϭϰϴϱϰϬͿ ƐĚͬͲ
MƵŵďĂŝ͕ ϯϬƚŚ MĂǇ͕ ϮϬϮϯ

H͘GŽƉĂůŬƌŝƐŚŶĂŶ
CŽŵƉĂŶǇ SĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ
NĂǀŝ MƵŵďĂŝ͕ ϯϬƚŚ MĂǇ͕ ϮϬϮϯ

PARTICULARS

OƚŚĞƌ ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ 



Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

I Revenue from operations 38 10278.29 10328.32

II Other Income 39 1374.06 85.64

III Total Income (I + II) 11652.35 10413.96

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 40 5872.20 6745.72

41 1478.83 537.80

Employee benefits expense 42 830.84 707.89                       

Finance costs 43 325.33 452.15

Depreciation and amortisation expense 44 187.70 136.57

Other Expenses 45 4620.36 4054.26

Total Expenses (IV) 13315.26 12634.41

V (1662.91) (2220.45)

VI Exceptional items 72 0.00 763.47                       

VII

(1662.91) (2983.92)

VIII Share of profit/(loss) in Joint Venture (110.45) (518.85)

IX Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII + VIII ) (1773.36) (3502.77)

X Tax expenses

(1). Current tax -                             -                             

(2). Deferred tax (15.62) 2.10

(15.62) 2.10

XI Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX - X) (1757.74) (3504.87)

Other comprehensive income 51

A: (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 1.81 5.13

(0.45) (1.29)

B: (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or  Loss -                             -                             

-                             -                             

XII Total other comprehensive income [a+b] 1.35 3.84

XIII Total comprehensive income for the period (XI + XII) (1756.39) (3501.03)

XIV Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to

Owners of the Parent (1636.90) (3510.04)

Non-controlling Interest (119.48) 9.01

(1756.38) (3501.03)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation s):

(1). Basic (in Rs.) (6.66) (19.94)                        

(2). Diluted (in Rs.) (6.66)                          (19.94)                        

The accompanying notes 1 to 80 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/- sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540)

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023 sd/-

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

Suditi Industries Limited - Consolidated Results

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and st ock-in-

trade

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassifi ed to

Profit or Loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified t o Profit or

Loss

Particulars

Profit/(Loss) before Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates/ Joint

Ventures and tax (V - VI )

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax  (III - IV )



Suditi Industries Limited - Consolidated Results

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before Tax -1,662.91 -2,983.92

Adjustments for:

Finance cost 325.33 452.15

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets (cont inuing and discontinued operations) 187.70 136.57

Share of Profit/(loss) of joint ventures/others -110.45 -518.85

Prior period account -                       -                       

Amortisation of Rights Issue Expenses -                       -                       

Profit on sale of Land & Building -1,326.77 -                       

Profit on sale of Machinery -0.77 -                       

Profit on sale of fixed assets -                       -                       

Impairment loss, net of reversals on financial assets -0.06 20.66

Deferred Revenue/ Deferred Tax Adjustment -                       -                       

Employee's Compensation  & other Equity Adjustment -                       -                       

Operating cash flow before movement in working capital -2,587.93 -2,893.39

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 676.17 105.85

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers under construction contracts -                       -                       

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 1,539.74 1,290.55

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 432.23 -208.80

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 10.61 18.47

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 50.31 883.67

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current/Financial Liabilit ies (excl Deferred Revenue) -440.11 1,355.52

Cash generated from/(used in) operations -318.98 551.87

Income Taxes Paid -                       -                       

Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities -318.98 551.87

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments to acquire financial assets -839.64 -137.78

Proceeds on sale of financial assets 1,501.34 -                       

Movement in Long term loans and advances 637.79 14.10

Subsidy - Interest -                       -                       

Insurance claim received -                       -                       

Movement in Non Current Investments -                       -                       

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities 1,299.49 -123.68

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company 2,642.95 79.00

Proceeds from Non Current borrowings (Incl Deferred revenue) -                       -                       

Repayment of Non Current Borrowings -                       -                       

Proceeds from Current Borrowings  -4,021.13 -40.26

Movement in Other long term liabilities 690.44 -                       

Dividends paid on equity shares and convertible non-partic ipating preference shares -                       -                       

Tax paid on Dividend -                       -                       

Interest paid -325.33 -452.15

Net cash (used in)/ raised from financing activities -1,013.07 -413.40

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -32.57 14.79

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 53.12 38.34

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies -                       -                       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20.56 53.12

0.00

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ in accordance with the Ind AS - 7 notified un der the

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder.

2. The Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31/03/2023 has been approved by the Board of Directors based on the numbers

provided by the respective Group Companies audited by other  Auditors. Previous year figures have been regrouped where necessary.

(Rs. in lacs)

As at March 31, 

2022

As at March 31, 

2021
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of:

Cash on Hand 2.22 4.06

Balances with Banks

    - Current Accounts 3.26 29.70

Earmarked Balances with Banks

    - Unpaid Dividend 15.08 19.35

Cash and Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 20.56 53.12

By order of Board of Directors

For SUDITI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

sd/-

RAJAGOPAL RAJA CHINRAJ

Place:  Navi Mumbai E DIRECTOR (EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR)

Date:   30th May, 2023 DIN: 00158832



3. Explanatory Note on Ind AS 7

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Fair value

changes

Current/Non-

current 

classification

Borrowings - Non Current 369.71           -326.21 -                  -                    43.50

Borrowings - Non Current FCD's -                  -                  -                  -                    -                  

Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 161.81 690.44           -                  -                    852.25

Borrowings - Current 3,799.22 -3,694.92 -                  -                    104.30

The accompanying notes 1 to 80 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/-

sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540) sd/-

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

4. In the Cash Flow Statement, Investment made by the Company in the 50:50 Joint Venture M/s. SAA & Suditi

Retail Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.5 lacs is accounted as per Equi ty method.

Ind AS on Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosu res that enable users of financial

statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activi ties, including both changes arising from

cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconc iliation between the opening and closing

balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing ac tivities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

This disclosure is given below and there is no other i mpact on the financial statements.

 As at March 

31, 

2022 

 Cash Flows Non-cash changes  As at March 

31, 

2023 



Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

a. Equity share capital Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes Balance as at

April 1, 2022

Changes in

Equity Share

Capital due

to prior

period errors

Restated 

Balance as at

April 1, 2022

Changes in

equity share

capital 

during the

year

Balance as at

March 31,

2023

(2,63,67,291 Fully

paid equity

shares of Rs.10/-

each (as at March

31, 2023) 29 1,755.41 -                 1,755.41 881.32          2,636.73

Particulars Notes Balance as at

April 1, 2021

Changes in

Equity Share

Capital due

to prior

period errors

Restated 

Balance as at

April 1, 2021

Changes in

equity share

capital 

during the

year

Balance as at

March 31,

2022

(1,75,54,123  

Fully paid equity

shares of Rs.10/-

each (as at March

31, 2022) 29 1,755.41 -                 1,755.41 -                 1,755.41

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated

Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

During the year the company has issued 8813168 shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs.20/-

per share. The shares were issued on "rights basis" to the shareholders, who were members and

holding shares as on the record date announced by the company for this pu rpose. Accordingly the

share capital of the company has increased from Rs.175541230 to Rs.263672910 after the issue.

The designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited has issued neccessary Lis ting and Trading approval to

the entire shares issued under the Rights issue program.



Other Equity

Amount (Rs. in 

Lakhs)

Securities 

Premium

Share option 

outstanding 

account

Retained 

Earnings

Items of Other 

Comprehensive 

income, that will 

not be 

reclassified to 

Statement of 

Profit & Loss

Total

Balance at April 1, 2021 542.08 19.27 -787.41 17.98 -208.07

Profit/ (loss) for the year -2,900.11 -2,900.11

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of income tax
3.84 3.84

Total comprehensive income for the

year
                          -                             -   -2,900.11 3.84 -2,896.27

Adjustment of Profit/Loss in Subsidiary
-94.93 -94.93

Share of Proft in Joint Venture -518.85 -518.85

Balance at March 31, 2022 542.08 19.27 -4,301.29 21.83 -3,718.11

Profit for the year -1,053.33 -1,053.33

Transfers during the year 1,762.63 1,762.63

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of income tax
11.34 11.34

Total comprehensive income for the

year
              1,762.63                           -   -1,053.33 11.34 720.64

Adjustment of Profit/Loss in Subsidiary
-484.46 -484.46

Share of Profit in Joint Venture -110.45 -110.45

Balance at March 31, 2023 2,304.71 19.27 -5,949.53 33.17 -3,592.38

The accompanying notes 1 to 80 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-

Pawan Agarwal Vivek Gangwal

For Chaturvedi & Partners Chairman Director

Chartered Accountants DIN: 00808731 DIN: 01079807

(Firm Registration No.307068E)

sd/- sd/-

sd/-

Rajagopal Raja Chinraj Krina Gala

Executive Director & CEO Director

Siddharth P Punamiya DIN: 00158832 DIN: 07040989

Partner

(Membership No.148540) sd/-

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

H.Gopalkrishnan

Company Secretary

Navi Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

During the year the company has issued 8813168 shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs.20/- per share. The shares were issued on "rights

basis" to the shareholders, who were members and holding shares as on the record date announced by the company for this purpose.

Accordingly the share capital of the company has increased from Rs.175541230/- to Rs.263672910/- after the issue. Similarly the premium

component of Rs.176263360/- is transferred to Share premium account and disclosed under Other Equity. The designated S tock Exchange BSE

Limited has issued neccessary Listing and Trading a pproval to the entire shares issued under the Rights issue program.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended

31st March, 2023

Particulars Notes

Reserves & Surplus
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1 Group overview:

(a)

(b) Basis of Preparation:

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The Group, Suditi Industries Limited (SIL) (Parent Co) and its Subs idiaries

majorly is in the business of processing and manufacturing of knitted hosiery

fabrics and readymade garments. The company is also in the business of r etail

sector. The manufacturing facilities of the group are situated in India.

The Parent Company is a public limited Company domiciled and incor porated

in India and its Shares are publicly traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange ( BSE

Ltd). The Registered Office of the Company is situated at C-253/254, MIDC,

TTC Industrial Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai - 400 705.

The consolidated financial statements consist of Suditi Industries Ltd (SIL), its

subsidiaries and joint venture. Subsidiaries are those entities in w hich SIL

directly or indirectly has interest more than 50% of the voting rights. The

Company has adopted Equity Method of Accounting while Consolidating the

Financial Results of its Joint Venture Company M/s. SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt.

Ltd. as per Ind AS - 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures". In terms

of the Joint Venture agreement executed by the Company with Project

Anushka Sharma Lifestyle Pvt. Ltd., the Company has accounted for the entire

loss of the Joint Venture in the Consolidated Financial Statements togethe r

with the depletion in value of its Investment.
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a)

31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Subsidiaries &

Indirect Subsidiary

Suditi Design Studio

Limited

100.00% 98.85% 31-03-2023 12 Months

Suditi Sports

Apparels Limited

60% 80% 31-03-2023 12 Months

Joint Venture

SAA & Suditi Retail

Private Limited

50% 50% 31-03-2023 12 Months

b)

c)

d)

Proportion of ownership

interest

Financial 

Statements 

as on

For the 

period

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprises of audited Financial

statements of Suditi Industries Limited (SIL) and the followings as on

31/03/2023.

Name

The Financial Statements of the parent Company and its subsidiaries have

been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding together the book v alue of

like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating Intra-

group balances, Intra-group transactions and unrealised profits or los ses in

accordance with Ind AS 110 – “Consolidated Financial Statements”. The

deferred tax to be recognised for temporary differences arises from

elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra gro up transactions.

Non-controlling Interest represents the equity in a subsidiary not attributable,

directly or indirectly to a Parent. Noncontrolling interest in the net assets of

the subsidiaries being consolidated is identified and presented in the

consolidated Balance Sheet separately from the equity attributable to the

Parent’s shareholders and liabilities. Profit or loss and each compo nent of

other comprehensive income are attributed to Parent and to non-controll ing

interest.

The difference between the cost of investment and share of net assets in the

subsidiaries is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or C apital

Reserve as the case may be. 



e)

f)

g)

3 (a) Reclassification consequent to amendments to Schedule III

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule III to the Companies

Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021 to increase the transparency and provide

additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These amendme nts are

effective from 1 April 2021. Consequent to this, the Group has changed the

classification/presentation of :

(i) The current maturities of long-term borrowings have now been included in

the “Current borrowings” line item. Previously, current maturities of long-

term borrowings were included in ‘other financial liabil ities’ line item.

(ii) Security Deposit has now been included in Other Non Current financial

Assets and Other Current Financial Assets. Previously, Security Deposit was

included in other Non- Current Financial Assets and Curre nt Financial Assets.

(iii) Fixed Deposit has now been included in Other Current Finan cial Assets.

Previously it was included in Bank Balances other than cash and cash

equivalents.

One of the Subsidiary i.e Suditi Design studio limited has not recog nised

deferred tax assets in its books as the Management does not consider it

appropriate to account for the Net Deferred Tax Asset due to uncertainty of

future profits. Accordingly, the same is not recognised in Consolidated

Financial statements.

The Accounting policies of the parent Company, its subsidiary and Jo int

Venture are largely similar.

Significant Accounting policies and notes accompanying to financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are set out in their respective

financial statements.



(b) Note on Recent Pronouncements

a. Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use

b. Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

c. Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments

to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, app licable

from April 1, 2022, as below:

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of

property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced

while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an

entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profi t or loss. The

Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its

recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its fin ancial statements.

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises

the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a

contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (ex amples

would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that rel ate

directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clar ification and

the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact

in its financial statements.

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it appli es the

‘10%’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial

liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any signi ficant

impact in its financial statements.



4 Reporting and presentation currency:

5 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements: 

(i) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities:

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experien ce and

other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates considering different assumptions and conditions.

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of

deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and

the level of future taxable profits. The amount of total deferred tax assets

could change if management estimates of projected future taxable income or

if tax regulations undergo a change.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis . Revisions

to accounting estimates are recognisedin the period in which the estimates are

revised and future periods are affected. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed bel ow.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( `), which is

also the functional currency of the Holding Company. All amounts have b een

rounded off to the nearest Rupee, except share data and as otherwise stated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity wi th

generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates,

assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosures as at the date of the consolidated financial state ments and

the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods reported.



(ii)

(iii) Employee benefit obligations:

(iv) Provisions and contingencies: 

From time to time, the Group is subject to legal proceedings, the ultimate

outcome of each being subject to uncertainties inherent in litigation . A

provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment

will be made and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant

judgement is required when evaluating the provision including, the probability

of an unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of

the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each

accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and

circumstances. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes fo rming part of

the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statem ents

unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) and intangible assets: 

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE and

Intangibles at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the

expected level of usage, technological developments and product life-cycle,

could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the resid ual values of

these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could be revised

and may have an impact on the profit of the future years. 

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuation s. An

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ fr om

actual developments. These include the estimation of the appropriate

discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the

complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the emp loyee

benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptio ns. All

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 



(v) Impairment of Financial assets:
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1. Identifying the contract with customer 

2. Identifying the performance obligations 

3. Determining the transaction price 

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations  

5. Recognising revenue when / as performance obligation(s) are satisfied. 

Revenue from contracts with customers:

To determine whether to recognise revenue from contracts with customers, the

Group follows a 5-step process: 

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment

loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant

increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

• Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from

all possible default events over the life of the Financial instrument).

For trade receivables, the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which

requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of

the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine

impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date

these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking

estimates are analysed.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL)

model, for evaluating impairment of Financial assets other than those

measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount

equal to:

• The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result

from those default events on the Financial instrument that are possible within

12 months after the reporting date); or



(i) Sale of fabrics and garments:

(ii) Sale of scrap:  

(iii) Dividend and interest income:  

Revenue from contracts with customers for products sold and service provided is

recognised when control of promised products or services are transferred to the

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to

be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on

the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract w ith a

customer and excludes Goods and services taxes and is net of rebates and discounts.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term

of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market practice. A receivable is recognised

when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the conside ration is

unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is

due. These activity-specific revenue recognition criteria are based on the goods or

services provided to the customer and the contract conditions in each case, and are

as described below. 

Revenue is recognised when control of the product is transferred to the

customer, being when the products are delivered, accepted and

acknowledged by customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation th at could

affect the customer’s acceptance of the product. Revenue from the sale is

recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of rebates and

discounts.

Revenue from sale of scrap is recognised as and when the control over the

goods is transferred. 

Dividend income is recognised when the unconditional right to re ceive the

income is established. Income from interest on deposits, loans and interest

bearing securities is recognised on the time proportionate method taking in to

account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
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(i) Plant and equipment:

(ii) Land:

Property, plant and equipment:

Plant and other equipment (comprising plant and machinery, furnitu re and

fittings, electrical equipment, office equipment, computers and vehicles) are

initially recognised at acquisition cost, including any costs direc tly attributable

to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Plant and

other equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. Cost of property, plant and

equipment not ready for the intended use before reporting date is disclosed

as capital work in progress.

Land (other than investment property) held for use in production or

administration is stated at cost. As no finite useful life for land can be

determined, related carrying amounts are not depreciated. Subsequent

expenditure incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is added to

the book value of that asset only if thisincreasesthe future benefitsfrom the

existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipm ent are

determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the assets and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

within other income or other expenses. The components of assets are

capitalised only if the life of the components vary significantly and wh ose cost

is significant in relation to the cost of respective asset. The life of components

in assets are determined based on technical assessment and past history of

replacement of such components in the assets. Property, plant and equipment

are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. The cost of property, plant

and equipment includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other

incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the

respective assets. Property, plant and equipment which are retired from

active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book

value or net realizable value. Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready

for the intended use as at balance sheet date are disclosed as “capital work- in-

progress”.
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Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straig ht line method

and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, over its

useful life specified inthe Act, or based on the useful life of the as sets as estimated

by management based on technical evaluation and advice. The residual valu e is

generally assessed as 5% of the acquisition cost which is considere d to be the

amount recoverable at the end of the asset’s useful life. The residual values, useful

lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at

each financial year end.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels

for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a

result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at

cash-generating unit level. All individual assets or cash-generatin g units are tested

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the

amount by which the asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) carrying amount exceeds its

recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-

in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash

flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for

impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved

budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganizations and

asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-

generating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value of money

and asset-specific risk factors. Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce

first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cashgenerating unit. Any

remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-

generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequ ently

reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no

longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s

recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount. 

Depreciation and amortization:



10

(a) Company as a lessee

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as

lease as defined under Ind AS 116.The Company determines the lease term as

the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with periods covered by an

option to extend the lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to

exercise that option. The Company at the commencement of the lease

contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease

liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term

leases) and low value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the

Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight

line basis over the lease term. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the

amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments

made at or before the inception date of the lease, plus any initial direct c osts,

less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets are

measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use assets are amortised over the lease

period from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful

life of right-of-use asset.

Leases:

The company recognizes all the Lease agreements including Leave & License

Agreements executed for tenue which is more than one year as per the

requirements under Ind AS 116. Accordingly, the Company recognizes the value of

the total sum of the Lease Rent Obligation for the entire period covered under the

agreement as an Asset under "Right to Use" with corresponding Obligation as a

Liability under "Lease Liability". The asset acquired as Right to Use ov er a period of

more than one year as stated in the agreement is further discounted and ascertained

the present value of the entitlement to use the asset. The asset is amortized over the

lease period proportionately in the books as charges during the particu lar year.

Similarly, the lease liability is proportionately reduced by accounti ng the monthly

lease payments. Both the assets and liabilities including the charges are r eflected in

the books.

The estimated useful life of right-of-use assets are determined on the same

basis as those of property, plant and equipment. The Company applies In d AS

36 to determine whether an RoU asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss as described in the impairment of nonf inancial

assets below.



(b) Company as a lessor

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Company

measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that

are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, if that

rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the

incremental borrowing rate that the Company would have to pay to borrow

funds, including the consideration of factors such as the nature of the as set

and location, collateral, market terms and conditions, as applicable in a s imilar

economic environment. After the commencement date, the amount of lease

liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the

lease payments made. The Company recognizes the amount of the

remeasurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets.

Where the carrying amount of the right-of use asset is reduced to zero and

there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the

Company recognizes any remaining amount of the measurement in statement

of profit and loss. Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in

financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

Leases under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or

operating leases. Lease contracts where all the risks and rewards are

substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease contracts are classified as

finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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a. Amortised cost 

b. Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or 

c. Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial instruments:

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to

identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of

financial assets is impaired.Different criteria to determine impair ment are applied

for each category of financial assets, which are described below.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financi al assets other

than equity instruments are classified into categories: financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss and at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equi ty

instruments are classified as fair value through profit orloss orfair value through

other comprehensive income. Financial liabilities are classified into financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost. Fin ancial instruments

are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. Initially, a financial instru ment is

recognised at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the ac quisition

or issue of financial instruments are recognised in determining the carrying amount,

if it is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Subse quently, financial

instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets for the purpose of

subsequent measurement financial assets are classified and measured based on the

Group’s business model for managing the financial asset and the contrac tual cash

flow characteristics of the financial asset at:



a. Financial assets at amortised cost:

b. Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive I ncome (FVOCI): 

Includes assets that are held within a business model where the objec tive is

both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets along with

the contractual terms giving rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outs tanding.

At initial recognition, the Group, based on its assessment, makes an

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income the changes in

the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is not held fo r

trading. These selections are made on an instrument-by-instrument (i .e.,

share-by-share) basis. If the Group decides to classify an equity ins trument as

at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding divi dends,

impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, are

recognised in other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the

amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. The di vidends

from such instruments are recognised in statement of profit and loss . The fair

value of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active

market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market

exists. The loss allowance at each reporting period is evaluated based o n the

expected credit losses for next 12 months and credit risk exposure. The Group

also measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount

equalto the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial

instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. The loss

allowance shall be recognised in other comprehensive income and shall not

reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balanc e sheet.

Includes assets that are held within a business model where the objec tive is to

hold the financial assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual

terms gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These asse ts are

measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The loss allowance at each reporting period is evaluated based on the

expected credit losses for next 12 months and credit risk exposure. The Group

also measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount

equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial

instrument has increased significantly since initial recogn ition. 



c.
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(i) Raw materials:

(ii) Work in progress and finished goods:

Work in progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net

realizable value. Cost includes the combined cost of material, labour and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capaci ty.

Cost of finished goods includes goods & services tax/excise du ty, wherever

applicable. Cost is determined on a First in First out basis. Net r ealisable value

is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and to make the sale.

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL ): 

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are designated at FVT PL

upon initial recognition and financial assets that are not measured at

amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. All

derivative financialinstruments fall into this category, except for those

designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge

accounting requirements apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair

value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair v alue of

financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market

transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists. The

loss allowance at each reporting period is evaluated based on the expected

credit losses for next 12 months and credit risk exposure. The Group also

measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to

the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial

instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. The loss

allowance shall be recognised in profit and loss.

Inventories:

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However,

materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not

written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be

incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a

First in First out basis. 



(iii) Stores and Spares: 
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(i) Provident fund:

(ii) Other funds:

Stores and spares consists of packing materials, engineering spares and

consumables which are used in operating machines or consumed as ind irect

materials in the manufacturing process, has been valued using weighted

average cost method. The cost comprises of costs of purchase, duties and

taxes(other than those subsequently recoverable), conversion cost and other

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locatio n and

condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the o rdinary

course of business less estimated cost to completion and applicable s elling

expenses.

Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution plan:

Contribution to Provident Fund in India and other defined contribu tion plans in the

other entities of the Group are in the nature of defined contribution plan and are

made to a recognised fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obl igations to pay

contributions in addition to its fixed contributions, which are recog nised as an

expense in the period that related employee services are received. 

The Holding Company makes contribution to the statutory provident fund in

accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,

1952, which is a defined contribution plan, and contribution paid or payable is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it falls due. Contri butions to

defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the

period which the related service is performed. 

The Group’s contribution towards defined contribution plan is accru ed in

compliance with the requirement of the domestic laws of the countries in

which the consolidated entities operate in the year of which the contribu tions

are done. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

charged as an expense as they fall due. 



(i) Gratuity: 

(ii) Leave salary - compensated absences :

The Group also extends defined benefit plans in the form of compen sated

absences to employees. Provision for compensated absences is made on

actuarial valuation basis.

Defined benefit Plan:

Under the Group’s defined benefit plans, the amount of benefit that an employee

will receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service

and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Gr oup, even if

plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. Plan assets may

include assets specifically designated to a long-term benef it fund as well as qualifying 

insurance policies.

The defined benefit funds maintained by the Group are as b elow:

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position for de fined

benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligatio n (DBO) at

the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. The Group estimates the

DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. This is based on

standard rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors

are determined close to each year-end by reference to high quality corporate

bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will b e paid

and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related

gratuity liability. Service cost on the Group’s defined benefit pl an is included in

employee benefits expense. Employee contributions, all of whic h are

independent of the number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of

service cost. Actuarial gains and losses resulting from measurements of the

net defined benefit liability are included in other compr ehensive income.
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Taxation: 

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss comprises the sum of

deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates in accor dance with

tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on

temporary differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes at reporting date. Deferred taxes

pertaining to items recognised in other comprehensive income are also disclosed

under the same head. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is

probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary differe nce will be

utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the re spective

entity’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable

income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax lo ss or credit.

Deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill , or on the initial

recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a bu siness

combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally

recognised in full, although Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’specifies limited exemptions. As

a result of these exemptions the Group does not recognise deferred tax liability on

temporary differences relating to goodwill, or to its investments in subsidiaries.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax

income or expense in the statement of profit and loss, except where they relate to

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income (such as the re-

measurement of defined benefit plans) or directly in equity, in which case the

related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity,

respectively. 

Contingent liabilities and provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive

obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of ec onomic

resources will be required from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
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18 Asset held for sale:

Non-current assets and disposals groups are classified as held for s ale if their

carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only whe n the asset (or

disposal) is available for immediate sale in its present condition sub ject only to terms

that are usual and customary for sale of such assets and its sales is highly pr obable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before

exceptional items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non- cash

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In the

cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheq ues on

hand, balances with banks in current accounts and other short- term highl y liquid

investments with original maturities of 3 months or less, as  applicable.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present

obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date,

including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obli gation. Where

there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflo w will be

required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a

whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of

money is material. Any reimbursement that the Group is virtually certain to collect

from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset.

However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. No liability

is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is

not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilitie s if the outflow of

resources is remote. The Group does not recognise contingent assets unless the

realization of the income is virtually certain, however these are assessed continually

to ensure that the developments are appropriately disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements. 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, toge ther

with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 3 mo nths from the

date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in v alue.



19 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Carrying amounts of:

Land (Leasehold)

Building

Plant & Machinery

Furniture and Fixtures

Office & Other Equipments

Computers

Electric Installation

Vehicles

Right to use Amortised Value of Assets

Capital work-in-progress

Intangible assets

Carrying amounts of:

Software

Property , Plant & Equipment :

 Particulars Land 

(Leasehold)

Building Plant and

Machinery

Furniture 

and Fixtures

Office &

Other 

Equipments

Computers Electric 

Installation

Vehicles Right to use 

Amortised 

Value of 

Assets

Total

Gross Block

Cost or Deemed Cost

Balance at March 31, 2022 16.42 384.73 3119.19 790.41 230.28 202.90 200.01 24.55 38.54 5007.04

Additions -                  112.73           0.20 41.45 0.12 0.11 0.62               -                  838.53 993.76

Disposals/Adjustment 16.42 497.46 11.40 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  38.54 563.82              

Balance at March 31, 2023 -                  -                  3107.99 831.86 230.40 203.01 200.63 24.55 838.53 5436.98

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at March 31, 2022 1.15 311.56 2854.81 518.68 166.00 188.03 151.24 15.43 38.54 4245.43

Depreciation charge for the

year 0.19 27.76 20.36 60.93 17.08 2.66 9.15 1.34 48.23 187.71

Depreciation adjustment

for the year -1.34 -339.32 -10.83 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -38.54 -390.03

Balance at March 31, 2023 -                  -                  2,864.34       579.61 183.08 190.69 160.39 16.77 48.23 4043.11

Carrying amount

Balance at March 31, 2022 15.27 73.17 264.38 271.74 64.28 14.88 48.78 9.11 -                  761.61

Balance at March 31, 2023 -                  -                  243.65 252.24 47.32 12.32 40.24 7.77 790.31 603.54

Intangible Assets

Gross Block

Cost or Deemed Cost

Balance at March 31, 2022

Additions

Disposals

Balance at March 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at March 31, 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

Balance at March 31, 2023

Carrying amount

Balance at March 31, 2022

Balance at March 31, 2023

Note:
a) During the year, the Company has disposed off the property located at C-253/254, MIDC, TTC Industrial Area, Pawne Village, Turbhe, Navi Mumbai from which it was

operating it's process house. The Company has disposed only the Land & Building whereas all the Plant and related equipment continue to remain with the Company. The

Company had taken approval from the Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution in the 31st Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2022. The proceeds from

the sale of property have been utilized to fully liquidate the working cap ital borrowings. The Company has computed the profit on the sale of the p roperty in accordance

with the applicable tax provisions and accounted for it accordingly in its  books of accounts.

b) Since the Company was unable to identify a suitable alternative location to shift the process house operations, it has entered into a Leave and License agreement with

Buyer of the Property for an initial period of 5 years. 

243.65 264.38

40.24 48.78

252.24 271.74

47.32 64.28

12.32 14.88

-                                            153.92

-                                            15.27

-                                            73.17

 As at March 31, 2023  As at March 31, 2022 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

7.77 9.11

1393.85 761.61

790.31                                     -                                               

 As at March 31, 2023  As at March 31, 2022 

1393.85 915.53

4.12 4.29

4.12 4.29

 Software  Total  Trademark 

45.02 45.02

-                                            -                                               

-                                            -                                               

3.00

-                                            

-                                            

0.17 0.17

40.90 40.90

45.02 45.02

40.7340.73

Total

3.00

3.00

-                                            

3.00

4.29 4.29

4.12 4.12

Total

-                                            

-                                            



19.1 Ageing Schedule for Capital Work-in-progess

As at March 31, 2023

CWIP aging schedule Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

CWIP / Intangible assets

under development Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 year

Projects in progress -             -             -             -             -             

Projects temporarily

suspended -             -             -             -             -             

CWIP / Intangible assets

under development To be completed in

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 year

Projects 1 -             -             -             -             

Projects 2 -             -             -             -             

As at March 31, 2022

CWIP aging schedule Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

CWIP / Intangible assets

under development

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 year

Projects in progress 11.65         13.77         88.96         39.54         153.92       

Projects temporarily

suspended

-             -             -             -             -             

CWIP / Intangible assets

under development

To be completed in

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than

3 year

Projects 1 11.65         13.77         88.96         39.54         

Projects 2 -             -             -             -             

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



20 Loans Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Non- Current

Unsecured, considered Good

Security Deposits 152.94                   767.92                   

Capital Advances -                          27.92

Total 152.94 795.84

Current

Loans & Advances to Employees 1.21 2.90

Total 1.21 2.90

21 Other Non Current Financial Assets Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed Deposit with Banks 71.48 66.37

Bank deposits with original maturity for

more than 12 months

Total 71.48 66.37

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



22 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets presented in the balance sheet:

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Asset 21.74 6.58

Total 21.74 6.58

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Deferred tax Assets 

Related to Other Current Liabilities 2.52 2.47

Related to Plant, Property & Equipment
19.97 4.87

Total 22.49 7.33

Deferred tax Liabilities

Total -                         -                         

Deffered Tax Liability on OCI -0.76 -0.76

Impact of Change in Tax Rate -                          -                          

Net deferred tax (liability) / asset 21.74 6.58

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



23 Other Assets Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

(A) Other Non- Current Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good

Prepaid Expenses -                          -                          

Security Deposits 0.50 0.50

Total of Other Non- Current Assets 0.50 0.50

(B) Other Current Assets

Other Advances 19.92 125.50

Advance to Suppliers 435.98 627.44

Prepaid Expenses 1.97 4.42

Others:-

- Balances with government authorities

- Central Excise and Customs -                          5.37

GST receivable 200.71 310.20

Sales tax Refund and Set-off -                          81.90

-

Total of Other Current Assets 658.58 1154.84

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



24 Inventories Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Inventories (lower of cost and net

realisable value)

- Raw materials 82.96 122.68

- Work-in-progress 126.82 329.73

- Finished goods 826.45 2102.35

- Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

- Stores and spares 66.17 72.56

- Fuel & Oil 2.00 16.81

Total 1104.39 2644.13

Particulars

Amount (Rupees)

Security

hypothecated/pl

edged against

31st March 2023

— Raw Materials / Work-in-progress -                          

— Finished goods / Stock-in-trade -                          

31st March 2022

— Raw Materials / Work-in-progress 452.41

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Working Capital

Loan from Axis

Bank Limited &

The South Indian

Bank Limited in

respect of Suditi

Industries Limited

Details of inventories pledged for Bank Borrowings as security for liabilities

is as follows:

Working Capital

Loans repaid

completely during

the year



— Finished goods / Stock-in-trade 2102.35

Mode of valuation:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, consumables, stores,spares and packing materials:

Finished goods and work in progress:

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition

are accounted for as follows:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringi ng the

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determi ned on a

weighted average basis.

Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but

excluding borrowing costs. Finished goods are valued on standard c ost basis

that approximates to actual cost.

Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incur red in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Tr aded goods

are valued at standard cost that approximates to actual cost.

Industries Limited

& from Indian

Overseas Bank in

respect of Suditi

Design Studio

Limited

*Note: Since the working capital loans have been fully repaid during the year

the current assets--raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods are no

longer hypothecated/pledged with the Banks.



25 Other investments Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.

in Lakhs)

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.

in Lakhs)

(A) Investments in

Equity Instruments

Quoted- Others (At

Fair Value through

OCI)

IDBI Bank Limited -

Fully paid-up 2,880             1.30 2,880             1.23

[2880 (Including Bonus

Shares issues of 1080

shares)]

Total Aggregate

Quoted Investments

(A) 2,880             1.30 2,880             1.23

Investment in equity shares are recognised at fair value through profit and loss.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

As at March 31, 2022As at March 31, 2023



26 Trade Receivables Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Current

Secured

(a) Considered good -                          

— From Related Parties 663.88 666.89

— From Others 206.62 1252.97

Unsecured

(a) Considered good

— From Related Parties -                          -                          

— From Others 1843.61 903.79

(b) Receivables which have significant

increase in credit risk

— From Related Parties -                          -                          

— From Others 641.53                   1279.71

Allowance for expected credit loss

(a) Receivables which have significant

increase in credit risk

— From Related Parties -                          -                          

— From Others (783.44) (856.68)

Credit impaired -                          -                          

Total 2572.20 3246.68

Movement in provisions of doubtful debts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Opening Provision 856.68 561.82

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



Add : Additional Provision made 554.26 294.86

Less : Provision write off 627.50 -                          

Closing Provisions 783.44 856.68

Note : Allowance for bad & doubtful debts is created in accordance with

‘expected credit loss’ model prescribed under Ind AS 109.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and credit period generally falls in

the range of 30 to 120 days terms.

The company has some balances of certain customers accumulated over a

period of time which became non moving particularly after the pandemic

crisis. The same continued to remain non-moving and carried forward from

year to year without any major movement due to differences in the claims and

counterclaims from the customer. Accordingly the company every year used

to make necessary provisions in the books in respect of those accounts where

balances are either challenged by the customers or under scrutiny for

reconciliation. During the year the management has completed the scrutiny

and reconciliation of some of the major customers and decided to write off

those balances which are in excess of the provision made for bad debts in the

books. Accordingly the company has written off an amount of Rs.627.50 Lakhs

in the books and consequent to that total amount of Rs.1410.94 Lakhs has

now been removed from the books of account due to write off & provision.



26.1 Ageing for trade receivables is as follows

As at March 31, 2023

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

Less than 6

months

6 months

– 1 year 

1-2 year 2-3 year More than

3 year

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade

receivables- 

considered good

545.72       52.05         545.45       416.45       808.32       2,367.99    

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables –

considered doubtful

-             -             5.34           13.83         516.70       535.88       

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables– 

considered good

-             -             -             -             416.75       416.75       

(v) Disputed Trade

Receivables –

considered doubtful

-             -             -             -             35.03         35.03         

TOTAL 545.72       52.05         550.79       430.28       1,776.80    3,355.64    

As at March 31, 2022

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

Less than 6

months

6 months

– 1 year 

1-2 year 2-3 year More than

3 year

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade

receivables- 

considered good

1,490.29    346.84       440.63       679.52       374.47       3,331.73    

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables –

considered doubtful

-             -             -             26.16         0.36           26.53         

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables– 

considered good

-             -             -             184.11       225.54       409.65       

(v) Disputed Trade

Receivables –

considered doubtful

-             -             13.11         186.19       136.15       335.45       

TOTAL 1,490.29    346.84       453.74       1,075.98    736.52       4,103.36    

-             

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated

Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment



27 Cash and Cash Equivalents Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Balances with Banks 3.26 29.70

Cash on hand 2.22 4.06

Others :

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 15.08 19.35

Total 20.56 53.12

28 Current tax assets Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Current tax assets

Income Tax (TDS Receivable, Net of 

Provisions) 178.19 114.16

Total 178.19 114.16

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



29 Equity share capital Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 

31,  2023

As at March 

31,  2022

Equity share capital 2,636.73          1,755.41          

Total 2,636.73 1,755.41

Authorised Share Capital

3,000.00          3,000.00          

Issued, subscribed & Paid Up

2,636.73          1,755.41          

Total 2,636.73          1,755.41          

 Fully paid equity shares

Number of 

shares

Share capital

(Amount)

Balance at March 31, 2022 1,75,54,123    1755.41

Addition to equity share capital during the year 88,13,168       881.32             

Balance at March 31, 2023 2,63,67,291    2636.73

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

3,00,00,000 Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- each

(2,63,67,291 Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- each (as

at March 31, 2023) ;

(1,75,54,123 of 10 each as at March 31, 2022)

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs. 10, carry one vote per share

and carry a right to dividends.

Particulars

During the year the company has issued 88,13,168 shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium

of Rs.20/- per share. The shares were issued on "rights basis" to the shareholders, who

were members and holding shares as on the record date announced by the company

for this purpose. Accordingly the share capital of the company has increased from

Rs.17,55,41,230/- to Rs.26,36,72,910/- after the issue. The designated Stock Exchange

BSE Limited has issued neccessary Listing and Trading approval to the entire shares

issued under the Rights issue program.



Number of 

shares held

% holding of 

equity shares

Number of 

shares held

% holding of 

equity shares

1,68,13,398    63.766             1,13,87,255    64.869             

Shares reserved for issue under options

1) The company has so far allotted 317320 shares.

2) The balance as on 31st March 2023 is 642680 options which is yet to be

granted to the employees from reserved portion of the equity capital.

There has been no allotment of shares pursuant to contract(s) without payment being

received in (cash during 5 years immediately preceding 31st March, 2023).

960000 shares were reserved for issue under the Employees Stock Option Plan

pursuant to a special resolution passed in 20th Annual General Meeting held on 2nd

September, 2011. During the year 2021-22, the Company has neither granted any

options to any employees nor any options were exercised as there are no options

pending which are yet to be exercised. The details of the options granted and exercised

in past are as follows.

Details of Ordinary (Equity) shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the

aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

The company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having a face value of

Rs.10/- each. The equity shareholders are entitled to dividend only if dividend in a

particular financial year is recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by

the members at the annual general meeting of that year. In the event of liquidation of

the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equi ty shares held by share holders.

Name of the

Shareholder

Fully paid equity shares
Pawan Kishorilal

Agarwal



29.1 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters / Promoters group

Sr No. Promoter name 
No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares

1 PAWAN AGARWAL

(KEY PROMOTER,

DIRECTOR)

16813398 63.77 11387255 64.87

2 SHALINI AGARWAL

(P/PG/PAC)
326044 1.24 209600 1.19

3 RAJENDRA AGARWAL

(P/PG/PAC) 40788 0.15 26221 0.15

4 ARCHANA AGARWAL

(PG/PAC) 77000 0.29 49500 0.28

5 HARSH AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)
35000 0.13 22500 0.13

6 TANAY AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)
35000 0.13 22500 0.13

7 TANUJ AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)
35000 0.13 22500 0.13

8 MEENA GUPTA

(PG/PAC)
15555 0.06 10000 0.06

9 SHILPA AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)
3888 0.01 2500 0.01

10 BLACK GOLD LEASING

PVT. LTD.

(PG/PAC)

1519717 5.76 19717 0.11

11 R. PIYARELALL PVT.

LTD.

(PG/PAC)

155 0.00 100 0.00

Total 18901545 71.69 11772393 67.06

Note P means Promoter

PG means Promoter Group

PAC means Persons Acting in Concert

Shares held by promoters at the end of year 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

As on 31st March, 2023 As on 31st March, 2022



29.2 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters / Promoters group

Sr No. Promoter name No. of shares 
% of total 

shares

% 

change 

during 

the

year

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares

% 

change 

during 

the

year

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares

1 PAWAN 

AGARWAL

(KEY 

PROMOTER, 

DIRECTOR)

16813398 63.77 (1.10) 11387255 64.87 0.61 11279991 64.26

2 SHALINI 

AGARWAL

(P/PG/PAC)

326044 1.24 0.04 209600 1.19             -   209600 1.19

3 RAJENDRA 

AGARWAL

(P/PG/PAC)

40788 0.15 0.01 26221 0.15             -   26221 0.15

4 ARCHANA 

AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)

77000 0.29 0.01 49500 0.28             -   49500 0.28

5 HARSH 

AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)

35000 0.13 0.00 22500 0.13             -   22500 0.13

6 TANAY 

AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)

35000 0.13 0.00 22500 0.13             -   22500 0.13

7 TANUJ 

AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)

35000 0.13 0.00 22500 0.13             -   22500 0.13

8 MEENA GUPTA

(PG/PAC)
15555 0.06 0.00 10000 0.06             -   10000 0.06

9 SHILPA 

AGARWAL

(PG/PAC)

3888 0.01 0.00 2500 0.01             -   2500 0.01

10 BLACK GOLD

LEASING PVT.

LTD.

(PG/PAC)

1519717 5.76 5.65 19717 0.11             -   19717 0.11

11 R. PIYARELALL

PVT. LTD.

(PG/PAC)

155 0.00 0.00 100 0.00             -   100 0.00

Total 18901545 71.69 11772393 67.06 11665129 66.45

Note P means Promoter

PG means Promoter Group

PAC means Persons Acting in Concert

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the

year ended 31st March, 2023

Shares held by promoters at the end of year 

As on 31st March, 2023 As on 31st March, 2022 As on 1st April 2021



30 Other Equity Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Retained earnings (5949.53) (4301.29)

Securities premium reserve 2304.71 542.08

Share option outstanding account 19.27 19.27

Items of Other Comprehensive

Income
33.17 21.83

Total (3592.38) (3718.11)

The details are as follows:-

Retained Earnings As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Balance at the beginning of year (4301.29) (787.41)

Add: Profit During the year (1053.33) (2900.11)

Impact on Account of Deferred Tax -                          -                          

Adjustment of Profit/Loss of

Subsidiary
(484.46) (94.93)

Share of Profit/(Loss) in Joint Venture
(110.45) (518.85)

Balance at end of year (5949.53) (4301.29)

Securities premium As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Balance at the beginning of year 542.08 542.08

Add: Transfers during the year 1,762.63                -                          

Balance at end of year 2304.71 542.08

Share option outstanding account As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Balance at the beginning of year 19.27 19.27

Add: Transfers during the year -                          -                          

Balance at end of year 19.27 19.27

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



Items of other comprehensive

income 

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Balance at the beginning of year 21.83 17.98

Add: Additions during the year 11.34 3.84

Balance at end of year 33.17 21.83

Description of nature & purpose of each reserve:

Retained Earnings: Created from Profit/loss of the Company, as adjusted for

distribution to owners, transfers to other reserves etc.

Securities Premium: Securities premium reserve is created due to premium

on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share option outstanding account: Created for recording the grant date

fair value of options issued to employees under the Employees stock option

schemes & is adjusted on exercise/forfeiture of options.

Items of other comprehensive income: Created for transferring the re-

measurements gains & losses on defined benefit plans.



31 Non-current borrowings Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

 

Secured 

(ii). Term loans

- From banks * 54.33 597.36

Less: Current maturities of Long-term debt 10.83                     227.64

Total non-current borrowings 43.50 369.71

32 Other non-current liabilities Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Security Deposits 107.64 161.81

Lease Liability (Refer Note no.63) 744.61 -                          

Total 852.25 161.81

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Particulars

* TUF Loan amounting to Rs. 54.33 lakhs is secured by lien marked on Fixed Deposit

(Refer Note No.21) by the Company. It is further secured by hypothecation of specific

plant & machinery procured by utilization of the loan.



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

33 Current borrowings Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

a). Loans repayable on demand

- from Commercial Banks -                          2098.11

- from Directors -                          750.00

- from Promoter Group -                          450.00

- from others 93.47                     273.47

b). Current maturities of Long-term debt 10.83                     227.64

Total 104.30 3799.22

1)

Particulars

Secured Loans are the Credit Facilities availed by the Company from its existing Banks

viz. M/s. Axis Bank Limited and The South Indian Bank Limited under Emergency Credit

Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) extended by the Reserve Bank of Indian (RBI) to

support the Companies during the pandemic period. The Company had during FY 2020-

21 received Rs.4,85,00,000/- from Axis Bank Limited and Rs.1,96,93,000/- from The

South Indian Bank Limited. These Facilities are extended without any counter-

guarantee to the Bank. However, these loans are secured against the hypothecation of

the Company's Inventory & Book Debts. The Rate of Interest charged by Axis Bank

Limited is 8.75% and The South Indian Bank Limited is 8.65%. The Company has repaid

the entire loan during the year.



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

2)

3) Current maturities of Long-term debt is the installment due for payment pertaining to

TUF Loan.

Loans of Commercial Banks includes the borrowings from Axis Bank Limited and The

South Indian Bank Limited . Rate of interest charged for the working capital borrowing

in respect of Axis Bank Limited is MCLR + 1.5% p.a. & The South Indian Bank Limited is

MCLR + 0.55% p.a. Working capital loan is secured by hypothecation of inventories and

book debts. The loan is collaterally secured by Land & Building and Plant & machinery

located at Pawne village Turbhe, Navi Mumbai and also personal guarantee executed

by Chairman Shri Pawan Agarwal in favour of both the Banks. During the year the

Company has repaid the entire Working Capital Loan availed from the Commercial

Banks. Further, since the Subsidiary Company has paid back their entire loans in the

previous year, there are no Loans outstanding in the books of subsidiaries as on

31/03/2023.



34.1 Ageing of Trade Payables:

As at March 31, 2023

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

Less than 1

years

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than

3 years

Total

i) MSME 633.13       -             -             42.33         675.46       

(ii) Other 882.67       1,126.28    204.57       703.02       2,916.54    

(iii) Disputed

dues – MSME

-             -             -             -             -             

(iii) Disputed

dues – Others

-             -             -             -             -             

As at March 31, 2022

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

Less than 1

years

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than

3 years

Total

i) MSME 479.78       0.66           1.93           0.16           482.54       

(ii) Other 1,697.44    594.97       45.04         721.72       3,059.17    

(iii) Disputed

dues – MSME

-             -             -             -             -             

(iii) Disputed

dues – Others

-             -             -             -             -             

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment



35 Other financial liabilities Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Current

a Employee Benefits Payable 100.83 65.74

b Outstanding Expenses 70.01 94.39

c Vendor Payment Facility 85.32 85.99

d Unpaid Dividend 15.07 19.35

Total 271.23 265.48

36 Provisions Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Non-current

Defined benefit liability (net) 47.23 37.23

Other long term employee

obligations 16.52 18.39

Total 63.75 55.62

Current

Defined benefit liability (net) 1.20 0.01

Other long term employee

obligations 5.11 7.21

Audit Fees Payable 13.97 10.59

Total 20.28 17.81

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st

March, 2023

Note: An amount of Rs.422509/-, being unclaimed dividend, has been

transferred during the year to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund as per applicable Rules and reported to the Registrar of

Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.



37 Other current liabilities Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

TDS Payable 15.52 22.36

Professional Tax Payable 1.39 1.35

Income tax payable -                          -                          

Advance to employee -                          -                          

Advances from Customers 878.31 1507.15

Lease Liability (Refer Note no.63) 59.85 -                          

Provident fund 2.87 3.27

ESIC 0.42 0.50

Sales tax 19.06 0.87

GST Payable -                          -                          

Share of loss from JV 1,254.57                1144.13

Total 2231.99 2679.63

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st

March, 2023



38 Revenue from operations Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

A. Revenue from contracts with customers

disaggregated based on nature of product or

services

(a) Revenue from Sale of Products:

- Manufactured goods 10267.68 10308.89

- Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

Sub-Total (a) 10267.68 10308.89

(b) Other operating revenues:

- Export incentives -                          -                          

- Royalty received From subsidiaries and

associates -                          -                          

- Royalty received From others -                          -                          

- Scrap Sales 10.61 19.43

- Others (specify details) -                          -                          

Sub-Total (b) 10.61 19.43

Total Revenue from Operations (a+b) 10278.29 10328.32

B. Revenue from contracts with customers

disaggregated based on geography

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

The table below presents disaggregated

revenue from contracts with customers for

the year ended March 2023 and March 2022.

The Company believes that this

disaggregation best depicts how the nature,

amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues

and cash flows are affected by industry,

market and other economic factors

(a) Domestic 10278.29 10328.32

(b) Exports -                          -                          

Total Revenue from Operations (a+b) 10278.29 10328.32

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023



C. Reconciliation of Gross Revenue from

Contracts With Customers

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Gross Revenue 10454.81 11935.67

Less : Discount 16.79 1166.35

Less : Returns 136.95 408.83

Less : price concession 22.75 32.18

Less : incentives and performance bonus -                          -                          

Less : Others (specify details) -                          -                          

Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with

Customers 10278.30 10328.32

Notes:

39 Other Income Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

(a). Interest Income from:

- Bank deposits 3.44 0.30

3.44 0.30

(b). Other non-operating income 

Profit on sale of Land & Building 1326.77 -                          

- Miscellaneous Income (Fees, Charges & Write

Backs) 43.85 85.34

1370.62 85.34

(a + b ) 1374.06 85.64

C1. The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit

period which on an average is less than 180 days. There is no significant financing

component in any transaction with the customers.

C2. The Company provides agreed upon performance warranty for all range of

products. The amount of liability towards such warranty is immaterial.

C3. The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts

entered for sale of goods are for a shorter duration. There are no contracts for sale

of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price

has been allocated.



Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

40 Cost of Materials consumed

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Opening stock 122.68                   138.44                   

Add: Purchases 5,832.48                6,729.96                

Less: Closing stock 82.96                      122.68                   

5,872.20                6,745.72                

Raw Material and packaging material consumed:

Chemicals 366.52                   409.90                   

Dyes 165.03                   180.27                   

Yarn & Fabric 4,978.29                5,912.94                

Other Raw Materials 362.36                   242.61                   

5,872.20                6,745.72                

41 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 826.44 2865.82

Work-in-progress 126.82 329.73

Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

953.25 3,195.55

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods 2102.35 3686.44

Work-in-progress 329.73 46.91

Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

2432.08 3733.35

1478.83 537.80

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The difference in the Last Year Closing Value & Current Year Opening Value of the

Finished Goods Inventory is due to writing down the value of the Inventory in the

Previous Year which is separetly reflected in the Profit & Loss A/c under exceptional

items.



Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

40 Cost of Materials consumed

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Opening stock 122.68                   138.44                   

Add: Purchases 5,832.48                6,729.96                

Less: Closing stock 82.96                      122.68                   

5,872.20                6,745.72                

Raw Material and packaging material consumed:

Chemicals 366.52                   409.90                   

Dyes 165.03                   180.27                   

Yarn & Fabric 4,978.29                5,912.94                

Other Raw Materials 362.36                   242.61                   

5,872.20                6,745.72                

41 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,  

2023

As at March 31,  

2022

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 826.44 2865.82

Work-in-progress 126.82 329.73

Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

953.25 3,195.55

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods 2102.35 3686.44

Work-in-progress 329.73 46.91

Stock-in-trade -                          -                          

2432.08 3733.35

1478.83 537.80

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the

Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The difference in the Last Year Closing Value & Current Year Opening Value of the

Finished Goods Inventory is due to writing down the value of the Inventory in the

Previous Year which is separetly reflected in the Profit & Loss A/c under exceptional

items.

















































b) Transactions with related parties:

Suditi Industries Limited

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

For year

ended March

2023

For year

ended March

2022

For year

ended March

2023

For year

ended March

2022

For year

ended March

2023

For year

ended March

2022

a)

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. 783.43          699.71          

2 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. 0.48               -                 

3 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 1.01               2.54               

4 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

5 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. 19.56             48.27             

b) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. 0.62               1.30               

2 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

3 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

4 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. -                 1.49               

5 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 2.44               -                 

6 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. -                 7.50               

c) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -                 0.41               

2 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. 230.27          546.35          

3 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. 3.07               1.86               

4 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd. -                 0.88               

5 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd. 25.99             31.99             

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended

31st March, 2023

Description Joint Ventures Relatives of

KMPs

Entities in which a director

or his/her relative is a

member or director

Sale of Goods/Related Services

Purchase of Goods

Expenses towards Services received



6 Chendur Enterprises 6.03               6.52               

7 Chendur Inc. 5.96               5.96               

8 Ve Laxmi Exim LLP 7.78               7.78               

9 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

10 Mr. Harsh Pawan Agarwal 31.41             22.96             

d) 

1 SK BLR Knits and Apparel Pvt. Ltd.

(Receivable)

-                 2.07               

2 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Receivable) -                 -                 

3 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Payable) 719.20          1,297.97       

4 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Deposits

Receivable)

-                 303.81          

5 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 211.42          16.89             

6 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 47.76             47.76             

7 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 27.17             24.90             

8 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 528.92          716.62          

9 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd.

(Receivable)

46.79             38.48             

10 Chendur Dress Manufacturers Pvt. Ltd.

(Payable)

35.23             20.31             

11 Chendur Enterprises (Receivable) 2.45               -                 

12 Chendur Enterprises (Payable) 3.51               2.00               

13 Chendur Inc. (Payable) 3.47               1.99               

14 Ve Laxmi Exim LLP (Payable) 4.54               2.59               

e) 

1 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Unsecured

Loan)

-                 450.00          

2 Shri Pawan Agarwal (Unsecured Loan) -                 750.00          

The figures are re-grouped / re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary.

Balance Outstanding as at the year end

Loan Taken



Related parties of Subsidaries

Suditi Design Studio Ltd.

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March a)

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

2 Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd. 6.59               

3 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

b) 

1 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

c) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

2 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

3 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

d) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Payable) 127.41 127.41

2 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) -                 -                 

3 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 23.47 23.47

4 Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd. (Receivable) 6.59 0.00

5 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 40.93 40.88

Balance Outstanding as at the year end

Joint Ventures Relatives of

KMPs

Entities in which a director

or his/her relative is a 

Sale of Goods/Related Services

Expenses towards Services received

Purchase of Goods

Description



Suditi Sports Apparel Ltd.

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March 

For year

ended March a)

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -                  7.37

b) 

1 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. * -                  (4.83)

2 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. 6.59 -                  

3 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. 13.00 -                  

c) 

1 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

2 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. 6.43               -                 

3 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. -                 -                 

d) 

1 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) -                 -                 

2 Black Gold Leasing Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 8.91 8.91

3 Suditi Design Studio Ltd. (Payable) 6.59               -                 

4 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. (Receivable) 0.00 0.00

5 SAA & Suditi Retail Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 26.66 14.89

6 R. Piyarellal Pvt. Ltd. (Payable) 11.92 5.48

7 Intime Knits Pvt. Ltd. (Net Payable) 231.01 61.51

* Purchase of Goods is negative on account of return of goods.

Purchase of Goods

Expenses towards Services received

Balance Outstanding as at the year end

Relatives of

KMPs

Description Joint Ventures Entities in which a director

or his/her relative is a 

Sale of Goods/Related Services
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